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Chairman’s Statement

FEHRE
Results and Dividends

For the year ended 31 December 2012, New Heritage’s revenue fell about 27%
from the previous year to approximately HK$272.1 million (HK$375.2 million in
2011). Its profit attributable to the owners of the Company fell about 33% from
the previous year to approximately HK$8.2 million (HK$12.2 million in 2011).

The Board has recommended the payment of a final dividend of 0.2 HK
cents per ordinary share (0.3 HK cents in 2011) in cash for the year ended
31 December 2012 to shareholders whose names appear on the Register
of Members of the Company on 23 May 2013, and will seek the approval of
the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting on
15 May 2013 for the payment of this final dividend. The dividend warrants
are expected to be dispatched to registered shareholders on or around
5 June 2013.

Business Review and Outlook

The second half of 2012 saw a recovery in the PRC property market,
particularly in sales volumes of smaller-sized apartment units and a mild rise
in prices due to credit easing by the banks which stemmed from cuts in the
Reserve Ratio Requirements (“RRR”) and also interest rates. Home Purchase
Restrictions (“HPR”) continued to be enforced in the major cities and these
continued to suppress sales of villas and larger apartment units. Housing starts
lagged behind as developers focused on improving cashflow and balance sheet
strengthening during the course of the year.

Our company’s major product in 2012 was the low density townhouse project,
Taihu Garden Court (“TGC”), in Guangfu Town in the Wuzhong District of
Suzhou, which is subject to HPR so the sales volume and prices did not meet
our expectations. However, sales of the remaining units in Phases 1 and 2 of
our project, Lakeside Garden Court (“LGC"), in Wujiang District as well as some
of our investment properties in Suzhou Garden Villa (“SGV") exceeded our
expectations and are in line with the industry trend mentioned above. Our sales
of LGC Phase 3 villas in Wujiang were also booked in this financial year and
became the main contributor to our revenue stream in 2012 as Wujiang was
not subject to HPR. Pre-sales of LGC Phase 4 which are small-sized high-rise
apartments have also started in earnest with favourable homebuyers’ response
and are expected to complete in 2014.

In the coming months we expect to see further improvements in development
margins which could well increase the risk of government intervention by
raising the cost of credit or the imposition of a property tax. We believe it is still
politically unacceptable to the government to have property prices increase
much faster than the economic growth of the nation despite there being more
low cost housing available now in the market. The continuing urbanisation
trend in the PRC will however continue to encourage residential housing
development. Our company has been building up our war chest with a view to
giving us options across the spectrum including more land acquisition activities,
ramping up our development pipeline or reshuffling our products and targets
across different sectors or geographical areas. We continue to avoid expensive
and overpriced sites and locations with an overabundant supply of housing at
price points which undercut the market.

| would like to express my sincere gratitude to our strategic partners, lenders
and shareholders for their continued support in these very trying times, as well as
to my fellow Board members and loyal colleagues and staff who have worked so
hard and continue to do so throughout the course of the year and beyond.

TAOCHAIFU Choofuang (C.F. Tao)
Chairman

Hong Kong, 21 March 2013
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Management Discussion and Analysis

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

During the year under review, the Group continued its focus on property
development and investment businesses in Suzhou and Beijing. The Group
continued to explore prudently sites within and outside the Province of Jiangsu
with high growth potential to capture opportunities for profitable development or
investment prospects.

PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT

For the year 2012, the Central Government of the PRC started easing lending to
the sector from the middle of the year. HPR however, continued to be imposed
to curb speculation and investment. Townhouses and high-grade residential
property markets still suffered due to such austerity measures.

During the year under review, HPR were still not applicable in Wujiang District.
This coupled with the administrative amalgamation of the former Wujiang City
to the Suzhou municipality as Wujiang District in September 2012, resulted in
homebuyers and investors increased expectations for a much more prosperous
Wujiang, thereby creating a buoyant market with soaring transaction volumes
and some increases in property prices. The Group had taken the bold and
intuitive step during the previous year’'s downturn and earlier in the year to start
construction of new phases and so captured such opportunities to expedite
the pre-sales of Phases 3 and 4 of our project LGC in Shengze Town, Wujiang
before other projects were ready to come onto the market.

The Group’s development projects in Suzhou proceeded on schedule in the
year under review.

1. Taihu Garden Court, Guangfu Town, Wuzhong, Suzhou
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEE T WE DT

Although the general townhouse market in the Greater Suzhou
municipality suffered from the strict HPR measures, TGC benefitted from
its outstanding architectural design, beautiful classical landscaping and
astute sales market targeting, achieving a comparatively decent result in
2012 compared to other townhouse projects nearby.

During the year, a low-density townhouse from Phase 1 of gross floor
area about 300 sg.m. was sold, with sales turnover of about HK$3.2
million. Only an inventory of 8 townhouses of Phase 1 remained for sale.
Phase 2 comprised 110 low-density townhouses of total gross floor area
of about 24,700 sg.m. of which 41 townhouses with gross floor area
around 9,100 sg.m. were sold in the reporting period and generated
revenue of about HK$112.4 million.

Phase 3, which consists of 84 low-density townhouses with a total gross
floor area of around 20,000 sg.m., will be completed in the coming year.
Incorporating further design improvements, these townhouses will be
even more sought after by local buyers.

Lakeside Garden Court, Shengze Town, Wujiang, Suzhou

The total site area of this project, which is being developed in four
phases, is about 86,200 sq.m. with a gross floor area of approximately
154,700 sqg.m.. Ever since our arrival in Shengze Town, this project
has enjoyed a sound reputation amongst the local community in
architectural design, modernity and practicability of living as well as its
customer-oriented philosophy, while respecting the local culture and
characteristics. These values are reflected in the remarkably high owner-
occupancy rate of the project.

The total gross floor area of Phase 1 is around 41,000 sq.m.. During the
year under review, approximately 700 sg.m. of the few remaining units
in the four high-rise residential buildings were sold, generating a revenue
about HK$4.7 million.

BARBMNTHBET S SR EENRBESHEIEY
2 AW - BEREF M RERG - BRATEN
SEMRERRBEEMS AR -2 —FHHBR
Pﬁ MEAMPEIR R IRAR -

—H— AR EEEL /300 T RN EREHE
KERFAREL - 5% £ %5 #3,200,0008 7T © %
—HIERSHEENFEGE - S _HIERMBEA
B4 /24,700 F 73 KB 110 EZ EHHE - Hh AR
SHIAEE KA E B 29,100 7 KB 41 B
[E - #%9112,400,00078 T A o

F=H B EEZEMmEL20,000F H K H84EHER
EHEE - BRBAEEK - BEEMAFEREE '
SR B KEGD ©

$RERSE > AR RIIROEH

ZIE B E’\J%@ﬁ@%%’ﬁ%S&ZOO?ﬁX BT
T&#9154,700F 753K » D AUEEE - QEZIEEEE%
SESEHEL DR - BTAE A & b RS IR
EHBERE E—r!"‘]ﬁﬁfﬁﬁmﬁi/ﬁﬁﬁl«/{&bﬁﬁﬁﬁ
RIESMAXZEHERSH BtZEENEREA
EEREDE o

S —HMEBHEEEL) R41,000F 5K « RREESF
FW AESBETREBEHE T BELT00F 5 KM E
(B & - #52k%94,700,00078 7T A Wz o

New Heritage Holdings Ltd. Annual Report 2012



Management Discussion and Analysis

During the year, a total gross floor area of around 3,000 sg.m. of the few
remaining apartments in Phase 2 was sold, and about HK$22.6 million
of revenue was generated. As of 31 December 2012, Phase 2, which
comprises 4 blocks of high-rise residential buildings with a total gross
floor area about 35,900 sq.m., was 100% sold or contracted for.

Phase 3, which comprises 86 low-density townhouses designed by an
internationally renowned architecture firm with a gross floor area around
19,600 sg.m., was completed as scheduled during the second half of
2012. During the year under review, 42 townhouses with gross floor area
about 9,700 sq.m. were sold, generating revenue of around HK$116.0
million. Many are buyers excited at the prospect of moving into their first
ever villas. Public praise of our efficient use of space, practical layout and
modern elevations has attracted buyers from neighbouring townships.
The Group’s objective is to sell the remaining villas at a much better
premium price, so sales were suspended towards the end of 2012.

Phase 4 will consist of 6 blocks of high-rise residential buildings of mainly
small apartment units (under 90 sg.m. each) with a total gross floor area
of about 58,200 sg.m.. Construction commenced as scheduled. The
project’s sound reputation, pioneering use of show flats in this township,
together with the currently market-favoured small apartment units,
resulted in a successful pre-sale launch towards the end of 2012 such
that 124 units of gross floor area of about 11,000 sq.m. were pre-sold
for a total contract sum of about HK$91.0 million to be recognised as
revenue. Phase 4 is scheduled for delivery in 2014.

Wuzhong Office Building, Wuzhong, Suzhou

This project is centrally located in the upcoming Yuexi subdistrict of
Wuzhong and surrounded by various government office buildings. The
site area of this project is approximately 14,600 sq.m. and usage is
commercial. The design of this building comprises of office, Small Office/
Home Office (“SOHO") units and retail space, with saleable gross floor
area around 58,400 sq.m.. Construction of the metro subway station
nearby has already been underway in the latter part of the year in
review. The Group still wishing to focus on its traditional strength in the
residential sector and less so on the commercial/office building sector,
has therefore also been exploring the possibility of seeking co-investors
or buyers for this project.

BEERWED T

FEHB T EEAEEARBL A3 000 KNAE
BURFERLDES - WA R4922,600,0005 TTHIK
H RNZE——F+-A=1+—0 BRE4IESEE
FAE R EEERIEL35900F T KHNE _HE 2
HeEHseEFED -

F=-HIBEEBHEEELR19,600F 77 KH86HE
BEVE - AEBRELRERRR  CRREE
ROZE-——FTHFNHRT - REEFEAN - £18
EIHEX) 729,700 F )T KW A2HEBIER D EH » HK
#1116,000,000/8 TLH) Yzt - AEB D ERITBLER
EERBENRE - EEEZAEM - HREM 5
B R - AfMARET - YRS TENEMLE
Ko AEENEREATIRENERLEHR TR
g ARZEARTELNER T _FEYFHE
&=

SVUE B R IBE EE458,200F 71 KNEER E
FEEAE - T2REEOFHRKATHNAAZE
i - EETIRMMET - ZIRE R EBEEZERAT
BEMPRN - TEREXTISEEN NIATER -
AURAZEREM  ER T ——_FREIEFHELHTE
& H 124R4R2 E miE4)11,000°F 75 K i) B ALK
ERE  BAKIHETEL//91,000,000/87T » A
RERER R/ - ENHRBEAR - —HFRNE

=

% o
KRFEPRIERE - FHRF

FZEBURRPHEZRNOBESE - WAZETR
BT AR - %8B BB EELR14,600F 77K -
TERE RS - RERABERAE - NERAE K
B AZE(TSOHO DB R EEZ=M - Al HEAEH
EEA) 458,400 F 75K « THE MRSt ET
RERRBFE FFFRRA - ARAEBINAFEFE
BRHEEGFEETS NP 2RBEREE AT
BTISHLE - BN RZER e RAKREE
KERNATREN ©

FRERERAT —T-—EER 7



Management Discussion and Analysis
EEE T WE DT

PROPERTY INVESTMENT

During the year under review, the Group’s investment properties, situated in
the prime central business district (“CBD”) of Suzhou New District (“SND"),
continued to benefit from the development strategy set by the SND government.
The gradual increase in traffic of Suzhou Metro Line 1 and the progressive
commercialisation of the region attracted more qualified residential buyers who
showed interest in purchasing the Group’s remaining SGV high-rise apartments.

1. SGV Plaza, Suzhou New District

SGV Plaza of retail gross floor area around 11,000 sq.m. generated
rental income of about HK$7.1 million in the period under review, with
about 93% occupancy rate as of 31 December 2012. Only one of the
major tenants’ lease was not renewed in accordance with our strategy
to improve tenant mix. The vacancy period is expected to be relatively
short.

2. Garden Court Plaza, Suzhou New District

Garden Court Plaza, a 3-storey retail centre with a total gross floor area
of around 4,500 sg.m., was 100% let and generated rental income of
approximately HK$3.0 million for the year.

3. SGV Apartments, Suzhou New District

During the year under review, the Group sold about 1,600 sq.m. of
investment apartments with proceeds of about HK$21.9 million. As of
31 December 2012, the Group still held approximately 6,000 sg.m.
(37 units) of residential investment property. Rental revenue under the
year of review was approximately HK$3.1 million.

4, Investment in Beijing Landmark Towers Co., Ltd. (“Beijing Landmark”)

During the year under review, the operational results of Beijing Landmark
have continued to improve steadily when compared with that of 2011.
Due to renovation of other hotels in close proximity to Beijing Landmark,
the occupancy of both its hotel and serviced apartments has gradually
increased, while the occupancy of offices still remained at almost 100%.
The conference business, together with food and beverage, in Beijing
also continues to be strong.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

PROPERTY MANAGEMENT

The Group continues its outsourcing policy to exercise careful due diligence
in the process of appointing fully licensed and qualified local property
management companies in Suzhou. Owners’ associations for completed
projects were established in accordance with local rules and regulations.

STRATEGIC PARTNERSHIPS

Spinnaker Capital Group

Spinnaker Capital Group, a strategic partner of the Group since 2006, remains
one of the substantial shareholders of the Company as well as a strategic
non-controlling shareholder in two of the Group’s subsidiaries — Suzhou New
Heritage Wuzhong Limited (developer of Wuzhong Garden Court which has
been undergoing the process of voluntary liquidation as at 31 December 2012)
and Suzhou New Heritage GF Limited (developer of TGC).

Asia Financial Group

Since 2007, Asia Financial Group (“AFG”) has been a 9.615% shareholder of
New Heritage Development Limited (“NH Development”), a subsidiary of the
Company. NH Development is the holding company of most of the Group’s
property project companies in Suzhou. AFG is also the holder of the Company’s
convertible notes.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

The Group’s revenue mainly comprised of recognised property development
sales and leasing revenue from investment properties. The Group’s revenue for
the year ended 31 December 2012 was approximately HK$272.1 million (2011:
HK$375.2 million), representing a decrease of about 27% when compared with
last year. The decrease in the Group’s revenue was mainly due to decrease in
revenue from recognised property development sale.

The revenue from recognised property development sales included the
disposal of 42 low-density townhouses in TGC Phases 1 and 2, 32 residential
apartment units and 42 low-density townhouses in LGC Phases 1, 2 and
3 of approximately HK$115.6 million, approximately HK$27.3 million and
approximately HK$116.0 million respectively. The Group’s total gross floor area
of development properties sold for the year ended 31 December 2012 was
approximately 22,800 sq.m. (2011: 48,900 sq.m.).

Leasing revenue from investment properties for the year ended 31 December 2012
was approximately HK$13.2 million (2011: HK$12.4 million). The leasing
revenue generated from the investment properties in Suzhou Garden Villa and
two retail centres was approximately HK$3.1 million (2011: HK$3.7 million)
and approximately HK$10.1 million (2011: HK$8.7 million) respectively.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWED T

Operating Results

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group’s gross profit amounted
to approximately HK$48.9 million (2011: HK$56.7 million). The gross profit
margin for the year ended 31 December 2012 was approximately 18% as
compared to approximately 15% last year.

Finance costs for the year amounted to approximately HK$1.9 million as
compared to approximately HK$6.2 million last year. The decrease was mainly
due to the increase in finance costs capitalised to properties held under
development. There was a non-cash item of approximately HK$0.2 million
(2011: HK$1.2 million) included in the finance costs being the imputed interest
expense on loans from non-controlling shareholders.

The valuation on the Group’s investment properties as at 31 December 2012
was conducted by an independent property valuer which resulted in a positive
fair value adjustment of approximately HK$22.3 million for the year ended
31 December 2012 (2011: HK$8.4 million).

During the year, certain investment properties were sold for a total consideration
of approximately HK$21.9 million (2011: HK$11.9 million).

Share of results of associates mainly represented the profit contributed by
Beijing Landmark to the Group for the year of approximately HK$20.4 million
(2011: HK$18.5 million).

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the profit attributable to the owners
of the Company was approximately HK$8.2 million (2011: HK$12.2 million)
which represented a basic earnings per share of 0.64 HK cents (2011: 0.95 HK
cents).

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Gearing

Cash and cash equivalents as at 31 December 2012 amounted to
approximately HK$291.0 million (2011: HK$265.7 million).

The Group had total bank borrowings of approximately HK$122.5 million as at
31 December 2012 (2011: HK$265.2 million). Borrowings classified as current
liabilities were approximately HK$219.5 million (2011: HK$187.2 million) and
the Group’s gearing ratio as at 31 December 2012 was approximately 12%
(2011: 26%), which was based on total bank borrowings to total equity.

Current, Total and Net Assets

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had current assets of approximately
HK$1,088.0 million (2011: HK$1,139.1 million) and current liabilities of
approximately HK$447.5 million (2011: HK$366.6 million) which represented
a decrease in net current assets from approximately HK$772.5 million as at
31 December 2011 to approximately HK$640.5 million as at 31 December 2012.

As at 31 December 2012, the Group recorded total assets of approximately
HK$1,616.6 million (2011: HK$1,670.7 million) and total liabilities of
approximately HK$589.0 million (2011: HK$667.6 million), representing a debt
ratio (total liabilities over total assets) of approximately 36% (2011: 40%). Net
assets of the Group was approximately HK$1,027.6 million as at 31 December
2012 (2011: HK$1,003.1 million).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

All land fees for all the land acquired for development by the Group have been
fully paid.

The Group is able to utilise its internal reserves and debt financing to meet the
funding requirements when opportunities for land acquisition arise.

Charge on Assets

As at 31 December 2012, bank loans of approximately HK$89.2 million were
secured by certain of the Group’s land and buildings and properties held under
development of approximately HK$38.3 million and approximately HK$71.6
million respectively.

As at 31 December 2011, bank loans of approximately HK$243.1 million
were secured by certain of the Group’s land and buildings, investment
properties and properties held under development of approximately HK$39.1
million, approximately HK$158.7 million and approximately HK$211.0 million
respectively.

Contingent Liabilities

The Directors considered that there were no material contingent liabilities as at
31 December 2012.

Exposure to Fluctuations in Exchange Rates and Related Hedges

The Group’s monetary assets, loans and transactions are principally
denominated in Renminbi, Hong Kong dollars and US dollars. During the year
under review, there was no significant fluctuation in the exchange rates of these
three currencies apart from the appreciation of currency of Renminbi against
US dollars and Hong Kong dollars. The Group did not engage in any derivative
activities and did not commit to any financial instruments to hedge its statement
of financial position exposure for the years ended 31 December 2012 and
2011. Nevertheless, any appreciation in the currency value of Renminbi against
Hong Kong dollars will contribute positively to the Group’s result.

Treasury Policies and Capital Structure

The Group adopts a prudent approach with respect to treasury and funding
policies, with a focus on risk management and transactions that are directly
related to the underlying business of the Group.

Employees

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had a staff roster of 103 (2011: 106),
of which 75 (2011: 78) employees were based in the mainland China and 28
(2011: 28) employees in Hong Kong SAR. The remuneration of employees
was in line with the market trends and commensurate to the levels of pay in
the industry. Remuneration of the Group’s employees includes basic salaries,
bonuses and long-term incentives such as the granting of share options within
an approved scheme.
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Corporate Social Responsibility
rEHSEME

Corporate Social Responsibility (“CSR”)

In 2012, New Heritage engaged in charitable activities in both Hong Kong
and the mainland. The year in review proved to be a challenging one which
impacted the costs and benefits of long-term commitments by the Group
which were not immediately significant in their direct positive impact on the
community nor necessarily ensuring long-term corporate success.

Community Responsibility

The Group continued its participation in the Community Chest of Hong Kong's
Skip Lunch Day, The Community Chest Green Day, Dress Casual Day and
Love Teeth Day, and the purchase of annual raffle tickets from two church
institutions. During the year under review, the Group made a donation to the Chi
Heng Foundation which funds and operates projects in education and care for
children and adults impacted by AIDS, AIDS prevention and anti-discrimination
in the PRC.

Environmental Responsibility

With the entry of more large scale developers to the Suzhou market and land
prices exceeding certain thresholds, more and more finished units are being
introduced to justify even higher selling prices. There will inevitably still be
some buyers who decide to replace the finishes with their own customised
preferences, thereby creating ecologically harmful demolition waste material.
We still believe in delivering units with unfinished interiors in our residential
projects allowing for individual buyers to decorate and finish the units to
their own tastes, thus avoiding such wastage and negative impact on the
environment.

Environmental awareness, eco-friendly materials and energy-saving features are
the basis for our project philosophy.

- Building material quality is a primary concern and is controlled by our
direct screening and nomination of material suppliers and subcontractors
for lifts, aluminium doors and windows, fire-rated doors, electrical and
mechanical equipment and landscaping, among other construction
components.

- South-facing windows incorporate pergola designs for more use of plants
and greening to provide natural shading and a more pleasant building
facade.

- Fresh air exchange has always been an important requirement by PRC
homebuyers which our partly openable windows address while still
maintaining indoor temperature and humidity stable. Nevertheless, new
regulations have stipulated restrictions on the direction these windows
can open so our design and project teams responded promptly with
suitable solutions and sourcing of appropriate prefabricated pieces.

The Group continues to use video-conferencing to communicate with its
main office in Suzhou in order to minimise the carbon footprint from frequent
overseas travel.

Environmentally friendly paper has been used for interim and annual reports
since 2008.
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Corporate Social Responsibility

History

In 1995 our Chairman introduced Suzhou to both world renown academic
and experienced professional parties. Subsequently, a workshop and design
studio at two different times were sponsored and conducted, culminating in
two timeless and inspiring publications in 1996 entitled, “Suzhou: Shaping an
Ancient City for the New China” by EDAW/Pei, and in 1997, “One Body, Two
Wings’' Redevelopment in China” by Peter G. Rowe, Harvard Graduate School
of Design.

Past Awards

2012: Wujiang District Major Taxpayer 2012 granted by Suzhou Wujiang
District Government

Wujiang District Shengze Town Real Estate Advanced Unit 2012
granted by Suzhou Wujiang District Shengze Town Government

Wuzhong District Major Taxpayer 2012 granted by Suzhou
Wuzhong District Government

2004: Key enterprise invested by overseas Chinese, HK & Macau

2000: Honour Award for Architecture (The American Institute of
Architects Hong Kong Chapter)

1998: Certificate of Merit (Suzhou Garden Villa Phase Il1)
Internships
2008

Student from Singapore Management University interning in property
management activities in Suzhou Garden Villa Development & Management
Co., Ltd..

2009

Student from Singapore Management University interning in property
management activities in Suzhou Garden Villa Development & Management
Co., Ltd..

2011

Students from Manchester University and Malvern College interning in real estate
project activities in Suzhou Garden Villa Development & Management Co., Ltd.,
and design related activities in the Suzhou Institute of Architectural Design Co.,
Ltd, and Futurepolis (Suzhou).

Employer’s Responsibhility

All Hong Kong based employees of the Group are encouraged to have a good
balance between work, health and social activity which has been supported by
adopting a five-day work week since 2008. This also reduces local commuting
outlays and frequent use of video conferencing has reduced the need for
frequent overseas travel to our PRC offices, thereby reducing our total carbon
footprint.
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Corporate Social Responsibility
rEHSEME

Employer’s Responsibility (contd)

Senior executives nevertheless attended in person the Annual Dinner at the
beginning of the year in Suzhou to show appreciation to the staff for their
dedication and contribution to the Group’s business activities. A festive end of
year Christmas lunch in Hong Kong was held which coincided with the Winter
Solstice whereby in respecting local tradition staff were let off earlier to prepare
for their customary family dinner gatherings.

Staff members in Hong Kong continue to receive a comprehensive medical
insurance plan.

Share options are offered to all levels of staff in Hong Kong unlike other public
listed companies which usually restrict share options to directors and senior
management. As there is a Stock Exchange compliance restriction on when
such options can be granted as well as a cost to the Company associated
with the share options, they would only be considered when available and not
adversely impacting the Company’s profitability.

The Group has been voluntarily contributing extra funding exceeding minimum
statutory requirements to the staff's provident fund scheme in Hong Kong over
and above the MPF Scheme.

Indoor Air Quality

A prime example of “charity begins at home” was when senior management
reviewed and approved the installation of IQAIr, a leading Swiss clean air
solutions system, in the Hong Kong headquarters. The process began at
the beginning of the year with the visit of an indoor air quality consultant
who performed and compiled an Indoor Air Quality Measurement Report,
covering measured concentration levels of respirable suspended particulates,
total volatile organic compounds, formaldehyde, carbon dioxide and ozone,
among other air quality parameters. On average as reported, people spend
over 90% of their time indoors, making indoor air pollutants a greater health
hazard than their outdoor counterparts. Employers can therefore exercise a
greater responsibility to their employees by improving indoor air quality in the
workplace.

Prior to installing the IQAir HealthPro 250 (ceiling-mounted) system, a thorough
washing of the entire air-conditioning system was carried out. The ceiling-
mounted system was then selected to save on floor space requirements, better
incorporation with existing air ducting systems, as well as being the lower
cost alternative. Installation only required two working days which was then
scheduled over the weekend to prevent disruption to normal working hours.
The system is programmable and therefore can save energy consumption by
only operating when required.

After installation and operation for a few days, follow-up air quality measurements
were taken and readings indicated a noticeable improvement. Over the course
of the year under review, the incidences of flu related cases were noticeably
lower compared to prior years as one of the benefits of the air purifier system
was its HEPA filter which helps lower airborne particles containing allergens,
bacteria and viruses.

Corporate Governance

In the year under review, a qualified professional third party was engaged to
perform an Internal Control Review on the Company in a specified area for the
relevant Board committee’s review. This review also covered the Company’s
code of conduct as outlined in the Company’s staff handbook under the section
entitled “Rules, Ethics & Discipline”.

The principal corporate governance practices adopted by the Company is set
out on pages 27 to 36 of this report.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Executive Directors

Mr. TAOCHAIFU Choofuang (also known as C.F. TAO), aged 90, is an Executive
Director, Chairman of the Company and a founder of the Group. He is
responsible for determining the overall business strategies of the Group.
He graduated from BB ok K22 the former National Central University
(now known as Southeast University JE K2) with a Bachelor of Science
degree in mechanical engineering. Mr. TAOCHAIFU had played a significant
role in property investment and property development activities in the PRC
since 1978. One of the most important PRC projects that Mr. TAOCHAIFU
participated in was the development of Nanjing Jinling Hotel (FI R & [ZE8k
J&) in Nanjing, one of the earliest 5-star hotels built in the PRC following the
“opening up” of the PRC to the outside world in 1978. He was appointed as
a director of New Heritage Investments Limited (“NH Investments”) in 1984.
He was involved in establishing and supervising It 5= B A EHR A 7
(Beijing Landmark Towers Co., Ltd.) (“BLTCL"), the joint venture with Beijing
Tourism Administration to develop the Beijing Landmark Towers complex.
Mr. TAOCHAIFU is the deputy chairman and an executive director of BLTCL.
He was appointed as a director of New Heritage Development Limited (“NH
Development”) in 1991. From 1991 onwards, he was responsible for forming
MR RBREREEAMR AT (Suzhou Garden Villa Development and
Management Co., Ltd.) (“*SGVDM”) and supervising the overall development
of Suzhou Garden Villa and Suzhou Garden Court. He is also the chairman
of SGVDM. Mr. TAOCHAIFU was accredited as an Honorary Citizen by the
municipal government of Suzhou in 1995. He was also a former independent
non-executive director of Jiangsu Expressway Company Limited, a company
listed on the Main Board. Mr. TAOCHAIFU is the Honorary President of Hong
Kong Federation of Overseas Chinese Associations Limited. He was granted the
“World Outstanding Chinese” award in 2008. He was also awarded an Honorary
Doctor Degree from The University of West Alabama in 2008. Mr. TAOCHAIFU
was appointed as an executive director of the Company on 23 December 2004
and is the father of Mr. TAO Richard and Mr. TAO Paul.

Mr. TAO Richard, aged 51, is an Executive Director and Vice Chairman of
the Company. He is responsible for the strategic planning and corporate
development of the Group. Mr. TAO has a Bachelor of Science (First Class
Honours) from the University of Newcastle Upon Tyne, and two Masters
Degrees from the Massachusetts Institute of Technology. He was appointed as
a director of NH Development, NH Investments and SGVDM in 2000, 2001 and
2004 respectively. He was appointed as an executive director of the Company
on 23 December 2004. He is a son of Mr. TAOCHAIFU Choofuang and the
brother of Mr. TAO Paul.

Mr. TAO Paul (also known as TAOCHAIFU Porn), aged 45, is the Managing
Director of the Company. He graduated from the University of Cambridge,
England with a Master of Arts degree. He also holds a Master of Science degree
in Real Estate from the University of Greenwich, England and participated in
the Program for Management Development at the Graduate School of Business
Administration, Harvard University, USA. Mr. TAO has been actively involved
in property development and investment in the PRC for over 15 years since
joining the Group. Mr. TAO was initially responsible for the sales and marketing
activities for the projects in Suzhou, and latterly in general management. He is
a member of The 13th Committee of Suzhou City, Jiangsu Province Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference #BI A RBUA R €5 T 5 & &N
ME+=ZEZEEZE. Mr. TAO is also a qualified solicitor in Hong Kong. He
was appointed as a director of NH Development, SGVDM and NH Investments
in 1997, 1999 and 2001 respectively. Mr. TAO was also appointed as a director
of BLTCL in 2006. He was appointed as an executive director of the Company
on 23 December 2004. He is a son of Mr. TAOCHAIFU Choofuang and the
brother of Mr. TAO Richard.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EERSREEAEZEE

Mr. KONG Mui Sum Lawrence, aged 64, is an Executive Director of the Company.
He graduated in 1970 from the University of Hong Kong with a Bachelor of
Social Sciences degree with honours majoring in Economics and Accounting.
He is a fellow of the Institute of Chartered Shipbrokers, being qualified in
1977. He joined Ocean Shipping & Enterprises Limited in 1970 and has over
20 years of senior management experience. He joined the Group’s associated
companies in November 1999 and has been actively involved in the business
planning and development of the Group’s business in PRC, including but not
limited to contract negotiations with third party professionals and contractors as
well as project management. He was appointed as an executive director of the
Company on 23 December 2004.

Mr. YIM Chun Leung, aged 51, is an Executive Director of the Company. Mr. YIM
is a fellow member of The Chartered Association of Certified Accountants,
a certified public accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and a member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in
England and Wales. Mr. YIM also holds a Master of Business Administration
degree. Mr. YIM has more than 28 years’ experience in auditing, accounting
and finance fields. Mr. YIM had worked for several listed companies as director
or engaged in senior management position. Mr. YIM was appointed as an
executive director of the Company on 23 December 2004 and is responsible for
corporate finance matters of the Group.

Non-Executive Director

Mr. CHAN Bernard Charnwut, GBS, JP, aged 48, is a Non-Executive Director of
the Company. Mr. CHAN is a graduate and is currently a Trustee of Pomona
College in California, U.S.A.. He is a Hong Kong Deputy to the National People’s
Congress of the People’s Republic of China and a non-official member of
the Executive Council. He serves as the Chairman of the Council of Lingnan
University, the Advisory Committee on Revitalisation of Historic Buildings,
the Standing Committee on Judicial Salaries and Conditions of Service, Hong
Kong-Thailand Business Council, the Council for Sustainable Development
and the Vice Chairman of the Oxfam Hong Kong. In addition, Mr. CHAN
serves as an advisor of Bangkok Bank Public Company Limited, Hong Kong
Branch and the Chairperson of The Hong Kong Council of Social Service.
Mr. CHAN is currently an executive director and the President of both Asia
Financial Holdings Ltd. and Asia Insurance Company, Limited. He is a non-
executive director of City e-Solutions Limited, an independent non-executive
director of each of Chen Hsong Holdings Limited, China Resources Enterprise,
Limited and Yau Lee Holdings Limited, all of which are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Mr. CHAN is also an
independent non-executive director of Wing Lung Bank Limited (which was
delisted from the Stock Exchange in 2009). Mr. CHAN was the Chairman of the
Antiquities Advisory Board from 2009 to 2012. He retired as an independent
non-executive director of Kingboard Laminates Holdings Limited on 3 May
2011. Mr. CHAN was appointed as a non-executive director of the Company on
14 November 2005.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. WONG Gary Ka Wai, aged 51, is an Independent Non-Executive Director of
the Company. Mr. WONG graduated from The University of British Columbia
with a Master Degree of Business Administration in Finance and Management
Information Systems, and a Degree of Bachelor of Applied Science in
Electrical Engineering. He is a member of the Association of Certified General
Accountants’ Association of Canada. Mr. WONG has been working for a number
of international financial institutions and has numerous experiences in the
banking industry. Currently, he is a manager in Standard Chartered Bank (Hong
Kong) Limited in Hong Kong. He has internal controls and financial reporting
experience. Mr. WONG was appointed as an independent non-executive
director of the Company on 14 November 2005.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Mr. SUN Leland Li Hsun, aged 51, is an Independent Non-Executive Director
of the Company. Mr. SUN graduated from the University of California, Los
Angeles with a Master Degree of Business Administration in 1986. Mr. SUN
is the Chief Executive Officer and a founder of Pan Asian Mortgage Company
Limited, a mortgage securitization conduit. Mr. SUN has over 20 years of
secondary mortgage market experience in Asia and the United States, directly
involved in the structuring, trading and distribution of mortgage-backed
securities globally. In 1997, Mr. SUN was appointed by the Financial Secretary
of the Hong Kong SAR government as the first Chief Operating Officer of The
Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation and was entrusted with managing this 100%
government-owned company. Previously, Mr. SUN was an Executive Director
in the Fixed Income International Sales Department of GS (Asia) Securities
Limited and was employed by Goldman Sachs from July 1986 to October
1994. He was also a Senior Managing Director of the Emerging Markets
Fixed Income Sales Department with Bear Stearns Asia Limited from October
1994 to February 1996. He was appointed as an independent non-executive
director of Chongging Rural Commercial Bank Co., Ltd. in December 2011. He
was appointed as an independent non-executive director of the Company on
14 November 2005.

Mr. CHAN Norman Enrique, aged 52, is an Independent Non-Executive Director
of the Company. He was an Adjunct Assistant Professor of the Chinese
University of Hong Kong from September 2001 to January 2002. He has
experience in architectural design. Currently, he is a director of BTR Workshop
Limited, an architectural and design company based in Hong Kong. He was
appointed as an independent non-executive director of the Company on
14 November 2005.
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Directors’ Report

EEEHRE

The directors of the Company (“Directors”) have pleasure in presenting
their report together with the audited financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2012.

Principal Activities

The Group is principally engaged in property development and property
investment businesses in the PRC.

Results and Dividend

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2012 and the state
of affairs of the Group and the Company at that date are set out in the financial
statements on pages 39 to 123.

The Directors have recommended the payment of a final dividend of 0.2 HK
cents per share for the year ended 31 December 2012.

Convertible Notes and Share Capital

Details of the movements in the Company’s convertible notes and share capital
during the year are set out in notes 27 and 28 to the financial statements
respectively.

Reserves

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the year are set out in note 30 to the financial statements and in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity, respectively.

Distributable Reserves

At 31 December 2012, the Company’s reserves available for distribution,
amounted to approximately HK$20.5 million, of which approximately HK$2.6
million has been proposed as final dividend for the year.

Donations
During the year, the Group made charitable donations amounted to HK$87,000.
Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group are
set out in note 14 to the financial statements.

Principal Properties

Details of the principal properties for investment purposes and under
development are set out on pages 125 to 128.

Pre-Emptive Rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s articles of
association or the laws of Cayman Islands, which would oblige the Company to
offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.
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Group Financial Summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the
last five financial years is set out on page 124.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the Company’s Listed
Securities

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during the year. Other
than the issue of 860,000 shares by the Company during the year, neither
the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased or sold any of the
Company’s shares during the year.

Directors
The directors of the Company during the year were as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. TAOCHAIFU Choofuang (Chairman)
Mr. TAO Richard (Vice Chairman)

Mr. TAO Paul (Managing Director)

Mr. KONG Mui Sum Lawrence

Mr. YIM Chun Leung

Non-Executive Director
Mr. CHAN Bernard Charnwut

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. WONG Gary Ka Wai

Mr. SUN Leland Li Hsun

Mr. CHAN Norman Enrique

In accordance with the Company’s articles of association, Mr. TAOCHAIFU
Choofuang, Mr. TAO Paul and Mr. WONG Gary Ka Wai will retire by rotation
at the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election.

The Company has received from each independent non-executive director an
annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) and the Company considers such Directors to be independent.

Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management are set out on
pages 15to 17.

Directors’ Report
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Directors’ Report

EEERE
Directors’ Service Agreements

The former service agreements entered into between the Company and each
executive director expired on 31 December 2011. On 30 December 2011,
each of the executive directors of the Company entered into a new service
agreement (the “New Service Agreement”) with the Company for a term of 24
months commencing on 1 January 2012 and is subject to termination by the
executive director or the Company in the manner as set out in the New Service
Agreements.

The former letters of appointment entered into by the Company and the
non-executive director and each of the independent non-executive directors
of the Company expired on 13 November 2011. On 31 October 2011, the
non-executive director and each of the independent non-executive directors of
the Company have each entered into a letter of appointment with the Company
for a term of three years commencing on 14 November 2011; and such letters
of appointments may be terminated by either party by giving one month’s
written notice.

With effect from 1 January 2012, the monthly salary of Chairman was increased
by approximately 4%, the monthly salaries of two of the executive directors
(also substantial shareholders) were increased by approximately 2%, the
monthly salaries of the remaining two executive directors were increased
by approximately 8% and approximately 10% respectively. With effect from
14 November 2011, except the audit committee chairman whose monthly
salary was increased by 7%, the monthly salaries of the non-executive
director and other independent non-executive directors were increased by
approximately 7.33% respectively.

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors of the Company proposed for
re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting have a contract of service
with the Company or any of its subsidiaries not determinable by the employing
company within one year without payment of compensation (except for statutory
compensation).

Directors’ Interests in Contracts
Details of Directors’ interests in contracts of significance in relation to the

Group’s business are set out in the section headed “Connected Transaction” in
this report.
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Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests in the Shares and
Underlying Shares of the Company

As at 31 December 2012, the Directors had the following interests in the shares
and underlying shares of the Company which were recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”), or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”):

(A) Interest in shares and underlying shares under equity derivatives of the
Company

Directors’ Report

EEEHRE

EERFETHRAEBRARATNREG RE
B0 R S

RIZE——F+_A=+—H EEAQRIREZHFLEYE
10 ([ BH R EIEIEE) ) FE352(5 M BN E AR - =
ERARRINRG KRG T HEEOER - SREE R
Fregs EmR BN ETRAIDFSERETESRINIZ
EFABAUEM R NG AR R RERATERLT

(A REDXFAROHOEZRRBRAITETATHBARS Z
R

Number of

underlying shares

(under equity

Approximate
percentage of
the issued share

Long position/ Number of derivatives of Aggregate capital of
Name of Director Short position Capacity Shares held the Company) Interests the Company
ARG E B LR NG|
(RAATRA BRITREZ
EEgE BE KA 514 RO EE PTETAT) fERBER BAEDH
Mr. TAOCHAIFU Long Position Interests of controlled 651,882,278 - 664,397,278 51.69%
Choofuang e corporation (Note 1)
BT EE L E S (K15%1)
Long Position Personal interest 11,515,000 1,000,000
e AR (Note 2)
(H1532)
Mr. TAO Richard Long Position Interests of controlled 651,882,278 - 675,584,035 52.56%
PRI AE 5=} corporation (Note 1)
XL E S (Biat1)
Long Position Personal interest 22,701,757 1,000,000
S5=) AR (Note 2)
(H1522)
Mr. TAO Paul Long Position Interests of controlled 651,882,278 - 675,584,035 52.56%
ek y e e corporation (Note 1)
ZiEEE RS (K1z#1)
Long Position Personal interest 22,701,757 1,000,000
5=} A= (Note 2)
(H1:22)
Mr. KONG Mui Sum Long Position Personal interest 4,500,000 4,000,000 8,500,000 0.66%
Lawrence e BARER (Note 2)
TR A& (Hizt2)
Mr. YIM Chun Leung  Long Position Personal interest 4,976,605 9,000,000 13,976,605 1.09%
BRI A e AR (Note 2)
(H1522)
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Directors’

and Chief Executives’ Interests in the Shares and

Underlying Shares of the Company (Cont'a)

(A)

Interest in shares and underlying shares under equity derivatives of the

Company (Cont'd)

Notes:

1.

(B)

Belbroughton Limited (“Belbroughton”) is the legal and beneficial owner
of 651,882,278 shares. Belbroughton is owned as to 20% by Seal United
Investments Limited (“Seal United”) and 80% by United Islands Group
Limited (“United Islands”). Seal United is owned by Mr. TAOCHAIFU
Choofuang (“Mr. C.F. TAO”) and his spouse, Mrs. TAO POON Lai Yew
Nancy (“Mrs. TAO") in equal proportions. United Islands is owned by
Mr. C.F. TAO, Mrs. TAO, Mr. TAO Richard (the son of Mr. C.F. TAO),
Mr. TAO Paul (the son of Mr. C.F. TAO) and Ms. TAO Miriam (the daughter
of Mr. C.F. TAO) in equal proportions. Accordingly, Seal United, United
Islands as well as Mr. C.F. TAO, Mrs. TAO, Mr. TAO Richard, Mr. TAO Paul
and Ms. TAO Miriam are deemed to be interested in 651,882,278 shares
held by Belbroughton.

Share options were granted on 4 September 2012. Details of share options
granted to the Directors of the Company are set out in part (B) of this
section.

Long position in underlying shares — share options

Under the share option scheme of the Company, share option may be
granted to certain participants including the Directors and employees
of the Company and its subsidiaries to subscribe for the shares of the
Company. Details of share options granted to the Directors are as follows:

EERFETBRAERERATNRE RHE

BAROPHEENER &)

A RAEXTROHEZERRBATETIATHEBRGZ
E=(E)
Kzt -
1. Belbroughton Limited ( [ Belbroughton | ) #&

(B)

651,882,278 lR IR M & Z E = #E A A ° Seal
United Investments Limited([ Seal United]) & United
Islands Group Limited([United Islands]) % Bl #&
Belbroughton 20% }&80% 2 ##% ° Seal UnitedJ5MH
MERLE(BEELE]) RERBREREL LT
([FAKDIZMELPIEEAS - MUnited IslandsAlH
MEELE - BMAK BRTETEETELEZ
5F)  BHEEE(BEHRLTEZRT) KBER
ZH(FEEEE2ZR)RBELLAHES - Bt
Seal United * United IslandsiZRME R ELE - A
K- BRWEE - BHETERBEREEZ TR AR
Belbroughtonf#§H 2 % %651,882, 278k Ik #EH
TS o

BREDR —_Z-——FNAAMBERY - RTARAE
BB RN AREGBAT

HERG 2 A - BRE

RBEARRBZBRETS - BRETRTET28A
(BREZRARANAMBRRZEE)AREARR
B2 - RTEFZBEIEFITET

Number of share options

BREHE

Balance at Granted Exercised Balance at Exercise

Name of Director Date of grant Exercisable period 1 January 2012 during the year during the year 31 December 2012 price per share

dd/mm/yyyy dd/mm/yyyy HK$

St ;3

R-Z--F RER RER +ZA=t-H SR

548 REAH TEHE —R—AZHE Riti (g 288 T8

B/B/ % B/R/% BR

Mr. TAOCHAIFU 04/09/2012 04/09/2012 - 03/09/2017 - 1,000,000 - 1,000,000 0.235

Choofuang

FEELE

Mr. TAO Richard 04/09/2012 04/09/2012 - 03/09/2017 - 1,000,000 - 1,000,000 0.235
BRMEE

Mr. TAO Paul 04/09/2012 04/09/2012 - 03/09/2017 - 1,000,000 - 1,000,000 0.235
EErCy

Mr. KONG Mui Sum  04/09/2012 04/09/2012 - 03/09/2017 - 4,000,000 - 4,000,000 0.235
Lawrence
IHRREE

Mr. YIM Chun Leung  04/09/2012 04/09/2012 - 03/09/2017 - 9,000,000 - 9,000,000 0.235
BiRzEE

Save as disclosed above, none of the Company’s Directors, chief executives M ESCEEEIN  ARFIZESE EBTBABREEZ

and their associates, had any interests or short positions in the shares and

underlying

shares of the Company or any of its associated corporations

that was required to be recorded pursuant to section 352 of the SFO as at
31 December 2012.

Bib e A AR AR R B S B (R MBS VA B 2 AR 1) R AR R Rk 1
HWEEAERIAR © Mo ikEFRIEERAIZE352ER
T FF+ZA=F+—HF UL

22

New Heritage Holdings Ltd. Annual Report 2012



Substantial Shareholders’ Interests in Shares and
Underlying Shares of the Company

The register of substantial shareholders required to be kept under section 336
of Part XV of the SFO shows that as at 31 December 2012, the Company had
been notified of the following substantial shareholders’ interests, being 5% or
more of the Company’s issued share capital:

BRREs

Directors’ Report
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FERRRAQANRDRAEBRSG 5%

RIEFEH R EAE GO EXVEE336IKE TIFEMNE LM
NORZIE——HF+_A=Z1+—HB  ARAZEEBRE
(BARRBZZITRANS% A L) BEBRAARREREZHE

2 - HET

Long position in shares BB zFE
Approximate
Number of percentage of
Shares/ the issued
Long position/ underlying Aggregate share capital
Name of Shareholder Short position Capacity Shares held Interests  of the Company  Nofes
EARAT]
RS,/ 2RITREZ
e TR/ KA &1 HERGHHE ERAE BREIE W
Mrs. TAO POON Lai Yew Nancy Long position Interests of controlled corporation 651,882,278 664,397,278 51.69% 1
f%EE LT TE X EE R
Long position Interest of spouse 12,515,000
e [
Belbroughton Limited Long position Beneficial owner 651,882,278 651,882,278 50.71% 1
e EnlBA
Seal United Investments Limited Long position Interests of controlled corporation 651,882,278 651,882,278 50.71% 1
e i rE R
United Islands Group Limited Long position Interests of controlled corporation 651,882,278 651,882,278 50.71% 1
e X EE R
Ms. TAO Miriam Long position Interests of controlled corporation 651,882,278 651,882,278 50.71% 1
P+ e i rE R
Tian Xiang Business Limited Long position Beneficial owner 150,000,000 150,000,000 11.67% N/A
AHEBERLT e EnlBA THE
Spinnaker Global Emerging Markets Long position Beneficial owner 67,395,551 67,395,551 5.24% 2
Fund Limited e EREBA
Spinnaker Capital Limited Long position Investment manager 92,322,673 92,322,673 7.18% 2
e REKE
Spinnaker Asset Management Long position Investment manager 92,322,673 92,322,673 7.18% 2
— SAM Limited 555) REEE
Asia Financial Holdings Limited Long position Beneficial owner 45,454 545 68,181,818 5.04% 3
DilerREE(ER)BRAR e EnlBA
Long position Interests of controlled corporation 22,727,273
e i rE R
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Substantial Shareholders’ Interests in Shares and
Underlying Shares of the Company (Cont'a)

Long position in shares (Cont'd)

Notes:

1. Belbroughton is the legal and beneficial owner of 651,882,278 shares.
Belbroughton is owned as to 20% by Seal United and 80% by United Islands.
Seal United is owned by Mr. C.F. TAO and his spouse, Mrs. TAO in equal
proportions. United Islands is owned by Mr. C.F. TAO, Mrs. TAO, Mr. TAO Richard,
Mr. TAO Paul and Ms. TAO Miriam in equal proportions. Accordingly, Seal United,
United Islands as well as Mr. C.F. TAO, Mrs. TAO, Mr. TAO Richard, Mr. TAO Paul
and Ms. TAO Miriam are deemed to be interested in 651,882,278 shares held by
Belbroughton.

2. Spinnaker Capital Limited and Spinnaker Asset Management — SAM Limited
(together “Spinnaker Group”) are investment managers and the controlling
shareholders of Spinnaker Global Opportunity Fund Limited (“GO Fund”) and
Spinnaker Global Emerging Markets Fund Limited (“GEM Fund”). GO Fund and
GEM Fund held 24,927,122 shares and 67,395,551 shares, respectively. All
the shares of the Company held by Spinnaker Group are held through the Prime
Brokerage division of Morgan Stanley & Co. International plc.

3. These 68,181,818 underlying shares represent the shares which may be issued
upon full conversion of 6% convertible notes in the aggregate principal amount
of HK$75 million with maturity date falling 36 months from 30 September 2011,
the date of issue of the convertible notes, and the corresponding shareholding
percentage is calculated on an enlarged basis.

Share Options

Details of the Company’s share option scheme and the movements in the share
options are set out in note 29 to the financial statements.

Major Suppliers and Customers

The percentages of purchases and sales for the year attributable to the Group’s
major suppliers and customers are as follows:

Purchases

— the largest supplier 37%
— five largest suppliers combined 74%
Sales

— the largest customer 1%
— five largest customers combined 6%

None of the directors of the Company or any of their associates or any
shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the directors, own more than
5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any beneficial interest in the
Group'’s five largest suppliers and its five largest customers.

FERRRAQANRG RAEBRS %
BERE)

R 2R (4
pit -

1. Belbroughton 651,882,278 i (5 My & A E 25 A A © Seal
United & United Islands% Bl # & Belbroughton 20% £&80%
Z Wz o Seal United Ty B & %8 & R E BB PR K KL 48
ZH IR © MUnited IslandsBIMBEE B EE - AKX -
AR eA - BEEERMBB L TIRASL RS -
F It + Seal United * United Islandsi® [F ¥ ¥ & 56 4 -
AKX - MERATELE - BHEEERBERZTHRR AR
Belbroughton i A 2 % 5651,882, 278 i {0 A #Ezs ©

2. Spinnaker Capital Limited }2Spinnaker Asset Management—
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Connected Transaction

The Group had the following connected transaction, certain details of which
were disclosed in compliance with the requirements of the Listing Rules.

HK$75 million 6% Convertible Notes Subscription Agreement

On 5 July 2011, the Company entered into a subscription agreement with
Asia Financial Holdings Limited (“AFHL") and Asia Insurance Company,
Limited (“AICL") (AICL is a subsidiary of AFHL which is controlled by the
associates of Mr. CHAN Bernard Charnwut, the non-executive director of the
Company) whereby the Company agreed to issue and AFHL and AICL agreed
to subscribe the HK$50 million and HK$25 million 6% convertible note (“2011
Convertible Notes”) with maturity date falling 36 months from the date of issue
of the 2011 Convertible Notes respectively. Pursuant to the term of the 2011
Convertible Notes, the holder of the 2011 Convertible Notes can convert the
2011 Convertible Notes at the conversion price of HK$1.10 per share. The
principal amount of HK$35 million (HK$25 million for AFHL and HK$10 million
for AICL) of the 2011 Convertible Notes shall be compulsorily converted at the
conversion price of HK$1.10 within seven business days if the closing price per
share is HK$1.10 or higher for ten consecutive trading days during the period
from the issue day of the 2011 Convertible Notes up to five business days prior
to the maturity date. This transaction was approved by the shareholders at the
extraordinary general meeting of the Company on 16 September 2011. The
2011 Convertible Notes were issued on 30 September 2011. The subscription
price of the 2011 Convertible Notes has been applied by the Company to setoff
part of the amount for redemption of the HK$75 million 5% convertible notes
issued by the Company on 15 October 2007.

Related Party Transactions

The Group entered into certain transactions with parties regarded as “Related
Parties” under applicable accounting principles. These mainly relate to
contracts entered into by the Group in the ordinary course of business, which
contracts were negotiated on normal commercial terms and on an arm’s length
basis.

The related party transactions as described in note 34 to the financial
statements constitute continuing connected transactions of the Company
exempt from the reporting, announcement and independent shareholders’
approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Directors’ Interest in Competing Business

During the year, the interests of Directors in the businesses which compete or
are likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the
Group as required to be disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules were as follows:

Family members of Mr. C.F. TAO, Chairman of the Company including
Mr. TAO Richard, Vice Chairman beneficially owned two villas in Suzhou of a
total gross floor area of approximately 770.76 sq.m. developed by a subsidiary
of the Company which may constitute a competing business to the Group.

Mr. C.F. TAO and his spouse, Mrs. TAO POON Lai Yew Nancy executed a non-
competition deed on 16 November 2005 (the “Deed”). Mr. and Mrs. C.F. TAO
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EEEWE
Corporate Governance

A report on the principal corporate governance practices adopted by the
Company is set out on pages 27 to 36 of this report.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s total issued share
capital was held by the public during the year ended 31 December 2012 and
up to the date of this report.

Auditor

The financial statements in respect of financial year ended 31 December 2009
were audited by Grant Thornton (“GTHK”), now known as JBPB & Co. Due to
a merger of the business of GTHK and BDO Limited (“BDO”) to practise in the
name of BDO as announced on 15 December 2010, GTHK resigned and BDO
was appointed as auditor of the Company effective from 15 December 2010.
The financial statements for the years ended 31 December 2010 and 2011
were audited by BDO.

A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company to re-appoint BDO as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

TAOCHAIFU Choofuang (C.F. Tao)
Chairman

Hong Kong, 21 March 2013
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The Company is committed to the establishment of good corporate practices
and procedures. The corporate governance principles of the Company
emphasise a quality board, transparency and accountability to all shareholders
of the Company.

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group complied with all
the code provisions as set out in the Code on Corporate Governance Practices
(from 1 January 2012 to 31 March 2012) and Corporate Governance Code (from
1 April 2012 to 31 December 2012) (the “Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The Board will continue to monitor and review the Group’s corporate
governance practices to ensure compliance with the Code.

Board of Directors
Board Composition

The Board comprises five executive directors, one non-executive director and
three independent non-executive directors. All five executive directors are
members of the executive committee of the Company responsible for dealing
with the business of the Company in accordance with all applicable rules and
regulations, including but not limited to, the Listing Rules. All Directors (including
independent non-executive directors) have been consulted on all major and
material matters of the Company.

The Board members for the year ended 31 December 2012 were:

Executive Directors

Mr. TAOCHAIFU Choofuang (Chairman)
Mr. TAO Richard (Vice Chairman)

Mr. TAO Paul (Managing Director)

Mr. KONG Mui Sum Lawrence

Mr. YIM Chun Leung

Non-Executive Director
Mr. CHAN Bernard Charnwut

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. WONG Gary Ka Wai

Mr. SUN Leland Li Hsun

Mr. CHAN Norman Enrique

The number of independent non-executive directors meets the requirements
under the Listing Rules and Mr. WONG Gary Ka Wai has the appropriate
accounting professional qualification. The Company has appointed a Managing
Director instead of a chief executive officer.

The positions of the Chairman and the Managing Director are held separately by
two executive directors to ensure their respective independence, accountability
and responsibility. The Chairman is responsible for determining overall business
strategies of the Group. The duty of the Chairman is to work closely with audit,
nomination and remuneration committee of the Company and to ensure
that all key and appropriate issues are discussed by the Board in a timely
and constructive manner. The Managing Director is responsible for general
management of the Group. The Managing Director is also responsible to work
closely with the executive committee of the Company to ensure management
strategies, plans and performance of the Group are appropriately represented
to the Board and to provide guidance to the Board on major issues.
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TEERHE
Board of Directors (Contd)

Board Composition (Cont'd)

The Board is responsible for corporate strategy, annual and interim results,
succession planning, risk management, major acquisitions, disposals and
capital transactions, and other significant operational and financial matters.
Major corporate matters that are specially delegated by the Board to the
management include the preparation of annual and interim accounts for Board
approval before public reporting, execution of business strategies and initiatives
adopted by the Board, implementation of adequate systems of internal controls
and risk management procedures, and compliance with relevant statutory
requirements and rules and regulations.

Mr. TAOCHAIFU Choofuang (C.F. TAO), the Chairman of the Company,
is the father of Mr. TAO Richard, the Vice Chairman of the Company, and
Mr. TAO Paul, Managing Director of the Company. Further details of the
Directors are set out on pages 15 to 17 under the section headed “Biographical
Details of Directors and Senior Management” of this report.

Each of the independent non-executive directors has made an annual
confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company is of the view that all independent non-executive directors meet the
independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and are
independent in accordance with the terms of the guidelines. The non-executive
director and all the independent non-executive directors have contracts with
the Company for a period of three years commencing from 14 November 2011
which may be terminated by either party by giving one month’s written
notice and subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years in
accordance with the articles of association of the Company.

All the minutes of the Board meeting are kept by the company secretary and
are available for inspection by the Directors and auditor of the Company.

Attendance Record at Board Meetings

For the year ended 31 December 2012, five full Board meetings were held to
review the business of the Group and approve the financial results of the Group.
The attendance of individual members at the meetings of the Board are set out
as follows:
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Meetings attended/Number of Meeting held
HESERY BTERAY

Executive Director BITEE

Mr. TAOCHAIFU Choofuang (Chairman) MREEEE(ERE)
Mr. TAO Richard (Vice Chairman) BRI E(BIEE)
Mr. TAO Paul (Managing Director) PRI I (B FABAETE)
Mr. KONG Mui Sum Lawrence IRRER LA

Mr. YIM Chun Leung BB A
Non-Executive Director FHITEE

Mr. CHAN Bernard Charnwut RS B AE
Independent Non-Executive Director BUHHTEE

Mr. WONG Gary Ka Wai FRERE

Mr. SUN Leland Li Hsun BB

Mr. CHAN Norman Enrique PREE ST AE

5/5
4/5
5/5
5/5
5/5

5/5

5/5
5/5
5/5
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Board of Directors (Contd)
Attendance Record at Board Meetings (Cont’d)

Directors have access to relevant and timely information, and they can ask for
further information or retain independent professional advisors if necessary.
They also have access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary,
who is responsible for providing Directors with Board papers and related
materials and ensuring that Board procedures are followed. Directors are given
sufficient time for discussion at the Board meetings. Where queries are raised
by Directors, prompt and full responses will be given if possible.

Directors’ Insurance

The Company has arranged appropriate directors and officers liability insurance
in respect of legal action against Directors.

Training for Directors

Newly appointed Directors receive comprehensive, formal and tailored
induction on their appointments, so as to ensure that they have appropriate
understanding of the business and operations of the Group and that they are
fully aware of their responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules and
relevant regulatory requirements. There are also arrangements in place for
providing continuing briefing and professional development to Directors at the
Company’s expenses whenever necessary.

Pursuant to Code A.6.5 (which is effective from 1 April 2012), Directors
should participate in continuous professional development to develop
and refresh their knowledge and skills. This is to ensure that their
contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant. During the
year, all Directors, namely Mr. TAOCHAIFU Choofuang, Mr. TAO Richard,
Mr. TAO Paul, Mr. KONG Mui Sum Lawrence, Mr. YIM Chun Leung,
Mr. CHAN Bernard Charnwut, Mr. WONG Gary Ka Wai, Mr. SUN Leland Li Hsun
and Mr. CHAN Norman Enrique, have participated in appropriate continuous
professional development activities by ways of attending trainings, reading
materials or conducting academic research relevant to the Company’s business
or to the Directors’ duties and responsibilities.
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Model Code for Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix 10 of
the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding directors’ securities
transactions. The obligation to follow the Listing Rules is set out in the terms of
the service contracts of each executive director and the letters of appointment
of the non-executive director and each independent non-executive director.
Having made specific enquiry of all the Directors, the Directors confirmed that
they have complied with the required standard as set out in the Model Code for
the year ended 31 December 2012.

Board Committees

The Company currently have four committees, namely, the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee and Executive Committee,
for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. Terms of reference
of the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee
are available on the websites of the Company (www.nh-holdings.com) and the
Stock Exchange (www.hkex.com.hk). The Board committees are provided with
sufficient resources to discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are
able to seek independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at
the Company’s expenses.

Audit Committee

The Company established an Audit Committee on 14 November 2005 with
terms of reference in compliance with the Code. The Audit Committee consists
of independent non-executive directors only.

The members of the Audit Committee are as follows:

Mr. WONG Gary Ka Wai (Chairman)
Mr. SUN Leland Li Hsun
Mr. CHAN Norman Enrique

Mr. WONG Gary Ka Wai, who possesses a professional accounting qualification
and relevant accounting experience, is the chairman of the Audit Committee.
No member of the Audit Committee is a member of the former or existing
auditor of the Company.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to review and approve the
financial reporting process and internal control systems of the Group. During
the year, the Audit Committee has reviewed the Group’s interim result for
the six months ended 30 June 2012. The Group’s final results for the year
ended 31 December 2012 have been reviewed by the members of the
Audit Committee before submission to the Board for approval. The Audit
Committee was of the opinion that the preparation of such results complied
with the applicable accounting standards and requirements and that adequate
disclosure have been made. In December 2012, the Audit Committee has also
reviewed the Group’s internal control review report prepared by an external
independent professional consultant.
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Board Committees (Cont'd)
Audit Committee (Cont'd)

Three meetings of the Audit Committee were held during the year. The
attendance of each member is set out as follows:

Name of member
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Meeting attended/Number of Meeting held
HESERE BTERAE

REEE

Mr. WONG Gary Ka Wai FRERE
Mr. SUN Leland Li Hsun F B E
Mr. CHAN Norman Enrique FREEST ST

Nomination Committee

The Company established a Nomination Committee on 14 November 2005
with terms of reference in compliance with the Code. The members of the
Nomination Committee include one executive director and two independent
non-executive directors.

The members of the Nomination Committee are as follows:

Mr. CHAN Norman Enrique (Chairman)
Mr. SUN Leland Li Hsun
Mr. TAO Paul

The primary duty of the Nomination Committee is making recommendations to
the Board on appointment and removal of directors and management of Board
succession. No director was appointed or removed during the year.

The Nomination Committee has considered the past performance, qualification,
general market conditions and the Company’s articles of association in selecting
and recommending directors for retirement by rotation and re-election.

The Nomination Committee resolved that all the existing directors should be
recommended to be retained by the Company. Further, in accordance with the
Company'’s articles of association, Mr. TAOCHAIFU Choofuang, Mr. TAO Paul
and Mr. WONG Gary Ka Wai would retire, and being eligible, would offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company.

One meeting of the Nomination Committee was held during the year. The
attendance of each member is set out as follows:

Name of member
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Mr. CHAN Norman Enrique PREE S
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Remuneration Committee

The Company established a Remuneration Committee on 14 November 2005
with terms of reference in compliance with the Code. The Remuneration
Committee consists of one executive director and two independent
non-executive directors.

The members of the Remuneration Committee are as follows:

Mr. SUN Leland Li Hsun (Chairman)
Mr. CHAN Norman Enrique
Mr. TAO Richard

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are to review and determine
the terms of remuneration packages, bonuses and other compensation payable
to Directors and senior management.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee considered and reviewed the
existing terms of remuneration of all the Directors based on a benchmarking
review performed by an independent remuneration consultant. The Company
has adopted the model whereby the Remuneration Committee also determines
the remuneration packages of individual executive directors. The Remuneration
Committee considered factors including salaries paid by comparable
companies, time commitment and responsibilities of the Directors, employment
conditions elsewhere in the Group and desirability of performance-based
remuneration. The Remuneration Committee considered that the existing
terms of remunerations of the Directors were fair and reasonable. Details of the
remuneration of the directors for the year ended 31 December 2012 are set out
in note 33 to the financial statements.

One meeting of the Remuneration Committee was held during the year. The
attendance of each member is set out as follows:

Name of member
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Meeting attended/Number of Meeting held
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Mr. SUN Leland Li Hsun AV bt
Mr. CHAN Norman Enrique PR S STST A
Mr. TAO Richard PRI &

Executive Committee

The Board has delegated to the Executive Committee the authority of dealing
with the operational matters of the Group, save for those matters which are
reserved for the Board’s decision and approval pursuant to the written terms
of reference, which includes taking in charge of major decision making in
relation to the day-to-day business operations of the Company, administering
the Company’s routine resolutions and dealing with adhoc matters, ensuring
adequate funding and reporting periodically to the Board. The Executive
Committee consists of five executive directors and assumes full accountability
to the Board for all operation of the Group.

171
171
171
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Board Committees (Conta)
Executive Committee (Cont’d)

To comply with the requirement under the Code in respect of the responsibilities
for performing the corporate governance duties, the Board has delegated its
responsibilities to the Executive Committee to develop, review and monitor
the policies and practices on corporate governance of the Group and make
recommendations to the Board, to review and monitor the Company’s policies
and practices on the legal and regulatory compliance, to review and monitor the
code of conduct and ethical behavior applicable to the Directors and employees
and the training and continuous professional development of Directors and
senior management, and to review the Company’s compliance with the Code
and disclosures in the corporate governance report.

Sixteen meetings of the Executive Committee were held during the year. The
attendance record of each member is set out as follows:

Name of member

Corporate Governance Report
TEERME

BEEZEE®H)
HITEE"(E)

REATANAHRTEEERBREZRT EFREM
WOTZESRERR B RERAKEOEE R ZHE
EER  TREERRHER R RERARREEST
FRMEERENEMNBRELRER R MEFERRE
EREEMRTEANMERTANEERSMEEARN
BRI EEEER AR AR REST TR ER R
FEREERRENNRE -

RERAFREELBRATNANTEZESSH - BUKEZ
HEBEREINMT -

Meeting attended/Number of Meeting held
HESBREBITEBRAE

REEB
Mr. TAOCHAIFU Choofuang (Chairman) WL E(EE)
Mr. TAO Richard (Vice Chairman) MR EE (BIEE)

Mr. TAO Paul (Managing Director) Ve S5 1EL 50 A (B S ARACHE )
Mr. KONG Mui Sum Lawrence TIRRFRTTAE
Mr. YIM Chun Leung BiRSe 5T A

The Executive Committee reviewed the Company’s compliance with the Code
and the regulatory and statutory requirements during the year under review,
and the disclosures of this corporate governance report.

Internal Control

The Board has overall responsibility for the system of internal controls of
the Company and for reviewing its effectiveness. The Board is committed to
implementing an effective and sound internal controls system to safeguard the
interests of shareholders and the Group'’s assets. The Board has delegated to
the management the implementation of the system of internal controls and
the review of all relevant financial, operational, compliance controls and risk
management function within an established framework.

During the year under review, the Company engaged an external independent
professional consultant to review the effectiveness of certain of the Group’s
system of internal controls. Relevant applicable recommendations made by the
consultant in the previous year have already been implemented in stages by the
Group to further enhance its internal control policies, procedures and practices.

16/16
16/16
16/16
16/16
14/16
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TEERHE

Shareholders’ Rights

1.

Convening an extraordinary general meeting (“EGM”)

One or more shareholders holding, at the date of deposit of the
requisition, not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company
having the right of voting at general meetings can deposit a written
request to convene an EGM at the principal place of business of the
Company in Hong Kong (“Hong Kong Office”), for the attention of the
Board or the Company Secretary. If within 21 days of such deposit of
the requisition, the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the
requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner,
and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result
of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by
the Company.

The notice period to be given to all the registered shareholders in respect
of the EGM varies according to the nature of the proposal as follows:

- At least 14 clear days’ notice (the notice period must include 10
clear business days) in writing if no special resolution is to be
considered at the EGM.

- At least 21 clear days’ notice (the notice period must include
10 clear business days) in writing if a special resolution is to be
considered at the EGM.

Right to put forward proposals at general meetings

There are no provisions allowing shareholders to move new resolutions at
the general meetings under the Cayman Islands Companies Law (2011
Revision) or the articles of association of the Company. Shareholders
who wish to move a resolution may request the Company to convene an
EGM as stipulated in above paragraph 1.

Right to propose a person for election as a director

If a shareholder of the Company wishes to nominate a person other than
a retiring Director or a person recommended by the Board to stand for
election as a Director of the Company, the shareholder concerned shall
lodge with the Company (for the attention of the Company Secretary)
at the Hong Kong Office or at the Company’s branch share registrar in
Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited, a duly signed nomination
form which includes, inter alia, the intention to propose that person for
election as a Director, notice in writing by that person of his willingness
to be elected, and the information required by the Listing Rules.

The period for lodgement of the nomination form will commence no
earlier than the day after the dispatch of the notice of the general
meeting appointed for such election and end no later than 7 days prior to
the date of such general meeting and the minimum length of the period
during which the nomination form and associated documents may be
given to the Company will be at least 7 days.

Right to put enquiry to the Board

Shareholders have the right to put enquiries to the Board. All enquiries
must be in writing with contact information of the person making the
enquiry and deposited at the Hong Kong Office for the attention of the
Company Secretary.

Detailed procedures can be found in the document entitled “Shareholders’ Rights”
which is available on the Company’s website.
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Communication with Shareholders

The Chairman of the Board and chairmen of the committees of the Board
attended the annual general meeting of the Company held on 15 May 2012 to
attend to and answer questions and proposals raised by the shareholders of the
Company thereat. Details of Directors’ attendance record of general meeting(s)
during the year ended 31 December 2012 are as follows:

Corporate Governance Report
TEERME

R REEE

EXQIRNEFEGLZEGIEHEHEAQAR
TE-—FRATHARTOHRBEFRE - WORAR
AIRERPAG EWRM - BE-T——F+-A=+—H
IEFER - ERHFERRAGNFENT

Meeting attended/Number of Meeting held
HESRRYBITERRE

Executive Director BITEE

Mr. TAOCHAIFU Choofuang (Chairman) BT (FE) 171
Mr. TAO Richard (Vice Chairman) BRI (BIERE) 171
Mr. TAO Paul (Managing Director) PRIGIEL I A (E FAR AT FE) 1n
Mr. KONG Mui Sum Lawrence IR 1n
Mr. YIM Chun Leung S8 rip et 1/1
Non-Executive Director FHITEE

Mr. CHAN Bernard Charnwut PR BT AE 11
Independent Non-Executive Director BUHHTESE

Mr. WONG Gary Ka Wai ITRERE 171
Mr. SUN Leland Li Hsun R BN AE 1/1
Mr. CHAN Norman Enrique PREEST ST 11

Investor Relationship and Communication

The Company strives to achieve a high level of transparency in communicating
with shareholders and the investment community at large. Briefings and
meetings with institutional investors and analysts are conducted at opportune
times. The Company is committed to continuing to maintain an open and
effective investor communication policy and to update investors on relevant
information on its business in a timely manner, subject to relevant regulatory
requirements. In order to ensure effective, clear and accurate communications
with the investors and analysts, all corporate communications are arranged
and handled by the executive directors with the assistance of an independent
corporate communication firm and designated senior executives according
to established practices and procedures of the Company. The Company has
announced results of the year under review in a timely manner. The Group
redesigned and launched a refreshed corporate website during the year under
review through the services of a well-qualified digital agent, further enhancing
communication channels with our investor community.

Constitutional Documents

At the annual general meeting held on 15 May 2012, amendments to the
articles of association of the Company were approved by the shareholders of the
Company, mainly to bring the articles of association of the Company in line with
certain recent changes to the Listing Rules. An updated version of the articles
of association of the Company is available on the websites of the Company and
the Stock Exchange.
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Directors’ and Auditor’s Responsibhilities for the Financial
Statements

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of financial statements
which give a true and fair view. In preparing such financial statements, it is
fundamental that appropriate accounting policies are selected and applied
consistently.

The auditor’s responsibility is to express an independent opinion, based on
their audit, on those financial statements and to report their opinion to the
shareholders of the Company, as a body, and for no other purpose. The auditor
does not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of the independent auditor’s report.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the preparation of the
financial statements for each financial year which give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Group and of results and cash flows for that year. In
preparing the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2012,
the Directors have selected suitable accounting policies and applied them
consistently; adopted appropriate Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and Hong Kong Accounting Standards and Interpretations; made adjustments
and estimates that are prudent and reasonable; and have prepared the financial
statements on the going concern basis. The Directors also ensure the timely
publication of the financial statements of the Group.

Auditor’'s Remuneration
The fee in respect of audit and non-audit services provided to the Group by

independent auditor for the year ended 31 December 2012 amounted to
HK$1,280,000 and HK$634,000 respectively.
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Tel: +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

|IBDO

E i 0 +8522218 8288
f5H : +8522815 2239

www.bdo.com.hk

To the shareholders of New Heritage Holdings Ltd.
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of New Heritage
Holdings Ltd. (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (together “the Group”)
set out on pages 39 to 123, which comprise the consolidated and company
statements of financial position as at 31 December 2012, and the consolidated
income statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with the terms of our engagement, and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’'s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the
directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

BDO Limited
ERIUEASGHMEBRARAR

Independent Auditor’s Report

38 M B B R

25 Floor Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central
Hong Kong
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Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31 December 2012
and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BDO Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Yu Tsui Fong
Practising Certificate Number: P05440

Hong Kong, 21 March 2013
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE-_Z——HF4+_A=+—HILFE

Consolidated Income Statement

mElER

2012 2011
—E——-F —ZT—%F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
iz FExT FHT
Revenue U & 7 272,102 375,182
Cost of sales SHER (223,202) (318,494)
Gross profit ER 48,900 56,688
Other income E AU A 7 4,736 10,990
Selling expenses HEMK (10,154) (13,848)
Administrative expenses 1THAX (55,548) (43,523)
Fair value adjustments on investment properties REMENAABERAE 15 22,337 8,400
Gain on disposal of investment properties HEREYENIREE 2,471 835
Finance costs BEKAR 8 (1,937) (6,205)
Share of results of associates i NE 20,417 18,500
Loss on extinguishment of convertible notes SREH AT AR IR A 1R 27 — (829)
Profit before income tax BREFSH AT BT 9 31,228 31,008
Income tax expense S fiF sz 10 (15,730) (20,131)
Profit for the year FEEF 15,498 10,877
Profit for the year attributable to: LT ATRIEFEERR :
Owners of the Company ViN/NC] )3 8,208 12,163
Non-controlling interests Elaayiy ey 7,290 (1,286)
15,498 10,877
Earnings per share attributable to the owners FRERATRREM.
of the Company during the year SRER 12 HK cents HK cents
4l A Il
- Basic —&ExK 0.64 0.95
— Diluted —#8 0.64 0.95
FRERERAT —T——FEH 39



Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

A LI& A2 2% For the year ended 31 December 2012
15% S H &= BE-T-——&+-A=t—HIEE
2012 2011
—E-—f —E——%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Profit for the year FERF 15,498 10,877
Other comprehensive income Hib2EUWA
Exchange gain on translation of financial statements P B O ZE 75 1 B 7S S 7 O BEE Ui
of foreign operations 8,148 38,611
Share of exchange gain on translation of financial statements JE{G# & —REE: & A T
of an associate B R aR A B 5 e 908 5,499
Share of revaluation surplus of an associate’s hotel property — fE{5 —FEEt & A REE X B H AL 4,014 2,465
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax FEHMEEBRA IEHER) 13,070 46,575
Total comprehensive income for the year FEZHEKRAHALE 28,568 57,452
Total comprehensive income attributable to: UTATEAZERALE :
Owners of the Company VA/NET] 35 19,631 50,768
Non-controlling interests e 8,937 6,684
28,568 57,452
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As at 31 December 2012
R_T——F+=-A=+—H

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e PR wR

2012 2011
—E——F —T——F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Kt FHExT FAET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEREE
Non-current assets FEREBEE
Goodwill [EES 13 37,048 37,048
Property, plant and equipment mE - WEREE 14 49,359 60,904
Investment properties WEYE 15 304,594 297,340
Interests in associates PREEE A R 17 137,402 134,306
Deferred tax assets BERIBEE 18 167 2,011
528,570 531,609
Current assets REBEE
Properties held under development BRERAPYE 19 418,816 446,056
Properties held for sale FEYE 20 294,334 284,086
Inventories FE 21 65 74
Accounts receivable FEURBR X 22 139 84
Deposits paid, prepayments and other receivables B fH1&% ~ B FIE [ B e U 0B 23 32,486 48,952
Tax recoverable AT EI R R 12,338 1,294
Restricted bank deposits SRR FISRI TR 31 38,876 92,860
Cash and cash equivalents BeRRESEEY 32 290,999 265,725
1,088,053 1,139,131
Total assets BWEE 1,616,623 1,670,740
Current liabilities RENEE
Accounts payable FEREREX 24 92,197 89,865
Accruals, deposits received and other payables FEEHER  2WiRe RE M ENRIA 25 135,810 89,484
Borrowings (3= 26 219,527 187,247
447,534 366,596
Net current assets REEERE 640,519 772,535
Total assets less current liabilities HWEERRBERE 1,169,089 1,304,144
Non-current liabilities ERBAE
Borrowings BE 26 19,771 190,654
Convertible notes EIEA I E S 27 74,350 69,675
Deferred tax liabilities BEEFIBAE 18 47,347 40,691
141,468 301,020
Total liabilities weE 589,002 667,616
NET ASSETS EEFE 1,027,621 1,003,124
EQUITY fE=
Capital and reserves attributable to the owners NN B IR R B PR AN K kA
of the Company
Share capital REAR 28 12,854 12,845
Reserves i 30(a) 915,542 895,341
Proposed final dividend FbR AR HARR B 11 2,571 3,854
930,967 912,040
Non-controlling interests FERER 96,654 91,084
TOTAL EQUITY A 1,027,621 1,003,124
TAO Richard TAO Paul
PR3 G EZECS
Director Director
EF 2
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Statement of Financial Position

B BRI R &

As at 31 December 2012
N_E——F+-A=+—H

2012 2011
—E——F —T——%
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
BiaE FET FAxT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEREE
Non-current assets FEREBEE
Investments in subsidiaries R B A RRIE 16(a) 133,936 132,483
Current assets REBEE
Prepayments FEf IR 327 390
Amounts due from subsidiaries AN NG E/S ] 16(b) 471,811 469,616
Cash and cash equivalents HERRESEEY 32 1,003 5,353
473,141 475,359
Total assets HBE 607,077 607,842
Current liabilities REBARS
Accruals and other payables FEEHE A R H b FEAT K18 4,898 8,205
Amount due to a subsidiary FEf—REIF B A B FKIE 16(b) 181 =
Financial guarantee contracts MISRIREH 36 1,591 1,259
6,670 9,464
Net current assets REEEFE 466,471 465,895
Total assets less current liabilities HWEERARBERS 600,407 598,378
Non-current liability FREBEE
Convertible notes AR Z= 15 27 74,350 69,675
74,350 69,675
Total liabilities HweE 81,020 79,139
NET ASSETS EEFE 526,057 528,703
EQUITY =
Capital and reserves attributable to the owners AT RREERAER EE
of the Company
Share capital & 28 12,854 12,845
Reserves #E 30(b) 510,632 512,004
Proposed final dividend FRAREAR S 11 2,571 3,854
TOTAL EQUITY ERAE 526,057 528,703

TAO Richard
FIRHT
Director

EZE

TAO Paul
W 85 4

Director

EBEFE
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended 31 December 2012 — =
BE-T——ST-A=+—BLEE gﬁ%é}ﬁﬁﬁ%%
2012 2011
—E——F —ZT—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Cash flows from operating activities RETHNESRE
Profit before income tax BRPTIS AR & A 31,228 31,008
Adjustments for: FEIER -
Depreciation e 3,289 4,722
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment &Y% - BiE &R ENEE 8,174 15
Gain on disposal of investment properties HEREYENIRES (2,477) (835)
Fair value adjustments on investment properties REMENARBERAE (22,337) (8,400)
Equity-settled employee share-based payments Ak 5 E AR D SRR B 3R 2,947 -
Share of results of associates FEIGEEE A RIZEE (20,417) (18,500)
Loss on extinguishment of convertible notes Vaskic EIEEAY €27 4: 0] 5t = 829
Impairment loss on amount due from an associate  FEUX— B & A RIRIEH R E & 1B 192 =
Impairment loss on other receivables H b EYGRIE R R E B R 1,602 =
Impairment loss on properties held for sales FEMENBEEE 759 1,507
Interest income B A (3,325) (6,005)
Interest expenses FBFAZ 1,937 6,205
Operating profit before working capital changes RETEEESBHHICERT 1,572 10,546
Decrease/(increase) in properties held under BRAYENGEME
development and properties held for sale B (3 ) 42,196 (15,444)
Decrease in inventories FERD 9 4
Increase in accounts receivable FEUBR FR3E 0N (55) (43)
Decrease/(increase) in deposits paid, prepayments B 3% & - T 2B & E A
and other receivables FEMGRIER D, (35 A0) 14,864 (16,617)
Increase in accounts payable, accruals, deposits FERNTBETR - FEETER Wiz e R
received and other payables HoAth e (- FRIEE 0 48,658 19,484
Cash generated from/(used in) operations KRETHEE(FFANES 107,244 (2,070)
Interest paid BFIE (10,598) (15,938)
Income taxes paid BRI (18,636) (23,943)
Net cash generated from/(used in) operating activities &% SEEELE (FIBA)NWHRLTEH 78,010 (41,951)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (continuea)

A AL N~ —1 % B For the year ended 31 December 2012
?5% (= Iﬁﬁulbz (%) HE-—2——f+-A=+—BIEFE
2012 2011
—E-—f —E——%F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
BiaE FET FAxT
Cash flows from investing activities RETHNESRE

Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEME  WEMRE (295) (292)

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and HEWE . MENRESHRIE

equipment 173 75
Proceeds from sale of investment properties HEREYEEHRIE 20,017 10,771
Dividends received from an associate I ER—EHE A AR AR B 22,051 16,915
Interest received BHFIE 3,325 6,005
Decrease/(increase) in restricted bank deposits SREEITETORLD,(#h0) 53,984 (74,148)
Net cash generated from/(used in) investing activities REFHEL (FTR)NWHRLTE 99,255 (40,674)
Cash flows from financing activities METENESRE
Proceeds from issuance of share capital TIPS I 203 1,129
Proceeds from new borrowings IEEERERIE 32,000 56,077
Repayments of borrowings BEEE (173,074) (122,791)
Interest paid on convertible notes BT E RS (4,513) (3,940)
Transaction costs on issue of convertible notes BT EBRNR SR - (6,555)
Dividends paid to Company’s owners ERARERRRE (3,854) (6,393)
Dividends paid to a non-controlling shareholder of B ff—RIMBA RN —%

a subsidiary AR AR R AR B (3,367) -
Net cash used in financing activities METEFMANRSFE (152,605) (82,473)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents BE&RELZEYEM (R ) BE 24,660 (165,098)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and EXSHHESRRSESEYNTE

cash equivalents 614 8,715
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January R—A—BANEREERREEEY 265,725 422,108
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December R+ZBA=+—HHNEREER

HEeEEY 32 290,999 265,725
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
 E_E——F+-_RA=+—HILFE

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Attributable to owners of the Company

RRARREER

Hotel
property,
Convertible plant and
Share notes equipment Proposed Non-
Share Share option equity Merger revaluation  Exchange  Statutory  Retained final controlling Total
capital  premium TeServes  Teserves Teserve Teserve reserve reserve profits ~ dividend Total interests equity
B BEE
BhE EBEs HRRxE R FER
BE RAEE GifE fE  A0EE ZARE ELRE EERE  RERN REERS & Br  ERLE
HK$000  HK$000  HKPO00  HK$000  HKS000  HKSO000  HKS000  HK$000  HKSO000  HK$OOO  HK$000  HKS000  HK$O000
Thr TR TE#L TEL TEL TEL Thr Thr ThT Thr TR TiEn T
Balance as at 1 January 2011 RZ5—%-f-B
ity 12786 487331 1,968 3011 89,936 16811 8,339 8173 131,78 6393 866,536 8,759 94929
2010 final dividend paid BRZS-TERERE = = = - = = = = - (6,393) (6,393) = (6,393)
Fair value adjustment on initial YRR S E
recognition of loans from non- RETRAEESE
controlling shareholders - - - - - - - - - - - 1641 1,641
Arising from issLie of ordinary RITHFERIERST
shares on exercise of share options — EEIRMEE(A77228)
(note 28) 59 1,070 - - - - - - - - 1,129 - 1,129
Transfer (note 28) B (Wi28) - %7 (257) = = = - - - = = = =
59 1327 (257) = = = = = - (6,393) (5,264) 1,641 (3,623)
Profitfor the year EREA - = = = - - - - 12163 - I8 12 1087
Other comprehensive income Efp2EMA
Exchange gain on translation of BERNERMEFRRAN
financial statements of EiNaE
foreign operations - - - - - - 30,641 - - - 30,641 7970 38611
Share of exchange gain on translation  E{E 22 —EEE A A
of financial statements of an SRR ME s
associate - - - - - - 5499 - - - 5499 - 5499
Share of revaluation surplus of fEfh—FBENRIBIENE
an associate’s hotel property BB - - - - - 2,465 - - - - 2,465 = 2465
Redemption of convertible notes BOTERER - - - 2111) - - - - 2,111 - - - -
Total comprehensive income EE2ANALE
for the year - - = (2,111) - 2465 36,140 - 14274 - 50,768 6,684 57452
Transfer B - - - - - - - 486 (486) - - - -
Share of an associate’s statutory il —HBEARATRHE
reserve - - - - - - - 2410 (2,410) - - - -
Release Upon expiry of vested share B BRI IES i ke
options - - (1,711 - - - - - 1,711 - - - -
Proposed final dividend (note 11)  #ERERE(HZ11) - - - - - - - = (3,854) 3854 = = =
Balance as at 31 December 2011 R=F——&
TZA=+—-REEE 12845 488664 - 900 89,936 192716 124479 31,069 141017 3804 912,040 91,084 1,003,124
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (continued)

MEEREER

Attributable to owners of the Company

For the year ended 31 December 2012

HE_ZT——F+A=+—HILFE

RARIRR B R
Hotel
property,
Convertible plant and
Share notes equipment Proposed Non-
Share Share option equity Merger revaluation  Exchange  Statutory  Retained final controlling Total
capital  premium Teserves reserves reserve reserve reserve reserve profits ~ dividend Total interests equity
Mk BETE
BiE RBER R RE iR R
Rx R&EE & BE AfEE EREE EXER  AEHE  RERY KBRS &5 B EalE
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HKS000  HKBOOO  HKP000  HKF000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$O000  HKS000  HK$000
Thr ThT TEL Thr TR TE#L TR TEL TEL ThT ThT THL Thr
Balance as at 1 January 2012 R=E-—F-F—AR
&8 12,845 488,664 - 900 89,936 19276 124479 31,069 141,017 3854 912,040 91,084 1,003,124
2011 final divicend paid BRZE——ERERE = = = = = = = - - (3854)  (3854) = (3,854)
Dividend paid toa non-controling 2 —ZEERBEERS
shareholder - - - - - - - - - - - (3,367) (3,367)
Equity-settled employee share-based  AEREERA T
payments (note 29) EETEMF29) - - 2,947 - - - - - - - 2,947 = 2,947
Arising from issue of ordinary R RRESST
shares on exercise of share options SRR £ (H/a228)
(note 28) 9 194 - - - - - - - - 203 - 203
Transfer (note 28) BE(Hi128) - 76 (16) - - - - - - - - - -
9 210 2871 - - - - - - (3,854) (T04) (3367 (4,071)
Profit for the year FERF o = = = = = = = 8,208 o 8,208 7,290 15,498
Other comprehensive income Eh2ERA
Exchange gain on translation of BERNERRBSEERD
financial statements of 36
foreign operations - - - - - - 6,501 - - - 6,501 1,647 8,148
Share of exchange gain on translation  fE{E 8 — RS A RIE)
of financial statements of BIBRRME L ha
an associate - - - - - - 908 - - - 908 - 908
Share of revaluation surplus of iR AAEENE
an associate’s hotel property EXRY - - - - = 4,014 = = = = 4,014 = 4,014
Total comprehensive income EE2ARAEE
for the year - - - - - 4014 7,409 - 8,208 - 19,631 8,937 28,568
Transfer EET - - - - - - - 388 (388) - - - -
Share of an associate’s statutory Eih-REE AR EERE
reserve - - - - - - - 2,686 (2,686) - - - -
Proposed final dividend (nofe 11)  4RERERE (Hitil) - - - - - - - - (2,5M) 2571 - - _
Balance as at 31 Decemher 2012 R-B--%
TZA=t-ANEE 12,854 488,934 2871 900 89,936 23290 131,888 34,143 143580 2511 930,967 96,654 1,027,621
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2012

s—= —

E-T-——F+-A=+—HIFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted
company with limited liability. The Company’s shares are listed on the
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”).

The address of the Company’s registered office and principal place of
business are Clifton House, 75 Fort Street, P.O. Box 1350 GT, George
Town, Grand Cayman, Cayman Islands and Room 2301, 23/F, Fortis
Tower, 77-79 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong respectively.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and the
principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out in note 16(a) to the
financial statements.

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2012 were
approved for issue by the board of directors on 21 March 2013.

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs™)

(a) Adoption of amendments to HKFRSs — first effective on 1 January
2012

In the current year, the Group has applied for the first time the
following amendments issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”), which are relevant
to and effective for the Group’s financial statements for the annual
year beginning on 1 January 2012:

Amendments to HKFRS 7 Disclosures — Transfers of
Financial Assets

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax — Recovery of
Underlying Assets

As explained below, the adoption of these amendments to
HKFRSs has no material impact on the Group’s financial
statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 7 — Disclosures — Transfers of Financial
Assets

The amendments to HKFRS 7 improve the disclosure
requirements for transfer transactions of financial assets and allow
users of financial statements to better understand the possible
effects of any risks that may remain with the entity on transferred
assets. The amendments also require additional disclosures if a
disproportionate amount of transfer transactions are undertaken
around the end of a reporting period.

The Group did not have any transfer of financial assets in the
current year. Therefore, the adoption of the amendments does
not have any impact on the current year’s results and financial
position.

B RS ERAR B AL

—REHR

AARRH SRS TMHI R —HEREARAF -
ARABBMORERMARZMAR AR (B E
LT °

ARATGEMIERE K EZE LMD 5 AClifton
House, 75 Fort Street, P.O. Box 1350 GT, George
Town, Grand Cayman, Cayman Islands } &8 &7 &
THTE77-79% &M AE 2312301 % ©

ARRNTBEEBRREER  WEA RN EEER
N MR 16(a) ©

EEEERE—=F=A-T+—HAMETEEE
TR THE+ A=+ —HILFENPBRR

RMEEMBREER ([ FRMBER

H2EA])

() FRABSMEREEANETEA-A=B——F
—A—REEREN

MAFEE - AREFH RN T EEGELQ
(BB GRS ]) B EASENIT
BEREARR T ——F— A —BRBNEE
EMENERTA ©

BRMBIRELERETIHRN RE-cRAESS

EEIES
BREGHENFI2RMETE  EEFA-REHEE

BE

WAL - RAZE BB Y B E ERIRER]
AHREBNTERRLBEATE -

BB ISR e BRI FE 7 AVEET N — REE — %

B ERE

BREUBRELNETROETARNEEHE
EHEZSORBERTE - LU BREROER
ER R EREREC EREEGRN
ERREBREEETZE - BRI AR E AR RS
HARAE BB TN E L PIE R S AL
SNKEE

AEERAFELBERETMASHEE
b FRARER AL BHARERAFR 25
BRI BHRRERERZE -
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BTSRRI AL

2.

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Contd)

Adoption of amendments to HKFRSs - first effective on 1 January
2012 (Cont'd)

Amendments to HKAS 12 — Deferred Tax — Recovery of
Underlying Assets

The amendments to HKAS 12 introduce a rebuttable presumption
that an investment property which is stated at fair value under
HKAS 40 “Investment Property” is recovered entirely through
sale. The measurement of the deferred tax liability or deferred
tax asset reflects the tax consequences of recovering the carrying
amount of the investment property entirely through sale. This
presumption is rebutted if the investment property is depreciable
and is held within a business model whose objective is to
consume substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in
the investment property over time, rather than through sale. If this
presumption is rebutted, the amount of deferred tax is measured
based on the expected manner in which the carrying amount of
the investment property would be recovered, using the appropriate
tax rates enacted or substantially enacted at the reporting date (see
note 4(v)). The amendment will be applied retrospectively.

The Group has investment property measured at fair value
of approximately HK$304,594,000 as at 31 December 2012
(2011: HK$297,340,000) as disclosed in note 15. The Group
has assessed that the presumption in the amendments to
HKAS 12 should be adopted in respect of certain investment
properties of the Group located in the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC”) with carrying amounts of approximately
HK$77,674,000 (2011: HK$79,679,000). Accordingly, the
associated deferred tax of these investment properties has
been re-measured on the presumption that they are recovered
entirely through sale. The Group has rebutted the presumption
in respect of its other investment properties located in the PRC
with carrying amounts of approximately HK$226,920,000 (2011:
HK$217,661,000) as they are assessed to be depreciable and
are held by subsidiaries with a business model whose objective is
to consume substantially all of the economic benefits embodied
in the investment properties over time rather than through sale.
Deferred tax in relation to these investment properties has not
been re-measured.

This change in accounting policy has been applied retrospectively.
However, the management concludes that the adoption of
amendments to HKAS 12 does not have any significant impact on
the current and prior years’ results and on the financial position as
at 31 December 2011, accordingly, the comparative figures have
not been restated.

For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE-_Z——HF4+_-_A=+—RALFE

2. FMEBUBREEN(EFREMBR
HEA ) #)

(a)

RS BMBREENMET R - A=F—_F
—A—BBERERE)

BB B ERF 125 HE AT A — BB H —
EIfEEEZE

BEGFEREI2RNERTAS| AT R B
R AREBEE ST ERIFA0MR R EWE]
BARBEIENREDETZEHERHE
Yeml - SRIETIR B AERRLEHBREENER
BRIE B 31 & 2 AP IR B M R B BRI (E R TR 15
FE o WIREMEATHE  MESEZME
E ABE R DB RERZ IR B M B R D B W an
(MIBEBHE)NEBRASBE - AER
A FEE - i REEEE - RIERRERER
HEERAER LC BEaEE HERENT
XFTEBREHIAERE - HhREVENREE
e E (RHEEAWV) ° ZIEFTAREERER -

MK T I5MERE  AEBNREMER
—E——HF+ - A=+—HUAAREE
2 45304594008 T (=& — —F
297,340,000 7T ) - AAEBARFEAR
HAMB([FEDWETFREVERAENA
77,674,0005% 7T ( —Z ——4F : 79,679,000/5
L) AEEEFEERANE ST ELE2
SREVSRT AR - At - ZEREMENR
REIRIEFIB IR A 2 3B B S W B M B a%

FatE o AEEEREABEMAPEAEAD
B Y BRI (E 4 5226,920,000/8 7T (=&
——%F : 217,661,000/ 70) RR TR
ZEVMEN L ABITERBANBAREE -
MEBENA B B335 16 HE kR
A HEZ SR EYEMBENBRIN EH
s - ZEREMENELEH B REH

=
2E°

WIREHBR 2 #BEBYER - A - BE
BRREMNE B G ERE 125N MERT AL
REEAFEFBEFENEEIN _F——F
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For the year ended 31 December 2012

HEZZT—=
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Contd)

(b)

New or revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective

The Group has not applied the following new or revised HKFRSs
that have been issued, but are not yet effective and have not been

early adopted by the Group.

HKFRSs
(Amendments)

Amendments to HKAS 1

(Revised)

Amendments to HKAS 32

Amendments to HKFRS 1

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2009-2011 Cycle?

Presentation of Financial Statements
— Presentation of Items of Other
Comprehensive Income!

Financial Instruments: Presentation
— Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities3

First-time Adoption of Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards —
Government Loans?

Amendments to HKFRS 7 Disclosures — Offsetting Financial

Assets and Financial Liabilities?

Amendments to HKFRS 10, Investment Entities3

HKFRS 12 and
HKFRS 27 (2011)

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 10
HKFRS 11
HKFRS 12

HKFRS 13
HKAS 19 (2011)

HKAS 27 (2011)
HKAS 28 (2011)

HK(IFRIC) —
Interpretation 20

Financial Instruments#

Consolidated Financial Statements2

Joint Arrangements?

Disclosure of Interests in Other
Entities?

Fair Value Measurement?

Employee Benefits?

Separate Financial Statements?

Investments in Associates and Joint
Ventures?

Stripping Costs in the Production
Phase of a Surface Mine?

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2015

2.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BTSRRI AL

2.

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Contd)

(b)

New or revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet
effective (Cont'd)

Amendments to HKAS 1 (Revised) — Presentation of Items of
Other Comprehensive Income

The amendments to HKAS 1 (Revised) require the Group to
separate items presented in other comprehensive income into
those that may be reclassified to profit and loss in the future (e.g.
revaluations of available-for-sale financial assets) and those that
may not (e.g. revaluations of property, plant and equipment).
Tax on items of other comprehensive income is allocated and
disclosed on the same basis. The amendments will be applied
retrospectively.

Amendments to HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation —
Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

The amendments clarify the requirements for offsetting financial
instruments. The amendments address inconsistencies in current
practice when applying the offsetting criteria and clarify:

- the meaning of “currently has a legally enforceable right of
set-off”; and

- that some gross settlement systems may be considered
equivalent to net settlement.

The amendments will be applied retrospectively.
HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments

Under HKFRS 9, financial assets are classified into financial assets
measured at fair value or at amortised cost depending on the
entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assets. Fair
value gains or losses will be recognised in profit or loss except for
those non-trade equity investments, which the entity will have a
choice to recognise the gains and losses in other comprehensive
income. HKFRS 9 carries forward the recognition, classification
and measurement requirements for financial liabilities from
HKAS 39, except for financial liabilities that are designated at
fair value through profit or loss, where the amount of change in
fair value attributable to change in credit risk of that liability is
recognised in other comprehensive income unless that would
create or enlarge an accounting mismatch. In addition, HKFRS 9
retains the requirements in HKAS 39 for derecognition of financial
assets and financial liabilities.

For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE-_Z——HF4+_-_A=+—RALFE

2. FMEBUBREEN(EFREMBR
HEA ) #)

(b)
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2012

HEZZ—

ZF+ZA=+—HILFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Contd)

(b)

New or revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet
effective (Cont'd)

HKFRS 10 — Consolidated Financial Statements

HKFRS 10 introduces a single control model for consolidation of
all investee entities. An investor has control when it has power
over the investee (whether or not that power is used in practice),
exposure or rights to variable returns from the investee and the
ability to use the power over the investee to affect those returns.
HKFRS 10 contains extensive guidance on the assessment of
control. For example, the standard introduces the concept of
“de facto” control where an investor can control an investee
while holding less than 50% of the investee’s voting rights in
circumstances where its voting interest is of sufficiently dominant
size relative to the size and dispersion of those of other individual
shareholders to give it power over the investee. Potential voting
rights are considered in the analysis of control only when these
are substantive, i.e. the holder has the practical ability to exercise
them. The standard explicitly requires an assessment of whether
an investor with decision making rights is acting as principal or
agent and also whether other parties with decision making rights
are acting as agents of the investor. An agent is engaged to act on
behalf of and for the benefit of another party and therefore does
not control the investee when it exercises its decision making
authority. The implementation of HKFRS 10 may result in changes
in those entities which are regarded as being controlled by the
Group and are therefore consolidated in the financial statements.
The accounting requirements in the existing HKAS 27 on other
consolidation related matters are carried forward unchanged.
HKFRS 10 is applied retrospectively subject to certain transitional
provisions.

HKFRS 12 — Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

HKFRS 12 integrates and makes consistent the disclosures
requirements about interests in subsidiaries, associates and joint
arrangements. It also introduces new disclosure requirements,
including those related to unconsolidated structured entities. The
general objective of the standard is to enable users of financial
statements to evaluate the nature and risks of a reporting entity’s
interests in other entities and the effects of those interests on the
reporting entity’s financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BTSRRI AL

2.

3.

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Contd)

(b)

New or revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet
effective (Cont'd)

HKFRS 13 — Fair Value Measurement

HKFRS 13 provides a single source of guidance on how to
measure fair value when it is required or permitted by other
standards. The standard applies to both financial and non-
financial items measured at fair value and introduces a fair value
measurement hierarchy. The definitions of the three levels in this
measurement hierarchy are generally consistent with HKFRS 7
“Financial Instruments: Disclosures”. HKFRS 13 defines fair
value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid
to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date (i.e. an exit price). The
standard removes the requirement to use bid and ask prices for
financial assets and liabilities quoted in an active market. Rather
the price within the bid-ask spread that is most representative of
fair value in the circumstances should be used. It also contains
extensive disclosure requirements to allow users of the financial
statements to assess the methods and inputs used in measuring
fair values and the effects of fair value measurements on the
financial statements. HKFRS 13 can be adopted early and is
applied prospectively.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the
potential impact of these new or revised HKFRSs and the directors
so far concluded that the application of these new or revised
HKFRSs will have no material impact on the Group’s financial
statements.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

(a)

(b)

(c)

Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKASs”) and Interpretations (hereinafter collectively referred
to as the “HKFRSs”) issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. In addition,
the financial statements include applicable disclosures required
by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical
cost basis except for the investment properties and hotel
properties, which are measured at fair values as explained in the
accounting policies set out below.

Functional and presentation currency
The financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars

(“HK$"), which is the same as the functional currency of the
Company.

For the year ended 31 December 2012
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2012
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

(b)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”).
Inter-company transactions and balances between group
companies together with unrealised profits are eliminated in full in
preparing the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of
impairment on the asset transferred, in which case the loss is
recognised in profit or loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the
year are included in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income from the effective dates of acquisition or up to the effective
dates of disposal, as appropriate. Where necessary, adjustments
are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies into line with those used by other members of
the Group.

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that do not result
in a loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions. The
carrying amounts of the Group’s interest and the non-controlling
interest are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative
interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount
by which the non-controlling interest is adjusted and the fair value
of the consideration paid or received is recognised directly in
equity and attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or loss on
disposal is calculated as the difference between (i) the aggregate
of the fair value of the consideration received and the fair value of
any retained interest and (ii) the previous carrying amount of the
assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any
non-controlling interest. Amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to the subsidiary are accounted
for in the same manner as would be required if the relevant assets
or liabilities were disposed of.

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-controlling
interest that represent present ownership interest in the subsidiary
is the amount of those interests at initial recognition plus such
non-controlling interest’s share of subsequent changes in equity.
Total comprehensive income is attributed to non-controlling
interests even if this results in the non-controlling interest having a
deficit balance.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities (including special purpose entities)
over which the Group has the power to control the financial and
operating policies so as to obtain benefits from their activities. The
existence and effect of potential voting rights that are currently
exercisable or convertible are considered when assessing whether
the Group controls another entity.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BTSRRI AL

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

(b)

(c)

Subsidiaries (Cont'd)

In consolidated financial statements, acquisition of subsidiaries
(other than those under common control) is accounted for by
applying the acquisition method. This involves the estimation
of fair value of all identifiable assets and liabilities, including
contingent liabilities of the subsidiary, at the acquisition date,
regardless of whether or not they were recorded in the financial
statements of the subsidiary prior to acquisition. On initial
recognition, the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary are
included in the consolidated statement of financial position at
their fair values, which are also used as the bases for subsequent
measurement in accordance with the Group’s accounting policies.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, subsidiaries
are carried at cost less any impairment loss unless the subsidiary
is held for sale or included in a disposal group. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividends received and receivable at the end of the reporting
period. All dividends whether received out of the investee’s pre or
post-acquisition profits are recognised in the Company’s profit or
loss.

Associates

Associates are those entities over which the Group is able to exert
significant influence, generally accompanying a shareholding of
between 20% and 50% of voting rights but which are neither
subsidiaries nor investment in a joint venture.

In consolidated financial statements, investment in associates is
initially recognised at cost and subsequently accounted for using
the equity method. Any excess of the cost of acquisition over
the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities of the associate recognised at
the date of acquisition is recognised as goodwill. The goodwill
is included within the carrying amount of the investment and is
assessed for impairment as part of the investment. The cost of
acquisition is measured at the aggregate of the fair values, at the
date of exchange, of assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed
and equity instruments issued by the Group, plus any costs
directly attributable to the investment. Any excess of the Group’s
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities over the cost of acquisition, after
reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or loss in the
determination of the Group’s share of the associate’s profit or loss
in the period in which the investment is acquired.

Under the equity method, the Group’s interest in the associate
is carried at cost and adjusted for the post-acquisition changes
in the Group’s share of the associate’s net assets less any
identified impairment loss, unless it is classified as held for sale
(or included in a disposal group that is classified as held for sale).
The profit or loss for the period includes the Group’s share of the
post-acquisition, post-tax results of the associates for the year,
including any impairment loss on the investment in associates
recognised for the year.

4,

For the year ended 31 December 2012
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2012
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(c)

(d)

Associates (Cont'd)

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its
associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interests in
the associates. Where unrealised losses on assets sales between
the Group and its associates are reversed on equity accounting,
the underlying asset is also tested for impairment from the Group’s
perspective. Where the associate uses accounting policies other
than those of the Group for like transactions and events in similar
circumstances, adjustments are made, where necessary, to
conform the associate’s accounting policies to those of the Group
when the associate’s financial statements are used by the Group
in applying the equity method.

When the Group’s share of losses in an associate equals or
exceeds its interest in the associate, the Group does not recognise
further losses, unless it has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate. For
this purpose, the Group’s interest in the associate is the carrying
amount of the investment under the equity method together with
the Group’s long-term interests that in substance form part of the
Group’s net investment in the associate.

After the application of equity method, the Group determines
whether it is necessary to recognise an additional impairment
loss on the Group’s investment in its associates. At the end of
the reporting period, the Group determines whether there is any
objective evidence that the investment in associate is impaired. If
such indications are identified, the Group calculates the amount
of impairment as being the difference between the recoverable
amount (higher of value in use and fair value less costs to sell) of
the associate and its carrying amount. In determining the value in
use of the investment, the Group estimates its share of the present
value of the estimated future cash flows expected to be generated
by the associate, including cash flows arising from the operations
of the associate and the proceeds on ultimate disposal of the
investment.

Foreign currency translation

In the individual financial statements of the consolidated entities,
foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency of the individual entity using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the end of the
reporting period, monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates
ruling at that date. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and from the end of the
reporting period retranslation of monetary assets and liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on
the date when the fair value was determined and are reported as
part of the fair value gain or loss. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BTSRRI AL

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

(d)

(e)

Foreign currency translation (Cont’d)

In the consolidated financial statements, all individual financial
statements of foreign operations, originally presented in a currency
different from the Group’s presentation currency, have been
converted into Hong Kong dollars. Assets and liabilities have been
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the closing rates at the end of
the reporting period. Income and expenses have been converted
into the Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates, or at the average rates over the reporting period
provided that the exchange rates do not fluctuate significantly.
Any differences arising from this procedure have been recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated separately in
the exchange reserve in equity.

When a foreign operation is sold, such exchange differences are
reclassified from equity to profit or loss as part of the gain or loss
on sale.
Property, plant and equipment
(i) Depreciation

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost or valuation of

property, plant and equipment over their estimated useful
lives, using the straight-line method, at the following rates

per annum:
Leasehold land and buildings 2% — 5%
Leasehold improvements 10% - 20%
Motor vehicles 20%
Operating and office equipment 5% —20%
Furniture and fixtures 20%

Hotel properties Period of the lease terms
The asset’s depreciation methods, residual values and
useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted, if appropriate, at
the end of the reporting period.

For the year ended 31 December 2012
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2012
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(e)

()

Property, plant and equipment (Cont’d)
(i) Measurement bases

Property, plant and equipment, other than hotel properties,
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses. The cost of an asset comprises its
purchase price and any directly attributable costs of
bringing the asset to the working condition and location
for its intended use. Subsequent costs are included in
the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the
Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
All other costs, such as repairs and maintenance, are
charged to the profit or loss during the financial period in
which they are incurred.

Hotel properties held by an associate of the Group are
stated at valuation determined by external professional
valuers less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses.

Changes in the value of hotel properties are dealt with as
movements in the hotel property, plant and equipment
revaluation reserve. If the balance of this reserve is
insufficient to cover a deficit, the excess of the deficit is
charged to the profit or loss.

The gain or loss arising on retirement or disposal is
determined as the difference between the sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in
profit or loss. Any revaluation surplus remaining in equity
is transferred to retained profits on the disposal of hotel
properties and certain buildings that have been transferred
as investment properties.

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are owned
or held under a leasehold interest to earn rental income and/or
for capital appreciation. These include land held for a currently
undetermined future use and property that is being constructed or
developed for future use as investment property.

When the Group holds a property interest under an operating
lease to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation, the
interest is classified and accounted for as an investment property
on a property-by-property basis. Any such property interest which
has been classified as an investment property is accounted for as
if it was held under a finance lease.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BTSRRI AL

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

()

(g)

Investment properties (Cont’d)

On initial recognition, investment property is measured at cost,
including any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to
initial recognition, investment property is stated at fair value,
unless it is still in the course of construction or development at
the end of the reporting period and its fair value cannot be reliably
determined at that time. Fair value is determined by external
professional valuers, with sufficient experience with respect to
both the location and the nature of the investment property. The
carrying amounts recognised at the end of the reporting period
reflect the prevailing market conditions at the end of the reporting
period.

Gains or losses arising from either changes in the fair value or the
sale of an investment property are included in profit or loss in the
period in which they arise.

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the aggregate of the
consideration transferred and the amount recognised for non-
controlling interests over the fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities. The consideration
transferred is measured at the aggregate of the fair values, at the
date of exchange, of assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed,
and equity instruments issued by the Group.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses.
Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units and is tested
annually for impairment (see note 4(s)).

Any excess of the fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities over the aggregate of the
consideration transferred and the amount recognised for non-
controlling interests is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

On subsequent disposal of a subsidiary, the attributable amount of
goodwill capitalised is included in the determination of the amount
of gain or loss on disposal.

For the year ended 31 December 2012
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(h)

()

()

Properties held under development

Properties held under development for future sale are included
in current assets and comprise land held under operating lease
(note 4(0)) and aggregate cost of development, materials and
supplies, wages, borrowing costs capitalised for qualifying assets
and other expenses (“Development costs”). Development costs
are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Other
expenses included (i) those costs that are incurred in bringing the
properties held under development to their present location and
condition and (ii) a systematic allocation of fixed overheads that
are incurred on development of properties. Fixed overheads are
indirect costs which remain relatively constant regardless of the
size or volume of the development.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less estimated costs of completion and
estimated selling expenses.

Properties held for sale

Properties held for sale are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. In the case of completed properties developed
by the Group, cost is determined by apportionment of the total
development costs for that development project, attributable to
the unsold properties. Net realisable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business less estimated selling
expenses.

The cost of properties held for sale comprises all costs of
purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing
the properties to their present location and condition.

Financial assets

The Group’s accounting policies for the financial assets other than
investments in subsidiaries and associates are set out below.

The Group classified its financial assets as loans and receivables.
Management determines the classification of the financial assets
at initial recognition depending on the purpose for which the
financial assets were acquired and where allowed and appropriate,
re-evaluates this designation at the end of the reporting period.

All financial assets are recognised when, and only when, the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. When financial assets are recognised initially, they are
measured at fair value, plus directly attributable transaction costs.

Derecognition of financial assets occurs when the rights to receive
cash flows from the investments expire or are transferred and
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership have been
transferred.
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BTSRRI AL

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

()]

Financial assets (Cont'd)

At the end of the reporting period, financial assets are reviewed
to assess whether there is objective evidence of impairment. If
any such evidence exists, impairment loss is determined and
recognised based on the classification of the financial asset.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
Loans and receivables are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment
losses. Amortised cost is calculated taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and includes fees that are an
integral part of the effective interest rate and transaction cost.

Impairment of financial assets

At the end of the reporting period, financial assets are reviewed to
determine whether there is any objective evidence of impairment.

Objective evidence of impairment of individual financial asset
includes observable data that comes to the attention of the Group
about one or more of the following loss events:

- Significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

- A breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments;

- It becoming probable that the debtor will enter bankruptcy
or other financial reorganisation;

- Significant changes in the technological, market, economic
or legal environment that have an adverse effect on the
debtor; and

- A significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of an
investment in an equity instrument below its cost.

Loss events in respect of a group of financial assets include
observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in
the estimated future cash flows from the group of financial assets.
Such observable data includes but not limited to adverse changes
in the payment status of debtors in the group and, national or
local economic conditions that correlate with defaults on the assets
in the group.

For the year ended 31 December 2012
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(0)]

(k)

U]

(m)

Financial assets (Cont'd)
Impairment of financial assets (Cont'd)

If any such evidence exists, the impairment loss is measured and
recognised as follows:

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on loans
and receivables carried at amortised cost has been incurred,
the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not
been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition). The amount of the loss is recognised in profit or loss
of the period in which the impairment occurs.

If, in subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed to the extent that it does
not result in a carrying amount of the financial asset exceeding
what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment
not been recognised at the date the impairment is reversed. The
amount of the reversal is recognised in profit or loss of the period
in which the reversal occurs.

Inventories

Inventories comprise consumable stores for own consumption
which are stated at cost. Cost is determined using the weighted
average method.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at banks and in hand
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Financial liabilities

The Group’s financial liabilities include borrowings, accounts and
other payables, accruals, deposits received and convertible notes.

Financial liabilities are recognised when the Group becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. All interest
related charges are recognised in accordance with the Group'’s
accounting policy for borrowing costs (see note 4(u)).

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligations under the
liability is discharged, cancelled or expires.
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BTSRRI RE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

(m)

Financial liabilities (Cont'd)

Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from
the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of
an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange
or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability
and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the
respective carrying amount is recognised in profit or loss.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised
cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the redemption value is recognised in profit or loss over
the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group
has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at
least twelve months after the end of the reporting period.

Convertible notes

Convertible notes that can be converted to equity share capital at
the option of the holder, where the number of shares that would
be issued on conversion and the value of the consideration that
would be received at that time do not vary, are accounted for as
compound financial instruments which contain both a liability
component and an equity component.

Convertible notes issued by the Company that contain both
financial liability and equity components are classified separately
into respective liability and equity components on initial
recognition. On initial recognition, the fair value of the liability
component is determined using the prevailing market interest
rate for similar non-convertible debts. The fair value of the equity
component is determined using the binomial option pricing model.

The liability component is subsequently carried at amortised cost
using the effective interest method. The equity component will
remain in equity until conversion or redemption of the notes.

When the notes are converted, the convertible notes equity
reserves and the carrying value of the liability component at
the time of conversion, is transferred to share capital and share
premium as consideration for the shares issued. If the notes are
redeemed, the convertible notes equity reserves are released
directly to retained profits.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible notes
are allocated to the liability and equity components in proportion
to their respective fair values. Transaction costs relating to the
equity component are charged directly to equity. Transaction costs
relating to the liability component are included in the carrying
amount of the liability portion and amortised over the period of the
convertible notes using the effective interest method.

For the year ended 31 December 2012
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(m)

(n)

(0)

Financial liabilities (Cont'd)

Accounts and other payables, accruals and deposits received

Accounts and other payables, accruals and deposits received are
recognised initially at their fair values and subsequently measured
at amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Financial guarantee issued

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the
issuer (or guarantor) to make specified payments to reimburse
the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to
make payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the fair value of
the guarantee is initially recognised as deferred income within
financial guarantee contracts. Where consideration is received or
receivable for the issuance of the guarantee, the consideration is
recognised in accordance with the Group’s policies applicable to
that category of asset. Where no such consideration is received
or receivable, an immediate expense is recognised in the profit or
loss on initial recognition of any deferred income.

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised as deferred
income is amortised in the profit or loss over the term of the
guarantee as income from financial guarantee issued. In addition,
provisions are recognised if and when it becomes probable that
the holder of the guarantee will call upon the Group under the
guarantee and the amount of that claim on the Group is expected
to exceed the current carrying amount, i.e. the amount initially
recognised less accumulated amortisation, where appropriate.

Leases

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines that
the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset or assets
for an agreed period of time in return for a payment or a series of
payments. Such a determination is made based on an evaluation
of the substance of the arrangement and is regardless of whether
the arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.
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BTSRRI RE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

(0)

Leases (Cont'd)

(1)

(i)

(i)

Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by the Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership are classified as being held under finance
leases. Leases which do not transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership to the Group are classified as
operating leases, with the following exceptions:

Leasehold interest in land is up-front payments to acquire
the land use rights. The payments are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and any impairment losses.
Amortisation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the up-front payments over the lease terms.

Leasehold interest in land included in properties held
under development and properties held for sale, of which
the amortisation of prepaid land lease is capitalised as part
of the building costs during the development period but
charged to the profit or loss for completed properties.

Properties leased out under operating leases are included
in investment properties in the consolidated statement of
financial position. The recognition of rental income is set
out in note 4(r).

Operating lease charges as the lessee

Where the Group has the use of assets held under operating
leases, payments made under the leases are charged to the
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease terms
except where an alternative basis is more representative of
the time pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased
assets. Lease incentives received are recognised in profit or
loss as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
made. Contingent rentals are charged to profit or loss in the
accounting period in which they are incurred.

Assets leased out under operating leases as the lessor

Assets leased out under operating leases are measured
and presented according to the nature of the assets. Initial
direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset and recognised as an expense over the lease
term on the same basis as the rental income.

Rental income receivable from operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over
the periods covered by the lease term, except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the time pattern
of benefits to be derived from the use of the leased asset.
Lease incentives granted are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
receivable. Contingent rentals are recognised as income in
the accounting period in which they are earned.

4.

For the year ended 31 December 2012
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(p)

(q)

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, and it
is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount
of the obligation can be made. Where the time value of money
is material, provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

All provisions are reviewed at the end of the reporting period and
adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future uncertain
events not wholly within the control of the Group are also
disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote.

Contingent liabilities are recognised in the course of the allocation
of purchase price to the assets and liabilities acquired in a
business combination. They are initially measured at fair value at
the date of acquisition and subsequently measured at the higher
of the amount that would be recognised in a comparable provision
as described above and the amount initially recognised less any
accumulated amortisation, if appropriate.

Probable inflows of economic benefits to the Group that do not yet
meet the recognition criteria of an asset are considered contingent
assets.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Share capital is
determined using the nominal value of shares that have been
issued.

Any transaction costs associated with the issue of shares are
deducted from share premium (net of any related income tax
benefits) to the extent that they are incremental costs directly
attributable to the equity transaction.
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BTSRRI RE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

(r)

(s)

Revenue recognition

Revenue arising from sale of properties held for sale is recognised
when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of these
properties held for sale have been transferred to the purchasers
and the Group retains neither continuing involvement to the
degree usually associated with ownership nor effective control
over properties held for sale. The transfer of risks and rewards of
ownership is evidenced by the passing of possession of properties
to the purchaser when the property hand-over confirmation
is executed by the Group and the purchaser. Deposits and
instalments received from purchasers prior to this stage and pre-
sale are included in current liabilities and are not recognised as
revenue.

Rental income receivable under operating leases is recognised
in equal instalments over the accounting periods covered by
the lease terms. Lease incentives granted are recognised as an
integral part of the aggregate net lease payments receivable.
Contingent rentals are recognised as income in the period in
which they are earned.

Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis using the
effective interest method.

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is
established.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill, property, plant and equipment, investments in
subsidiaries and interests in associates are subject to impairment
testing.

Goodwill is tested for impairment at least annually, irrespective of
whether there is any indication that they are impaired. All other
assets are tested for impairment whenever there are indications
that the asset’s carrying amount may not be recoverable.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately for
the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of fair
value, reflecting market conditions less costs to sell, and value in
use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessment of time value of money and
the risk specific to the asset.

For the year ended 31 December 2012
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(s)

()

Impairment of non-financial assets (Cont'd)

For the purposes of assessing impairment, where an asset does
not generate cash inflows largely independent from those from
other assets, the recoverable amount is determined for the
smallest group of assets that generate cash inflow independently
(i.e. a cash-generating unit). As a result, some assets are
tested individually for impairment and some are tested at cash-
generating unit level. Goodwill in particular is allocated to those
cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from synergies
of the related business combination and represent the lowest level
within the Group at which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purpose.

Impairment losses recognised for cash-generating units, to which
goodwill has been allocated, are credited initially to the carrying
amount of goodwill. Any remaining impairment loss is charged pro
rata to the other assets in the cash-generating unit, except that the
carrying value of an asset will not be reduced below its individual
fair value less cost to sell, or value in use, if determinable.

An impairment loss on goodwill is not reversed in subsequent
periods. In respect of other assets, an impairment loss is reversed
if there has been a favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the asset’s recoverable amount and only to the extent
that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or
amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in respect of
goodwill are not reversed in a subsequent period. This is the case
even if no loss, or a smaller loss, would have been recognised had
the impairment been assessed only at the end of the reporting
period to which the interim period relates.

Employee benefits
(i) Retirement benefits

Retirement benefits to employees are provided through
defined contribution plans.

The Group operates a defined contribution retirement
benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for all of its employees
who are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of the
employees’ basic salaries.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate
in PRC are required to participate in a central pension
scheme operated by the local municipal government. The
subsidiaries are required to contribute a fixed percentage of
its payroll costs to the central pension scheme.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BTSRRI RE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

(t) Employee benefits (Cont’d)

(1)

(ii)

(iif)

Retirement benefits (Cont'd)

Contributions are recognised as an expense in profit or loss
as employees render services during the year. The Group’s
obligation under these schemes is limited to the fixed
percentage contributions payable.

Short-term employee benefits

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made for the
estimated liability for annual leave as a result of services
rendered by employees up to the end of the reporting
period.

Non-accumulating compensated absences such as sick
leave and maternity leave are not recognised until the time
of leave.

Employee share-based payment compensation

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based
compensation plan.

All employee services received in exchange for the grant of
any share-based compensation are measured at fair values.
These are indirectly determined by reference to the share
options awarded. Their value is appraised at the grant
date and excludes the impact of any non-market vesting
conditions (for example, profitability and sales growth
targets).

All share-based compensation is recognised as an
expense in profit or loss over the vesting period if vesting
conditions apply, or recognised as an expense in full
at the grant date when the equity instruments granted
vest immediately unless the compensation qualifies for
recognition as asset, with a corresponding increase in
the share option reserves in equity. If vesting conditions
apply, the expense is recognised over the vesting period,
based on the best available estimate of the number of
equity instruments expected to vest. Non-market vesting
conditions are included in assumptions about the number
of equity instruments that are expected to vest. Estimates
are subsequently revised, if there is any indication that the
number of equity instruments expected to vest differs from
previous estimates.

At the time when the share options are exercised, the
amount previously recognised in share option reserves
will be transferred to share premium. After vesting date,
when the vested share options are later forfeited or are still
not exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserves will be transferred to
retained profits.

For the year ended 31 December 2012
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2012
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(u)

(v)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs incurred for the acquisition, construction or
production of any qualifying asset are capitalised during the period
of time that is required to complete and prepare the asset for its
intended use. A qualifying asset is an asset which necessarily
takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use
or sale. Other borrowing costs are expensed when incurred.

Borrowing costs are capitalised as part of the cost of a qualifying
asset when expenditure for the asset is being incurred, borrowing
costs are being incurred and activities that are necessary to prepare
the asset for its intended use or sale are being undertaken.
Capitalisation of borrowing costs ceases when substantially all the
activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its intended
use or sale are complete.

The Group capitalises borrowing costs for all eligible assets
where construction was commenced on or after 1 January 2009.
The Group continues to expense borrowing costs relating to
construction projects that commenced prior to 1 January 2009.

Income taxes
Income taxes for the year comprise current tax and deferred tax.

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from ordinary activities
adjusted for items that are non-assessable or disallowable for
income tax purposes and is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial
reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for tax
purposes. Except for goodwill and recognised assets and liabilities
that affect neither accounting nor taxable profits, deferred tax
liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profits will be available against which deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Deferred tax is measured
at the tax rates appropriate to the expected manner in which the
carrying amount of the asset or liability is realised or settled and
that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the
reporting period.

An exception to the general requirement on determining the
appropriate tax rate used in measuring deferred tax amount
is when an investment property is carried at fair value under
HKAS 40 “Investment Property”. Unless the presumption is
rebutted, the deferred tax amounts on these investment properties
are measured using the tax rates that would apply on sale of these
investment properties at their carrying amounts at the reporting
date. The presumption is rebutted when the investment property is
depreciable and is held within a business model whose objective
is to consume substantially all the economic benefits embodied in
the property over time, rather than through sale.

B TSR AR B RE

4, FESTEEE)

(u)

(v)

BB

BE BERLEFINARERBEELNEER
B - RER R EH A A EFRUE RE®
HETURERL - REBREERTERKRHZE
BIERERERHENEE - EMEERAR
AR o

EEEELMX BERAELEREEERA
BEMGHHEMRHNERTIBETHR - 5
ERABERMERABEREERAN—HD &
EAREREERARERELHEMFNREAK
MOLEETETRE - FERAESELER
1 -

AEEHRN —FTNFE—H— B ARFERRE
ENRHAEREENEERATUERL -
AEBBREHEN TR NF—A—RBZARA
AH)IEEIR B ERR B ERA

P8t
FAHISH 2R ETUE JRIEIA -

BIHATRIR IO IRIB B PT1S 71 B OB AR A ]
HRMIBREHARN A ERBEENMEL
B URANRERREERNER LEE
MR R -

BERACHPBREBNZEERBERMT
BEEAREEE N ZBESR RN ERE8
TEHER - REERTEF B RERTF
BN HEREENABIN  ERAERRTY
R ERRAREHEAS - BEHIBEEERA
A AL RN A B AR A B S A H R SR D T B 22
BERYER THER o IR VIR A B S iE
BEEXEBBENRMENESRTA - BRRE
HREEHKBER LR BERIHESE -

HERBEMERBEDB G ERFI0HEEY
X IBARBEIE  AUHREETARE
EEBASENERREN —RMARTE - FRIEHE
EREDE - BRI ZEREVENELETIAS
BN IS A MNREEREZEREMEM
BRNTETE - WEREMEATIE  mA
FrB L ERIABER DR FEZ Y R BRI DK
P (WIFEBIHE) 2 EBEARE R R
SRR A TR E o

FERRAERAT —T-—EER 69



Notes to the Financial Statements

BTSRRI RE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

(v)

(w)

Income taxes (Cont'd)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and associates,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except when they
relate to items recognised in other comprehensive income in
which case the taxes are also recognised in other comprehensive
income.

Segment reporting

The Group identifies operating segments and prepares segment
information based on the regular internal financial information
reported to the executive directors for their decisions about
resources allocation to the Group’s business components and
for their review of the performance of those components. The
business components in the internal financial information reported
to the executive directors are determined following the Group’s
major product and service lines.

The Group has identified the following reportable segments:

Property development Property development and sale of

properties held for sale

Property investment and
leasing

Property leasing and sale of
investment properties

Each of these operating segments is managed separately as each
of the product and service lines requires different resources as
well as marketing approaches. All inter-segment transfers are
carried out at arm length prices.

The measurement policies the Group uses for reporting segment
results under HKFRS 8 are the same as those used in its financial
statements prepared under HKFRSs, except that:

- share of results of associates accounted for using the equity
method;

- loss on extinguishment of convertible notes;
- income tax expense;

- corporate income and expenses which are not directly
attributable to the business activities of any operating
segment; and

- equity-settled employee share-based payments

are not included in arriving at the operating results of the operating
segment.

Segment assets include all assets but exclude goodwill and
interests in associates. In addition, corporate assets which are
not directly attributable to the business activities of any operating
segment are not allocated to a segment, which primarily applies to
the Group’s headquarter.

Segment liabilities information is not reported or used by the
Group’s executive directors.

No asymmetrical allocations have been applied to reportable
segments.

For the year ended 31 December 2012
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE-_Z——F+-F=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(x)  Related parties

(a)

A person or a close member of that person’s family is
related to the Group if that person:

(i)

(if)

(iii)

has control or joint control over the Group;
has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of key management personnel of the
Group or the Company’s parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

The entity and the Group are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member
of a group of which the other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of the employees of the Group or an entity
related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by,
that person in their dealings with the entity and include:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;

children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner; and

dependents of that person or that person’s spouse or
domestic partner.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BTSRRI RE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, the directors are
required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to
be relevant. Actual results differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in
the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

(a) Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year are discussed below:

(i) Estimated fair value of investment properties

The investment properties of the Group were stated at fair
value in accordance with the accounting policy stated in
note 4(f). The fair value of the investment properties are
determined by a firm of independent qualified professional
valuers and the fair value of investment properties as at
the end of the reporting period are set out in note 15. Such
valuations were based on certain assumptions, which are
subject to uncertainty and might materially differ from the
actual results.

In making the judgement, consideration has been given to
assumptions that are mainly based on market conditions
existing at the end of the reporting period and appropriate
capitalisation rates. These estimates are regularly compared
to actual market data and actual transactions entered into
by the Group.

(i) Impairment of goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered
any impairment in accordance with the accounting policy
stated in note 4(s). The recoverable amounts of cash-
generating unit have been determined based on value in
use calculations. These calculations require the use of
estimates. Details of the assumptions used are set out in
note 13.

For the year ended 31 December 2012
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Contd)

(a) Critical accounting estimates and assumptions (Cont'd)

(i)

(iv)

(v)

Net realisable value of properties held for sale and
properties held under development

Management determines the net realisable value of
completed properties held for sale by using prevailing
market data such as most recent sale transactions and
market survey reports available from independent qualified
professional valuers, and internal estimates of costs based
on quotes by suppliers.

Management’'s assessment of net realisable value of
properties held under development requires the estimates
of future cash flows to be derived from these properties.
These estimates requires judgement as to the anticipated
sale prices by reference to recent sales transactions in
nearby locations, rate of new property sales, marketing
costs (including price discounts required to stimulate
sales) and the expected costs to completion of properties,
the legal and regulatory framework and general market
conditions.

Impairment of accounts receivable

The Group’s management assesses the collectability of
accounts receivable. This estimate is based on the credit
history of the Group’s customers and the current market
condition.

Management reassesses the impairment provision at the
end of the reporting period.

Valuation for convertible notes

The management uses their judgement in selecting an
appropriate valuation technique for the Group’s and the
Company’s convertible notes at initial recognition which
are not quoted in the active market. Valuation techniques
commonly used by market practitioners are applied. The fair
value of convertible notes at initial recognition is estimated
by DTZ Debenham Tie Leung Limited (“DTZ"), a firm of
independent qualified professional valuers, based on actual
transactions of the financial instruments in the market or
transactions of similar financial instruments which generally
represent the best estimate of the market value. The fair
value of convertible notes at initial recognition varies with
different variable and certain subjective assumptions. Any
changes in these variables so adopted may materially affect
the estimation of the fair value of convertible notes. Details
of the fair value of convertible notes at initial recognition are
disclosed in note 27.
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B ISR AR B AL

5.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (contd)

(b)  Critical judgements in applying the entity’s accounting policies

()

(ii)

Revenue recognition

The Group has recognised revenue from sale of properties
held for sale during the year as disclosed in note 7. The
assessment of when an entity has transferred the significant
risks and rewards of ownership to a buyer requires
examination of the circumstances of the transaction. In
most cases, the transfer of risks and rewards of ownership
coincides with the transfer of the legal title or the passing
of possession to the buyer. The Group believes that
its recognition basis of sales as set out in note 4(r) is
appropriate and is in line with the current practice adopted
in the PRC.

Income tax

The Group is subject to income tax in various jurisdictions.
Significant judgement is required in determining the
amount of the provision of tax and the timing of payment
of the related taxation. Where the final tax outcome is
different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the income tax and deferred
tax provisions in periods in which such determination are
made.

The Group is subject to land appreciation tax (“LAT”) in
the PRC. However, the implementation and settlement
of this tax varies among various tax jurisdictions in cities
of the PRC, and the Group has not finalised for certain
LAT calculation and payments with local tax authorities in
the PRC. Accordingly, significant judgement is required
in determining the amount on the appreciation of land
value and its related LAT. The Group recognised LAT
based on management’s best estimates according to the
understanding of the tax rules.

During the year, the Group incurred LAT of approximately
HK$6,273,000 (2011: HK$11,741,000) which was
charged to the consolidated income statement as income
tax expense. During the year, the Group reversed LAT
as a result of over-provision of LAT in previous years of
approximately HK$7,380,000. The directors considered
the amount charged to the consolidated income statement
to be adequate as this is calculated according to the
method which is in compliance with the existing rules and
interpretation of LAT.

For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE-_Z——HF4+_A=+—RAILFE

5. EEETHEREIEMFTTEEERR

(&)

(h) EAERSHBERNEZEHE

(i)

(ii)

Woas tB=7

AEBDHEIREAFEHEREME
B ER - WA TE7 R EE - STAE B
BEREEENENRRK@RES T
BXRE - AHXZERETESES - £X
BAERT - EBHEEENRER N ER
H[RIES IR (R B REOEE A EHBR
B - AREIRE  HHEERAEE
(R4 HEBEE - LHaHER
FREVEAR ©

Vo ki

REE RGN TR BEEBHSH -
FEE DR BB RO £ 8RN S ARRE IR Y
B RAELEARHE - BERATIASR
TRARRMLENERE - AAZHES
RN %S EE MR BN RIRER
RBBELERE -

RE B AR B DI EER ([ L1
B - Al FEBEHTIRBKE
ERH T MIRERNNITREE RN
@) - 7 A5 S [ i o B P A RT3 75 A5 75
BEEEE T LR ERMNE R AR
JI0E o Bk - REHEARA AR E +
IR ERE L EARR LI ER - AR E
REBEEEEAEHHERAEREL
EEEEM AT - RS L IIRET o

FRN - AEBELE LTI HBAER
#6,273,0008 T ( —Z T — — F :
11,741,000 7T) - tERFIEHAX
BaRAWERFHNR - FR - A£H
ERFFE I HBERNBREEED
7,380,000 7T ifn # |l + 38 EF - T
ERE - BERARERTIBROZER
BRR AR IRE/FE LHIgER
BAERARREBNGEETE -

74

New Heritage Holdings Ltd.

Annual Report 2012



Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2012
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Conta)

(b)  Critical judgements in applying the entity’s accounting policies
(Cont'd)

(i) Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred taxation liabilities
or deferred taxation assets arising from investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model,
the management have reviewed the Group’s investment
properties portfolio and concluded that certain investment
properties of the Group are held under a business model
whose objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment properties
over time. Therefore, in determining the Group’s deferred
taxation on these investment properties, the management
have determined that the presumption set out in
Amendments to HKAS 12 “Deferred Tax — Recovery of
Underlying Assets” that investment properties measured
using the fair value model are recovered through sale is
rebutted.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

In identifying its operating segments, management generally follows the

Group'’s service lines, which represents the main products and services

provided by the Group. The Group has identified the following reportable

segments.

Property development Property development and sale of
properties held for sale

Property investment
and leasing

Property leasing and sale of investment
properties

Each of these operating segments is managed separately as each of
these product and service lines requires different resources as well as
marketing approaches.

For the year ended 31 December 2012, there have been no changes
from prior years in the measurement methods used to determine
operating segments and reported segment profit or loss.

B TSR AR B RE

5. EESTHEREIEMFTEREMERIR
(%)

(h) EAERSITBERNEZHEE)

(iii)  REYREELFIE

HAERBOAEBERRGTENERED
EMEEAMEEHARGSELH AR
EME  EEEEEHNASENKREY
FHEE  RAEAEEMNETREMET
IABERS DR R EMEMBEEMBA
B RBEREHRBRASTA - Bt -
EEENEEXSREMENRLERIA
B ERERQFENEEGERFE]L2
SREVERTANEERIE — R B 2 |
BRERAABERATENRENE
B BHE DA HEE -

6. oEEHR

BRI — AR B AR (BN AR B AT IR A0
BEGRES) AR SESE - AEEERERIA
TAREHH -

MEER MEERINEFEDE

MERELEE WMERERNERENE

BRZEERIRBEBFETRERETIGHRET

& Bt P REESBORER o

BE-Z-—F+-A=+"HLFE EBETLEH
BRERD BEAMERNGENERBEFERE
&R -
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE-_Z——HF4+_A=+—RAILFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Contd) 6. ZE&ER®E
Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing market prices. SDIERSHEIREBTHEIE -
The revenue and profit generated by the Group’s operating segments are NEERZLEEDEEESHRE RABFE T -
summarised as follows:
2012
—E-——F
Property
Property investment
development and leasing Elimination Total
MERE
MERR k#EE bS] st
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FERT FET FHET
Revenue: Wrzs -
From external customers KEINRES 258,937 13,165 - 272,102
Inter-segment revenue SEERE S = = - -
Total segment revenue FERE 258,937 13,165 - 272,102
Reportable segment profit A2/ \EF 22,420 16,400 - 38,820
Interest income FBUA 2,694 619 = 3,313
Depreciation of property, plant and Y - E KREITE
equipment (491) (1,866) = (2,357)
Gain on disposal of investment properties &% & WU - 2,477 — 2,477
Impairment loss on properties held for FEMERNREEIE
sale (759) = — (759)
Fair value adjustments on investment WEMEND R EEFE
properties - 22,337 - 22,337
Finance costs &R AN - (1,937) - (1,937)
Reportable segment assets 2R BEE 1,034,068 348,629 = 1,382,697
Additions to non-current segment assets ~ FERIETRB D IEEERE
during the year 5 79 - 84
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE-_Z——HF4+_A=+—HILFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Conta)

6. 2EER#®)

2011
—T——F
Property
Property investment
development and leasing Elimination Total
YR E
YIFEER kS 8 @5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FET FET FAT
Revenue: Wzs
From external customers KEINAZE 362,763 12,419 = 375,182
Inter-segment revenue AR 6,481 122 (6,603) -
Total segment revenue @RS 369,244 12,541 (6,603) 375,182
Reportable segment profit AI2F{HEEF] 28,763 6,556 = 35,319
Interest income R BEYWA 5,245 675 - 5,920
Depreciation of property, plant and Y% -~ BE REETTE
equipment (547) (2,860) - (3,407)
Gain on disposal of investment properties &R &Y HI Uz = 835 = 835
Impairment loss on properties FHEMENRERE
held for sale (1,507) - - (1,507)
Fair value adjustments on investment EMENDR BEFE
properties - 8,400 - 8,400
Finance costs BhE KA (3,452) (2,753) = (6,205)
Reportable segment assets AR BEEE 1,063,784 363,863 = 1,427,647
Additions to non-current segment assets  FERNIERBNIEEEFE
during the year 29 262 - 291
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,E\Zl-a,%ﬁ% BT;.I-%I é;?;i%y—:iJr:ﬁ —t+—BHLFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Contd) 6. ZE&ER®E
The total presented for the Group’s operating segments reconcile to the NEAFEIRFBPT 27 - NEB AL IE D FE LA RE BN &= [
Group’s key financial figures as presented in the financial statements as T EMBEISEERAT -
follows:
2012 2011
—E-—f —E——%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHExT
Total segment profit BARREF 38,820 35,319
Share of results of associates i NG E 20,417 18,500
Loss on extinguishment of convertible notes IR R IR R ES 1R - (829)
Equity-settled employee share-based payments DARERS S E IR D XA YR B 1A (2,947) -
Corporate overheads NaEERY (25,235) (23,903)
Other unallocated income EfbRDEUA 173 1,921
Profit before income tax BREFISFAI R FI 31,228 31,008
Reportable segment assets A2{DBEE 1,382,697 1,427,647
Goodwill [EE 37,048 37,048
Interests in associates B & A R AR R 137,402 134,306
Corporate assets RAIEE 59,476 71,739
Total assets HmEE 1,616,623 1,670,740
No geographical information is presented as the operations, major HARAEBNER TERFREERSMNRFEH -
customers and assets of the Group are substantially located in the PRC. AT 25| @ E R -
The Group has a large number of customers and there was no significant AEEHBERERF HE_T——FR-_ZT—F
revenue derived from specific external customers for the years ended T A=+ —RULEFETERBFEIINAZTPHEKR
31 December 2012 and 2011. iz o
7. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME 7. WHEKREMKA
2012 2011
—E-—fF —E——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FAxT
Revenue, which also represents the Group’s turnover W (TIEREBNEEE)
Proceeds from sale of properties held for sale HEFEYERERIA 258,937 362,763
Rental income GiEE AL N 13,165 12,419
272,102 375,182
Other income Hug A
Interest income ) B YA 3,325 6,005
Exchange gain, net bE 5 e 5 58 233 2,937
Others Hih 1,178 2,048
4,736 10,990
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE-_Z——F+-_F=+—HILFE

8. FINANCE COSTS

Notes to the Financial Statements

B TSR AR B RE

8. BEMRAL

2012 2011
- —T——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FET
Interest charges on borrowings which are repayable ERAFAEENEEFNEER -
within five years:
Bank loans RITER 10,093 13,022
Other loan HMER 8 -
Imputed interest expense on loans from R R E AR A B X
non-controlling shareholders 2,071 2,315
12,172 15,337
Interest charges on borrowings which are repayable ERAFREENEEFNEER
after five years:
Bank loans RITER 497 2,916
12,669 18,253
Interest charge on convertible notes (Note 27) ARRERNFEER(H:727) 9,188 5,669
Total interest expense on financial liabilities not at TE?H?Z’/}/‘HETEBA?E =51 AR
fair value through profit or loss SREEMN S B 21,857 23,922
Less: amount capitalised in properties held under Vi BEIR B R Y EE AR BEE
development * (19,920) (17,717)
1,937 6,205

* The finance costs have been capitalised at a rate of 3.29% (2011: 3.15%) *

per annum.

The analysis shows the finance costs of bank borrowings, including term
loans which contain a repayment on demand clause, in accordance with
the agreed scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan agreements.
For the years ended 31 December 2012 and 2011, the interest on bank
borrowings which contain a repayment on demand clause amounted to

L

¢¢F£

approximately HK$1,811,000 and HK$1,634,000 respectively.

ER-HE-Z—=

flg e

BERADIRENEI29%(ZF——4%F : 3.15%) &

BRI RRITERNRERE - BFEREESRBE
PRI E AT EI(EIR A HPREREREE R
—FER=F——Ft-HA=1—H

FRHOTE B

MERBSKER FRARITEENF S0 5

#49%1,811,000/ 7T 51,634,000/ 7T °

FEZERARAT

—%

——FFH
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE-_Z——F+-F=+—HILFE

9. PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX 9. BRAFBBIRIZF
2012 2011
—E-C=F —T—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FHT
Profit before income tax is arrived at after charging/ BRFT1S AL AT & A TR0k, (FTA)
(crediting): TR :
Cost of properties held for sale recognised as expense R AR KIS E W EERK A 220,115 315,423
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment Y -« BB REEITE 3,581 4,758
Less: amount capitalised in properties held under B BRI EE R EREEE
development (292) (36)
3,289 4,722
Outgoings in respect of investment properties that ERRAEEELRSWAZREME
generated rental income during the year 5] 3,087 3,071
Operating lease charges in respect of land and buildings &t MIEFHEELHEEH 309 336
Auditor's remuneration ZE NS
— Audit services — 1ZE RIS 1,280 1,200
— Other services — H A AR 7S 634 150
Staff costs (including directors’ emoluments) ETA(BIEEEMNE)
— Directors’ fee —E=0s 836 788
— Salaries and other benefit in kind *%"%%&ﬁ%?%ﬂ¥ 33,378 34,238
— Amount recognised as expense for retirement RARNER A MEE
benefit costs 2,549 1,362
— Equity-settled employee share-based payments — AR A E RN IR I8 2,947 -
Less: amount capitalised in properties held W BREERAYEEARE
under development HIEER (13,276) (11,497)
26,434 24,891
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment HEYE  BENRENER 8,174 15
Loss on extinguishment of convertible notes (note 27) 44 ATRIE IR KBS 1B (f1:227) = 829
Impairment loss on amount due from an associate e — RSB LN B B AR B EE 192 -
Impairment loss on other receivables E b EUHIB R R E &R 1,602 -
Impairment loss on properties held for sales HEMERREREE 759 1,507
Gain on disposal of investment properties B EREMENRE (2,477) (835)
Exchange gain, net Rl et (233) (2,937)
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE-_Z——HF4+_A=+—HILFE

10.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

10. A%

B RS ERAR B AL

2012 2011
—F--F —
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Hist FET FET
Current tax — the PRC ENHAR I8 — R
Corporate income tax EMBETR (a) 8,699 5,270
LAT i ih: 4 =57 (b)
— current year —REE 6,273 11,741
— over-provision in prior years —BEFERERE (7,380) -
7,592 17,011
Deferred taxation (note 18) RIERIIE(H7718) 8,138 3,120
Total income tax charge FriSti & s 15,730 20,131
Notes: Hat
(a) The PRC corporate income tax is computed according to relevant laws and (a) PR EATER IR EDEAE AR LB - HE

(b)

regulations in the PRC. The applicable income tax rate was 25% for the
years ended 31 December 2012 and 2011.

No Hong Kong profits tax has been provided for as the Group had no
estimated assessable profits for the year (2011: Nil).

Under the Provisional Rules on LAT Implementation Rules of the PRC
implemented on 27 January 1995, all gains from the sales or transfer of
land use rights, buildings and their attached facilities in the PRC are subject
to LAT at progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60% on the appreciation
of land value, being the proceeds of sales of properties less deductible
expenditures including cost of land use rights and all property development
expenditures.

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the profit

(b)

- —FR-ZF——F+-A=+—BILFENE
FAFTS BT = /25% o

AR S B AR R S T ] i AR B A
—R——F ) A EREFATENEHER
B

RER—NANREF— A+ BERENT R HIEE
FETIREIE AR - A RSk ER T EN+
A - BT RABREREMES IR - BB
T iIRER - A T R EE (RS S MRS
ER AR S L - BIE i AR A R T a Y%
BRASZ)AREEGHE - B30%ZE60%TEF ©

REZPRS TR AT BAR S Uz R BB PRIS BT & 7

before income tax per the consolidated income statement as follows: HERINT -
2012 2011
—E-——fF —T——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FET
Profit before income tax FRETIS BRI &R 31,228 31,008
Tax on profit before income tax, calculated at the rates 1R E R E ER AEA MR ERTE
applicable in the tax jurisdiction concerned FREF1S 55 AT A F B9 T 18 11,608 9,316
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses AR S R IS 2 10,701 8,922
Tax effect of non-taxable revenue BERB T 2 (13,755) (15,307)
Tax effect of temporary difference arising from ROMEBF BT A E R =R TEER
withholding tax for undistributed profits ki -2 1,798 1,826
Tax effect of unused tax losses not recognised RERRBD AR EBBNT ST E 5,023 =
LAT (credit)/charge THIEER (K R), X H (1,107) 11,741
Others Hib 1,462 3,633
Income tax expense for the year REEFFEHEX 15,730 20,131
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11.

12.

For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE-_Z——HF4+_-_A=+—RALFE

DIVIDENDS 11. BE
Dividends attributable to the year: FAEERE
2012 2011
—E——fF —T——%F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Proposed 2012 final dividend of 0.2 HK cents Bk—E——FREAREEGREBK
(2011: 0.3 HK cents) per ordinary share 0.28(L(=ZZ——%F : 0.3%(L) 2,571 3,854

The final dividend proposed after the years ended 31 December 2012
and 2011 had not been recognised as a liability at the end of the
reporting period, but reflected as an appropriation of retained profits for
the year.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the profit
attributable to the owners of the Company of approximately
HK$8,208,000 (2011: HK$12,163,000) and on weighted average of
1,284,780,869 (2011: 1,279,169,644) ordinary shares in issue during
the year.

In the calculation of diluted earnings per share attributable to the owners
of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2012, the potential
shares arising from the conversion of the Company’s convertible notes
would increase the earnings per share attributable to the owners of the
Company and was not taken into account as they had an anti-dilutive
effect. Therefore, the diluted earnings per share attributable to the
owners of the Company is based on the profit attributable to the owners
of the Company of approximately HK$8,208,000 and on weighted
average of 1,286,858,075 ordinary shares outstanding during the year
ended 31 December 2012, being the weighted average number of
ordinary shares of 1,284,780,869 used in basic earnings per share
calculation adjusted for the effect of share options issued of 2,077,206.

In the calculation of diluted earnings per share attributable to the owners
of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2011, the potential
shares arising from the conversion of the Company’s convertible notes
would increase the earnings per share attributable to the owners of the
Company and was not taken into account as they had an anti-dilutive
effect. Therefore, the diluted earnings per share attributable to the
owners of the Company is based on the profit attributable to the owners
of the Company of approximately HK$12,163,000 and on weighted
average of 1,280,795,438 ordinary shares outstanding during the year
ended 31 December 2011, being the weighted average number of
ordinary shares of 1,279,169,644 used in basic earnings per share
calculation adjusted for the effect of share options issued of 1,625,794.

12.

HEZZ——Fk-_ZT—F+=-A=+—HLEFE
FHERRER B AN R EHRRERAAE - BE
ez FEMRBREFIDIK

BREF

FRRE AR F) T3 A A 7L S R4S B2 ) 498,208,000
BIT(ZZE——4 1 12,163,000/ 7T) R ERNE BT
LA R NAE 19 811,284,780,8690% ( =T ——4F :
1,279,169,6440% )51 -

HEHE-E-—F+t-A=t—HIEENERT
R EEZRE SRR - SRR AR A RRERE
EMBERGDSEINAARREEGEREF - BE
EHRHMARBEYE  MUEAEERN - Bt -
AARRREESREERIIERNNGREEGR
F#78,208,0008 ThEE—TE——F+-A=+—
HIEFE B 28T mRAMNE T E1,286,858,075
fREHE - Bl E 172,077,206 B AR 1 0 &7
2 ARETRERRF LR INE S8
1,284,780,869% ©

HEEE T ——F A=t HIEFENERRF
BRREIEFRESRNE - LRARRRIRRRRE
ERBERMDSILNARBRREESHRETN - BE
ARERMNARESYE  BUBAEER - BiL - A
REIPCRE(G S IS B AR A R B IR R (S 27
#912,163, 0008 TREE T ——F+=-_A=+—
B IEFE B 31T @Ak ey hn#E 715 801,280,795,438
MRETE - BN ARE 171,625,794 BRRER &
2 ARAESREREBNN LB INE T
1,279,169,6448% °
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For the year ended 31 December 2012

B RS ERAR B AL

BHE-Z——F+-A=1+—HI=EE
13. GOODWILL 13. B8
Group
rEH
2012 2011
—E-—F —E——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Gross amount s
Balance as at 1 January and 31 December R—A—BERt+t-A=+—HHNEH 37,048 37,048

The goodwill as at 31 December 2012 comprises mainly goodwill
arising from the acquisition of New Heritage Investments Limited of
approximately HK$33,672,000 in 2005.

The recoverable amount for the cash-generating units, the underlying
hotel and property operations, in relation to New Heritage Investments
Limited was determined based on value in use calculation, covering
a detailed 5-year cash flow projection followed by an extrapolation of
expected cash flows with a nil growth rate. The pre-tax discount rate for
value in use calculation is 12.90% (2011: 5.71%).

The management’s key assumptions for the Group have been
determined based on past performance and their expectations for the
market development. The pre-tax discount rate reflects specific risks
relating to the relevant cash-generating unit.

Management also believes that any reasonably possible change in the
key assumptions on which the recoverable amount is based would not
cause the carrying amount of goodwill to exceed its recoverable amount.

Apart from the considerations described above in determining the value
in use of the cash-generating units, the management is not currently
aware of any other probable changes that would necessitate changes in
their key assumptions.

R-ZFE——F+_A=+—HNEEXELER
—ETHFRETECERRARELENEEY
33,672,000/ 7T °

EEFECEERARBESELEN - HEBERY
EEBHR KB SENREABEFELET  BE
HAEMSTFHIR S RERE - SFEATHRRNEH
WEMEEIMETE - FREEEEFARANITE
RAE1290%(—F——%F :571%) °

EEEHASENEIZRRNIBEEEBERRLE
BEHTISERMMERETE - HAFHEERBR T H
HERSEL BN A RN ERR

FEEERE  TERRPEMENATEESENS
BB IS SR ERAEREE T KIS

BEiEFReELEUEREENEEREN &
I 2 B 130 N AR E A A RE B ) i R B B E P
EERRHER
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT - GROUP

For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE-_Z——HF4+_-_A=+—RALFE

14. Y% BERRE -—FEE

Leasehold Operating and
land and Leasehold Motor office Furniture
buildings  improvements vehicles equipment  and fixtures Total
HELHR HENE EERBAE
¥ £ AE #fE  GARRE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TR TR TR
At 1 January 2011 RZE—F—H—H
Cost A 61,533 9,903 3,138 7,168 2,616 84,358
Accumulated depreciation 25E (5,090) (6,882) (968) (5,212) (1,684) (19,836)
Net book amount REFE 56,443 3,021 2,170 1,956 932 64,522
Year ended 31 December 2011 Bz ZT——%+-A=1t—H
It5E
Opening net book amount FE@FE 56,443 3,021 2,170 1,956 932 64,522
Additions NE - 41 - 75 176 292
Disposals HE = (15) = (36) (39) (90)
Depreciation neE (1,848) (1,453) (571) (546) (340) (4,758)
Exchange differences i =R 674 91 73 71 29 938
Closing net book amount FREMFE 55,269 1,685 1,672 1,520 758 60,904
At 31 December 2011 R-B-—-5+-A=1+-BK
and 1 January 2012 —®2--§¥-8-H
Cost PR 62,439 10,235 3,250 7,195 2,762 85,881
Accumulated depreciation 2EHE (7,170) (8,550) (1,578) (5,675) (2,004) (24,977)
Net book amount REFE 55,269 1,685 1,672 1,520 758 60,904
Year ended 31 December 2012 BZ-_Z--f+-B=t-H
HEFE
Opening net book amount EIREFE 55,269 1,685 1,672 1,520 758 60,904
Additions NE - - - 24 21 295
Disposals i (7,641) (55) = (524) (127 (8,347)
Depreciation neE (856) (1,052) (517) (842) (314) (3,581)
Exchange differences b i Z %8 69 5 9 1 4 88
Closing net hook amount EXREERE 46,841 583 1,164 179 592 49,359
At 31 December 2012 R-ZB-—#+-A=1+-H
Cost KA 51,082 9,866 3,270 4,668 2,668 71,554
Accumulated depreciation 2:hE (4,241) (9,283) (2,106) (4,489) (2,076) (22,195)
Net book amount REFE 46,841 583 1,164 179 592 49,359
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE-_Z——HF4+_A=+—HILFE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT — GROUP (contd)

Depreciation expenses have been included in:

B RS ERAR B AL

14. Y% - BERRE-TEBE(#)

FrEMXBIEE NHIFA

2012 2011
—E——F —T——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHIT

Consolidated statement of financial position RE SRR R
— capitalised in properties held under development —BRERPYMEEAR 292 36

Consolidated income statement AWK

— cost of sales — $HE A 343 242
— administrative expenses —{THRAX 2,946 4,480
3,581 4,758

Net book amount of the Group’s leasehold land and buildings shown
above comprises:

EXFIREAEEEE 3 BT R FERE

2012 2011
—E-—fF —T——%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Properties in Hong Kong held under long leases AN EAMERPEE

(not less than 50 years) (T HB0%E) 38,286 39,089

Properties outside Hong Kong held under long leases  FrisE M E B AN E R E
(not less than 50 years) (D RAB0E) 8,555 16,180
46,841 55,269

As at 31 December 2012, certain leasehold land and buildings of
approximately HK$38,286,000 (2011: HK$39,089,000) were pledged to
secure certain bank loans granted to the Group (note 26(a)).

R-ZZE——F+=-F=+—H - 438,286,000/ T
(ZZ——4% : 39,089,000/ 7T ) My # F A & -t M 4&E
FOFEE  AERAEBERNE TEHRITER
F$26(a)) °

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 15. REY*
Group
rEH
2012 2011
—E——F —T——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FHET
Carrying amount at 1 January n—A—BMEREEE 297,340 286,764
Disposals HE (17,540) (9,936)
Fair value adjustments NRBEARE 22,337 8,400
Exchange differences JEE 5, KA 2,457 12,112
Carrying amount at 31 December R+=—A=+—HWRHEE 304,594 297,340
MBRRERAT —T-—FEH 85
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BTSRRI AL

15.

16.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Contd)

As at 31 December 2011, certain investment properties of approximately
HK$158,670,000 were pledged to secure certain bank loans granted to
the Group. The related bank loans have been fully repaid during the year
ended 31 December 2012 and the pledged investment properties have
been released.

Investment properties included leasehold interests in land located in the
PRC with lease terms expiring from 2061 to 2065.

The fair value of the investment properties at 31 December 2012
was based on the valuation by DTZ, a firm of independent qualified
professional valuers. Valuations were based on the properties’ open
market value on 31 December 2012. The properties have been valued
by direct comparison method by making reference to comparable sales
evidence as available in the relevant market and where appropriate, by
capitalising the net rental income derived from the existing tenancies with
due allowance for the reversionary potential of the respective properties as
at the end of the reporting period.

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(a) Investments in subsidiaries

15.

16.

For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE-_Z——HF4+_-_A=+—RALFE

REWM=E7)

RZZT——F+ZA=+—H ' £158,670,000/ T
WETIREMEE THEM - UERASEERNET
ROER -BEZT——F+-_A=1T—RHIFEDN
MHRRITERE BRER - MEBRREMEERR

BREMEBBUNTEN T EERER - HEHN
TERR—FETRAFHEER -

ZERBEMER T —F+_A=1t—HNARE
BEVREBY A BRFEELEMBRRITAETAMN
B - HEDREZENEN—"Z——F+-A=+—H
MAFRTEEE - ZEWEDHEL2RAEHIS LE
LEEHHE R PIA B L BOREITHE - WNEE R
EXMERERBEEONES RN FREAEEREYE
N EHROBELEER D EE -

R B A 7 s

() RHEXIRNRE

Company
NN

2012 2011
—E-—fF —E——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAxT
Unlisted, at cost SELT - BRAE 112,893 112,147
Capital contribution to a subsidiary r—REHEARHE 11,700 11,700
Financial guarantees granted to subsidiaries BTPH B AR RS ER 9,343 8,636
133,936 132,483
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HEZZ—

ZF+ZA=+—HILFE

16. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Contd)

(a)

Investments in subsidiaries (Cont’d)

Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS ERAR B AL

16.

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries, each of which is a limited

T B8 A R Ay

()

(@) RIEQIRNREGE)

R_ZT——F+-_A=t+—HEEBHNBEARAS

liability company, as at 31 December 2012 are as follows: BRARDRI BT :
Place of Issued and fully paid
incorporation/ ordinary share capital/ Attributable equity Principal activities
Company name establishment registered capital interest (Place of operations)
Bl ye BRTRAR
ARER Jveich EEREEREA LR AR TEEB(EXHH)
Directly  Indirectly
B Gk
New Heritage Corporation Limited* British Virgin Islands 347 shares of US$1 each 100% - Investment holding (HK)
(RCEERAR) (“BVI") ITRERAEGEIET BREER(ER)
AEABRES
New Heritage Development Limited Hong Kong (“HK") 156 shares of HK$1 each - 90%*  Investment holding (HK)
MEERBRAR £ 156l BREELE T REER(ER)
New Heritage Investments Limited HK 6,260,000 shares of HK$10 each - 100% Investment holding (HK)
HMECEERRA B 6,260,0008 SR EE10%E T REZR(ES)
New Heritage (IP) Limited* BVI 1 share of US$1 each - 100% Holding of trademark of
FE(EX)BRAR)" EEERRES IREREELIET the Group (HK)
REASEEE(EE)
New Heritage Land Limited HK 1 share of HK$1 each - 100% Investment holding (HK)
HMENERRRR B IREREELET REER(ER)
New Heritage Management Limited HK 1 share of HK$1 each - 100%  Administration vehicle of the
MEERARRA B IREREELET Group (HK)
EEASBTRIEES)
New Heritage Properties Limited HK 1 share of HK$1 each - 100% Investment holding (HK)
MEMERRRA B IREREELET REER(EHE)
Prosper View Group Limited** HK 10,000 shares of HK$1 each - 46%*  Investment holding (HK)
BAEEERAR B 10,0000 B EELET REER(ER)
World Margin Limited HK 800,000 shares of HK$1 each - 100%  Treasury vehicle of
HREB AT Bk 800,000 B AEELHET the Group (HK)
REAEENSETEES)
Suzhou Garden Villa Development & PRC (Note (a)) US$20,550,000 - 86%*  Properties development and
Management Co., Ltd.* RE(Hiita) 20,550,000 7T investment (PRC)
FMNBERRREREBBRAA" MERRERRE (PE)
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16. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Contd)

(a) Investments in subsidiaries (Cont'd)

For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE-_Z——F+-F=+—HILFE

16. RELQRNER (2

(a) RHBLATWREE)

(b)

Place of Issued and fully paid
incorporation/ ordinary share capital/ Attributable equity Principal activities
Company name establishment registered capital interest (Place of operations)
AL ERIRBRE
AREH Rt % EEREEMER FEfh R AR TEER(EX )
Directly Indirectly
E# %
Suzhou New Heritage GF Limited* PRC (Note (b)) US$26,600,000 - 55%*  Properties development and
EMNBAHERBR AR RE(AEFD)) 26,600,000 7T investment (PRC)
MEBRRIRE (FE)
Suzhou New Heritage Wuzhong Limited*  PRC (Note (b)) US$3,000,000 - 54%*  Properties development and
BFME2HEERAR B (A3 (b) 3,000,000%7¢ investment (PRC)***
MERRERRE (PRI
Suzhou New Heritage WZA Limited* PRC (Note (b)) US$7,000,000 - 100%  Properties development and
BN U ERRAR Bl b)) 7,000,000%7C investment (PRC)
MEBRRRE (FE)
New Heritage WJA Limited* PRC (Note (b)) US$33,000,000 - 94%*  Properties development and
RIHMEHEERAR REI(fT2 (b)) 33,000,000 7T investment (PRC)

*k

Notes:

(a)

(b)

(c)

The statutory financial statements of these subsidiaries are not
audited by BDO Limited.

The Group has an effective interest of 46% in Prosper View Group
Limited (“PVGL”"). In the opinion of the directors, the Group has the
power to control over the financial and operating policies of PVGL
and PVGL is consolidated in the financial statements accordingly.

On 14 September 2011, the company applied for deregistration at
the Suzhou Bureau of Commerce which has subsequently approved
the deregistration of the company on 28 January 2013.

Approximate percentage.

This subsidiary is registered as a Sino-foreign cooperative joint
venture under the PRC law.

These subsidiaries are registered as wholly foreign owned
enterprises under the PRC law.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the end
of the reporting period.

Amounts due from/(to) subsidiaries

The amounts due are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on
demand.

(b)

*x

* ok

(a)

(b)

(c)

WEERRRE (RE)

ZEN B A BMAEM BREWARLE L
EREENEBAARARER

AEEREHASEERLF (B M
A% EBRBAE - BEFRA - AEEAEES
B BAROR 75 RAS S R - UL BAR AR
BITSRRPEEARR

DA ZF——F AT RN
BREFRHELT » HEZBR_FT—=
— A=t A\BHAEARBBUEER ©

BB -

ZMERRRBEHBEARERLATINGES

BRA] o
ZEMBRRAREFTEARELAINEBE
F o

REESRR - GHRME D R RTEMESE

FEW, (FEAT) B S 2 A 508

ZERBTELIN - 28 MARERFER
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE-_Z——HF4+_A=+—HILFE

17. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS ERAR B AL

17. REBE QT NER

Group
AEH
2012 2011
—E-—F —T——fF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Mt FET FHT
Share of net assets ELEEFE (a) 137,158 133,870
Amount due from an associate e — RIS i A B FRIE 436 436
Impairment loss RIERE (b) (192) =
244 436
137,402 134,306
Notes: Bzt -
(a) Particulars of associates as at 31 December 2012 are as follows: (a) R ——F4+ - A=+ — AL ARIMEBOT :
Place of incorporation/
establishment and Percentage of
Company name operation interest held Principal activities
MR
ARIEH PRSI R B B 4t B IR EEER
Beijing Landmark Towers Co., Ltd.* PRC 30.05% Hotel ownership and property investment
IREEAREERAT* FE BEREERMERE
Art Shine Limited* HK 40% Investment holding
BATER R A R B REER
* * ZEMERNRNEE M BRI AREEEL

audited by BDO Limited.

The statutory financial statements of these associates are not

FREGHMEBMERATES

(b) The amount due is unsecured, interest-free and not repayable within twelve (b) i %\Eﬁﬂgﬁ CRE - BEAAWEHREH

months from the end of the reporting period.

(c) Summarised financial information of associates:

+=EARERE -

(c) HBERTNHBEMBRNT :

2012 2011

—E——F —T——fF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHT FHET

Revenue s 362,404 329,730
Profit after income tax MRETEELE AT 67,513 61,553
Non-current assets ERBEE 448,502 472,437
Current assets MENAE 142,640 93,827
Current liabilities MENAE 108,176 91,469
Non-current liabilities EREARE 27,058 29,398
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Eﬂ'ﬁ%ﬁ%:z M;J--EI For the year ended 31 December 2012
N =] HE-_Z——F+-A=1+—HIFE

18. DEFERRED TAXATION 18. ELEBIE

ERE=REENEEHEEE (ABE)NEBHMT :

The movement in deferred tax assets/(liabilities) arising from temporary

differences are as follows:

Group Company
rEH NG|
In respect of
Fair value withholding Convertible Convertible
adjustments  In respect of tax for notes notes
on investment provision  undistributed equity equity
properties for LAT profits reserves Total reserves
REMHEH BELt BEEAIR TRREE TRERER
AABERE BEHEE BRAURENR BnfE @t BnfE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TET TET TET
Balance as at 1 January 2011 R-E——%—f—H
Rk (33,750) 1,929 (2,068) (220) (34,109) (220)
Deferred tax (charged)/credited to the  FMBASER(301%) /B EIEIE LR
profit or loss (note 10) B(Hz#10) (1,514) - (1,826) 220 (3,120) 220
Exchange differences ERESR (1,468) 82 (65) - (1,451) -
Balance as at 31 December 2011 R-B—F+-A=+-HR
and 1 January 2012 —T- R Bmisk (36,732) 2,011 (3,959) = (38,680) =
Deferred tax charged to the profit or loss A BEHIRR HUE TR I8
(note 10) (Fizt10) (4,495) (1,845) (1,798) = (8,138) =
Exchange differences i =R (335) 1 (28) = (362) =
Balance as at 31 December 2012 R-B-—E+-A=1+—-AHK
53] (41,562) 167 (5,785) = (47,180) =

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10% withholding
tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign investors from the foreign-
invested enterprises established in the PRC. The requirement is effective
from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31 December 2007.
The Group is therefore liable for withholding taxes on dividends
distributed by those subsidiaries and an associate established in the PRC
in respect of earnings generated from 1 January 2008. The deferred tax
liabilities in respect of temporary differences attributable to undistributed
profits of the PRC subsidiaries and associate have been recognised in
profit or loss.

RIBEFBEEEMSTUE - RPBKIIMNINE RE AR
SMREE T IRAIIR SIRIR10%AANTENR © ARTER =
TEN\F-A-HBEY  BAR_ETLF+_A
=t —RUREENEF - Fit - AREARRHE
RIZEMIB AR R — B ERARR T NF—H—
B AR E AR AT D IKEVAR S B TRNTE © B
B8 2R ) B Bt A R i R 0 TR B N P A e RR 2 R
EHRBEAGBDRERRDRER
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E-T-——F+-A=+—HIFE

18. DEFERRED TAXATION (Contd)

18. EEMIE ()

B RS ERAR B AL

The following is the analysis of the deferred taxation balances for MUBREENTS - BEBELEBRIWTHAT ¢
financial reporting purposes:
Group Company
AEH PN
2012 2011 2012 2011
—g-—=% —T 4% B T —F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT FET FHT
Deferred tax assets EEFRIEEE 167 2,011 - =
Deferred tax liabilities EEFRIEEE (47,347) (40,691) - =
(47,180) (38,680) = =
The amount of the deferred tax asset not recognised during the year is as FRREIEERIBEERENT
follows:
Group Company
AEH PN
2012 2011 2012 2011
—®-—-f -T 4% =-B-fF T —F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET FHET FHET
Tax effect of: Bz eE
— unused tax losses — REABFHIEEIE 31,112 786 30,286 =

Deferred tax asset in respect of tax losses has not been recognised
in the financial statements due to the unpredictability of future profit
streams against which the tax losses can be utilised. The tax losses of
the subsidiaries operating in the PRC can be carried forward for 5 years
and tax losses of the subsidiaries operating in Hong Kong will not expire
under the current tax legislation.

A AR TIR B B R KA R E e T A I8
M IR SRR B R B B R RER IR E
E o R B EN M E QR MR AR R ] A 855F

MAELSENHE R

TEEH

A BB RARERITEOAR

FEZERARAR
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE-_Z——HF4+_-_A=+—RALFE

19. PROPERTIES HELD UNDER DEVELOPMENT — GROUP 19. BERAPYE-—FKEE
2012 2011
—E-——F —T——%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Amounts comprise: SREPE
Construction costs FRERRK AR 234,314 176,059
Land use rights + b A #E 175,004 266,676
Interest capitalised FBEERE 9,498 3,321
418,816 446,056
The capitalisation rate used to determine the amount of interest incurred ZE - FARNEEFEANMUGGOR S ENE
eligible for capitalisation in 2012 was 3.29% (2011: 3.15%). BEFIEAB3.29%(—ZF——4F : 3.15%) ©
Properties held under development included leasehold interests in land T %#@%{ﬁﬁéﬂ}:ﬂ’qiﬁ%ﬂ%ﬁéﬁé - THEHH
located in the PRC with lease terms expiring from 2047 to 2077. “TMEFE_TEEFEER
As at 31 December 2012, certain leasehold interests in land of RZFB——HF+=-H=+—8H ;%’971,597,0005%73
approximately HK$71,597,000 (2011: HK$210,978,000) were pledged (ZT——%F: 210’,978,0007%2@ HWETHHWHAE
to secure certain bank loans granted to the Group (note 26(a)). T B AR BRI 098 TIRTTE AT DU (M 5E
26(a)) °
20. PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE - GROUP 20. FEVE-—XREE
Properties held for sale included leasehold interests in land located in FEVELELNTBEN T nHERER - HEHH
the PRC with lease terms expiring from 2061 to 2077. ZERRFETEEFRER -
As at 31 December 2012, the carrying value of the leasehold ﬁé:%ﬁ_ii‘f'iﬂf_‘f'—ﬁ 2 :ti‘MEE%ﬁT%E’\JEEE
interests in land amounted to approximately HK$74,808,000 %%@%74,808,000;%7E(:’—?**¢ : 77,998,000
(2011: HK$77,998,000). TL) °
21. INVENTORIES - GROUP 21. FE-XREHE
Inventories represent low value consumables carried at cost. FEERRAEARNEESERD -
22. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 22. FEURBRFX
Group
rEH
2012 2011
—E-—F —=——%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET Tt
Accounts receivable JEUBREFX 139 84
Less: Provision for impairment OB = -
139 84
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E-T-——F+-A=+—HIFE

22. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (Conta)

Accounts receivable represents rental income from leasing properties.
Monthly rents are normally received in advance and sufficient rental
deposits are held to minimise credit risk. Accounts receivable generally
have credit terms of 30 to 60 days (2011: 30 to 60 days) and no interest
is charged. All accounts receivable are denominated in Renminbi. The
ageing analysis of the Group’s accounts receivable, based on invoice
dates, is as follows:

22.

B RS ERAR B AL

FEWR R (42)

FEMERFIETREMHENBEE KA - EAESEEREK
- IRARENESERE REEERR - BUER
FEEEH—MRA0E0R(—F——4F : 30E60X)
KNGS o FIERPERFAARKHE - REERK
ERNRRIZEZEOMT

Group

AEH
2012 2011
—B-—=F =%
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Within 30 days 30KAA 139 63
31-60 days 31—60X = =
61-90 days 61—90X = -
91-120 days 91-120x = -
121-365 days 121-365K = 21
139 84

The carrying amount of accounts receivable is considered a reasonable
approximation of fair value as this financial asset, which is measured at
amortised cost, is expected to be paid within a short timescale, such that
the time value of money impact is not significant.

Accounts receivable, based on due dates, which are past due are
analysed as follows:

YERFOREERR AR EROAREE - FZE
SRAETZBERATIR - WEHARNEBRAAN
Hit - WEEBANESRELE -

BHRUCRSIZEIRI A AT T

Group
REME
2012 2011
—E-——fF —T——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Fully conformed with credit term REEHZEEE 139 63
Past due but not impaired B EE ROR(E = 21
139 84

Past due but not impaired receivables represent rental income. The
directors consider that these receivables would be recovered and no
provision was made against past due as at 31 December 2012 and
2011.

As at 31 December 2012, accounts receivable of approximately
HK$139,000 (2011: HK$63,000) were neither past due nor impaired.
These related to a number of customers for whom there was no recent
history of default.

BEBERRERKFEAESKA - EFRARSRE
YRkER FUE AR - ——FR_T——F
+= A=+ — BAEBE AL E A -

R-T——F+-A=+—H  £%#4139,000/E7T
(ZZ——1F : 63,0007 7T ) # & U BR TR0 o 280 HA K2 0L
B - BRI EEZODENSRREEER -
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE-_Z——HF4+_-_A=+—RALFE

23. DEPOSITS PAID, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER 23. Eff#%% » ANRERHGEKRRE
RECEIVABLES
Group
rEE
2012 2011
—E-—F =%
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FET
Deposits paid and prepayments Bfitke RTFENRIE 11,813 18,955
Other receivables E b FEYGRIR 20,673 29,997
32,486 48,952
During the year, the Group’s other receivable of approximately FR - AREELL,602,0008 T (ZE——F : E)Y
HK$1,602,000 (2011: Nil) was individually determined to be impaired. Ha R IaEERIEER TRE - AEEEEER
In the opinion of the Group’s management, the amount was considered B e BEE AEERE - WHRAFEEERZEEE
irrecoverable and an impairment of approximately HK$1,602,000 RBEL1,602,0008 T(ZF——F : &) -
(2011: Nil) has been recognised in profit or loss for the year.
The carrying amounts of deposits paid and other receivables approximate BffiEe REMERZIBENEAEREE QAR EMBE
to their fair values. Other receivables, other than the balance of £ o BREEHA%1,602,00078 TR E B EIN - Hitb
approximately HK$1,602,000 which has been provided for impairment, B B HA 7T AR R0 (B 1Y P8 L kT8 B3 HA N A R G 8%
were neither past due nor impaired and were related to a number of ZRRXGHER -
counterparties for whom there was no recent history of default.
24. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 24. FE{SERFX
Based on the invoice dates, the ageing analysis of the Group’s accounts AREBEEMBRTORKRIZZEZE AT ¢
payable is as follows:
Group
rEE
2012 2011
—E-—F —=——%F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
BiaE FExT FET
Within 30 days 30 KRR 75 171
31-60 days 31—60XK 9 64
61-90 days 61—90X - -
91-365 days 91—365K 91 70
Over 365 days 365 KA E 1,345 1,253
Rent received on behalf of landlords REZPEHHEE (a) 1,520 1,558
Accrued construction cost and other project- FEETREER AR EAIER
related expenses MM (b) 90,677 88,307
92,197 89,865
All amounts are short term and hence the carrying values of the Group’s FrARIARBAE BFRIE - SRS B e N AR AR A BRE (B 4R
accounts payable are considered to be a reasonable approximation of RIEREARBEAEES -
fair value.
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24. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE (Contd) . BERRE)

Notes: Ha

(a) Rent received on behalf of landlords comprised net rental received from (a) REXWEHAES2EREP WEHESIBRINA R
tenants after netting off fee charged to them provided by external service AL e P U ER B 1 HUFT 15358 o
providers.

(b)  Included in the above amounts are construction cost and other project- (b) LiHeBEEER-T——-F+-A=+—BWHER
related expenses payable amounted to approximately HK$90,677,000 FESERK AR K E 18 B 48 B 7 X 490,677,000 7T
(2011: HK$88,307,000) as at 31 December 2012 which were accrued (Z=Z——4 : 88,307,000/87T) * & X HiRIEH
based on the terms of the relevant agreements and the progress of the S ER REEEERS AR -2 ——F+—F8
projects, and were not due for payment as at 31 December 2012. =+—BHARBEEA -

25. ACCRUALS, DEPOSITS RECEIVED AND OTHER 25. E:tEBH - SRS REMENZIE
PAYABLES

Group
AEH
2012 2011
—E-——F —T——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FBRT FET
Deposits received B lkize 106,455 41,556
Accruals and other payables FEETE R R E M FE 5B 29,355 47,928
135,810 89,484
All amounts are short term and hence the carrying values of the Group’s FEEBRRHRIE  AEBEEER  BElke
accruals, deposits received and other payables are considered to be a REMEBENFIENRAERREAEARAREBEGE
reasonable approximation to their fair values. HE -
26. BORROWINGS 26. HE
Group
AEH
2012 2011
—E-—F —ET——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FBRT FET
Current liabilities REEE
Portion of term loans from banks due for AR—FANEIBEENTH
repayment within one year IRITERED 77,782 135,384
Portion of term loans from banks due for AR —FRIHEENBE SR
repayment after one year which contain ER(E B IR E HASRTT
a repayment on demand clause BERED 44,683 51,863
Loan from a related company —FRE AR ER 5,000 =
Loans from non-controlling shareholders JEIERRAR S E X 92,062 =
219,527 187,247
Non-current liabilities ERBARE
Bank loans RITER = 77,982
Loans from non-controlling shareholders JEIERRRR R B 19,771 112,672
19,771 190,654
239,298 377,901
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26.

BORROWINGS (Contd)

The interest-bearing bank borrowings, including the term loans repayable
on demand, are carried at amortised cost. None of the portion of term

26.

For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE-_Z——HF4+_-_A=+—RALFE

BE#)

FERRTER(BRAREREENERER) gk
SHECATIER - BN — IR BEER ;
S £ 3

loans due for repayment after one year, which contain a repayment on GBRENEATHABENEHERSDIBERHEAR
demand clause and is classified as a current liability, is expected to be FERFE o
settled within one year.
Borrowings were repayable as follows: AEBEENAT
Group
TEE
2012 2011
—E——-F —ZT——%
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
KiaE FET T
Within one year —FR
Term loans, unsecured TEEER - EIEH (d) 17,267 9,833
Term loans, secured EHER - AEE (a),(d) 60,515 125,551
Loan from a related company, unsecured —MEEARER - EIEE (c) 5,000 =
Loans from non-controlling shareholders, FEIERRAR R E R - K
unsecured (b) 92,062 -
In the second year F-FR
Term loans, unsecured FEHE R - KA (d) 9,855 6,266
Term loans, secured TEHER - HiKH (a),(d) 10,915 66,512
Loans from non-controlling shareholders, IEIERRAR R E R - K
unsecured (b) 19,771 92,748
In the third to fifth year =ZhF
Term loans, unsecured FEHE R - KA (d) 6,160 6,014
Term loans, secured TEHER - HiKH (a),(d) 15,753 43,855
Loans from non-controlling shareholders, FEIERRAR R E R - K
unsecured (b) - 19,924
After the fifth year AFEE
Term loans, secured FEHER - AEE (a),(d) 2,000 7,198
239,298 377,901
Notes: Bzt

(a)

(b)

Bank loans were secured by pledge of certain leasehold land and buildings
and properties held under development of the Group (notes 14 and 19).

Loans from non-controlling shareholders are unsecured and interest-
free. The loans were initially recognised at fair value and subsequently
stated at amortised cost which was estimated by discounting the nominal
value of the loans at effective interest rate. During the year ended
31 December 2012, the Group has made partial repayment of certain loans
to non-controlling shareholders. The directors considered that such early
repayment represented a modification of the original loans and accordingly,
the effective interest rates were adjusted at the date of modification.

For the year ended 31 December 2011, the Group renegotiated the terms
of certain loans with non-controlling shareholders. The directors considered
that such revision did not represent a modification of the original loans and
accordingly, the extinguishment accounting was adopted to derecognise
these existing loans and new loans were recognised at their fair values. The
resulting adjustment of approximately HK$1,641,000 was recognised in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity as a capital contribution from
the non-controlling shareholders.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the effective interest rates of the
loans were in the range of 1.61% to 4.55% (2011: 1.60% to 4.10%) per
annum.

() SRITEFAAEEMETHELREFRERTYE
(PRE14 R 19)VE RHRAR

(b)  FEEBRBRRERSEERRRE - ZUEREREZRA
EERER - BEIREHER AR - #ERATI AR
MR ZI BB EG ST - BE—T——4F
TAZT—IFE - ARE R IHERBIRER T
DER - BEFAR/EHRTEFREXNEREER &
BERAERAZEZ AR TRE -

BHE_T——F+-A=1+—BIFE  ~EEHEE
RRRREMERE T ERNGR - EFRAEHE
RINEMERE ER - ME RN HER R
ZEREER  WIRE QA EEERIER - FTELS
#11,641,000/8 TRAB N R AR E B RANERRIE
ERRBERME -

HE-_T—F+-A=+—BILFE  EXEEF
ENFTBFLI6I%EL45%(ZF——F : 1.60% =
4.10%) 28 °
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26.

TE-—F+-A=t+—HIFE

B RS ERAR B AL

BORROWINGS (Contd) 26. fEE(#)

Notes: (Cont'd) Wizt - ()

(c) Loan from a related company, Chong Lai (Panama) S.A. (“Chong Lai"), (c) #8382 A]Chong Lai (Panama) S.A.([ Chong Lai )M E
is unsecured, interest bearing at HIBOR plus 3% per annum (2011: Nil) RAEER - UEBRITRAZEREENEMNIB(=
and repayable on or before 14 December 2013 (note 34(b)). The effective T——F B EVER-_ZT—=F+=-A+WEA
interest rate of the loan was 3.28% per annum during the year. K7 ATEE(M:E34(h)) - ERNETNEREN X 5

3.28% °

(d) The amounts due are based on the scheduled repayment dates set out in (d) RSB IRER M EENETE R A AL -
the loan agreements and ignore the effect of any repayment on demand W REIRERERBIEROTE - ZSEERY
clause. These borrowings bore floating interest rates. EYFIEGHE o

The carrying amounts of the borrowings are denominated in the following EERMEA TS A HESA - RBEHFRE

currencies and have the following effective interest rates at the end of the BERFEROT :

reporting period:

Group
AER
2012 2011
—E-—F —E——%F
Effective interest Effective interest
HK$’000 rate per annum HK$'000 rate per annum
FHET BERFRZE FHT BERFHN =X

Hong Kong dollars BT 79,155 1.28% — 4.55% 64,941 1.33% - 4.10%

United States dollars x7T 110,543 1.61% — 2.46% 120,342 1.60% —2.53%

Renminbi AR 49,600 6.40% 192,618 5.56% — 6.90%

239,298 377,901

The Group regularly monitors its compliance with the covenants of the
banking facilities, is up to date with the scheduled repayments of the
term loans and does not consider it probable that the banks will exercise
their discretion to demand repayment for so long as the Group continues
to meet these requirements. Further details of the Group’s management
of liquidity risk are set out in note 38.4. As at 31 December 2012 and
2011, none of the covenants relating to drawn down facilities had been
breached.

AEBTHEREETHERBTERBHRITRE
ROMETIBER  UVRAREREBBEETZE
HE - RITTAAIEITEERNBSEERENR - K&
EREE SRR EENE - SHBHNHIE384 - B
—E—CHFRZF——F+ZA=1+—H FEBEL
EE R RIRE R A BB A BRI E2Y) o
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27.

CONVERTIBLE NOTES

On 10 August 2007, the Company entered into a Convertible Notes
Subscription Agreement (the “Agreement”) with Asia Financial Holdings
Limited (“AFH”) and Asia Insurance Company, Limited (“AICL") (AICL is
a subsidiary of AFH which is controlled by the associates of Mr. CHAN
Bernard Charnwut, the non-executive director of the Company). Pursuant
to the Agreement, AFH and AICL agreed to acquire the convertible notes
(the “2007 Notes”) at HK$50,000,000 and HK$25,000,000 respectively,
in total of the principal amount of HK$75,000,000 at interest rate of
5% per annum, payable in arrears on a quarterly basis on 31 March,
30 June, 30 September and 31 December of each year between the
date of issue of the 2007 Notes and the maturity date. The maturity date
was 60 months from the date of issue of the 2007 Notes.

The 2007 Notes were not transferable and not allowed for redemption
before the maturity date. Unless previously converted, the Company
was obliged to redeem the 2007 Notes on the maturity date at the
redemption price of 110% of the principal amount of the 2007 Notes
outstanding together with accrued interest payables.

The principal amount of HK$35,000,000 (HK$25,000,000 for AFH and
HK$10,000,000 for AICL) of the 2007 Notes should be compulsorily
converted at the conversion price of HK$1.10 within seven business days
if the closing price per share of the Company was HK$1.10 or higher for
ten consecutive trading days during the period between the date of issue
of the 2007 Notes and five business days prior to the maturity date.

In addition, the 2007 Notes could be converted by the holder into
ordinary shares of the Company at any part of the principal amount of
the 2007 Notes in the multiple of HK$25,000,000, at a conversion price
of HK$1.10 per share, at any time during the period between the date of
issue of the 2007 Notes and the maturity date.

68,181,818 was the maximum number of ordinary shares that could be
converted.

Further details of the terms and conditions of the 2007 Notes were
disclosed in the announcement and circular of the Company dated
17 August 2007 and 10 September 2007 respectively.

The 2007 Notes were issued to AFH and AICL on 15 October 2007.

The fair values of the 2007 Notes were determined by the directors of the
Company with reference to the valuation performed by Norton Appraisals
Limited, a firm of independent professional valuers with appropriate
qualifications and recent experiences in the valuation of similar derivative
instruments with reference to market values.

The methods and assumptions applied for the valuation of the 2007
Notes were as follows:

The fair value of the liability component was calculated based on the
present value contractually determined stream of future cash flows
discounted at the required yield, which was determined with reference
to the market interest rate for an equivalent non-convertible notes and
remaining time to maturity.
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27.

CONVERTIBLE NOTES (Contd)

The residual amount, representing the value of the equity component,
was included in the equity attributable to owners of the Company in
convertible notes equity reserves, net of deferred tax.

On 5 July 2011, the Company entered into a subscription agreement
with AFH and AICL in relation to the issue of the 2011 convertible notes
(the “2011 Notes”) at HK$50,000,000 and HK$25,000,000 respectively,
in total of the principal amount of HK$75,000,000 at interest rate of
6% per annum, payable in-arrears on a quarterly basis on 31 March,
30 June, 30 September and 31 December of each year between the
date of issue of the 2011 Notes and the maturity date. The maturity date
is 36 months from the date of issue of the 2011 Notes. Pursuant to the
Subscription Agreement, the Company, AFH and AICL acknowledged
and confirmed that it was the intention of the parties that the proceeds
to be obtained from the issue of the 2011 Notes should be applied
towards the redemption of the 2007 Notes on the date of completion.
Accordingly, notwithstanding that the 2007 Notes did not provide for
any early redemption thereof, the Company, AFH and AICL agreed that,
subject to the presentation of the original of the certificates for the 2007
Notes to the Company, all the 2007 Notes should be redeemed by the
Company on the date of completion at the redemption amount. On
30 September 2011, the subscription price of the 2011 Notes payable by
AFH and AICL was immediately applied by the Company to set-off part of
the redemption amount for redemption of the 2007 Notes. A premium on
a pro rata basis upon the actual holding period over the original period
and the interest accrued thereon up to the redemption date amounting
to HK$6,885,000 was paid to AFH and AICL. Upon redemption, the
2007 Notes were cancelled.

The 2011 Notes are not transferable and will not be allowed for
redemption before the maturity date. Unless previously converted, the
Company is obliged to redeem the 2011 Notes on the maturity date at
the redemption price of 110% of the principal amount of the 2011 Notes
outstanding together with accrued interest payables.

The principal amount of HK$35,000,000 (HK$25,000,000 for AFH
and HK$10,000,000 for AICL) of the 2011 Notes shall be compulsorily
converted at the conversion price of HK$1.10 within seven business
days if the closing price per share of the Company is HK$1.10 or higher
for ten consecutive trading days during the period between the date of
issue of the 2011 Notes and five business days prior to the maturity date.

In addition, the 2011 Notes can be converted by the holder into ordinary
shares of the Company at any part of the principal amount of the 2011
Notes in the multiple of HK$25,000,000, at a conversion price of
HK$1.10 per share, at any time during the period between the date of
issue of the 2011 Notes and the maturity date.

68,181,818 is the maximum number of ordinary shares that can be
converted.

Further details of the terms and conditions of the 2011 Notes were
disclosed in the announcement and circular of the Company dated
5 July 2011 and 25 July 2011 respectively.
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27.

CONVERTIBLE NOTES (cContd)

The 2011 Notes were issued to AFH and AICL on 30 September 2011.

The difference between the redemption amount and the carrying amount
of the liability component represented a loss on extinguishment of
convertible notes of approximately HK$829,000 which was charged to
profit or loss for the year ended 31 December 2011.

The extinguishment accounting was adopted to derecognise the 2007
Notes and the 2011 Notes are recognised at their fair value. The fair
values of the liability component and the equity conversion component of
the 2011 Notes were determined at the issuance of the 2011 Notes.

The fair values of the 2011 Notes of approximately HK$69,400,000 were
determined with reference to the valuation performed by DTZ, a firm of
independent qualified professional valuers with appropriate qualifications
and recent experiences in the valuation of similar derivative instruments
with reference to market values.

The methods and assumptions applied for the valuation of the 2011
Notes are as follows:

The fair value of the liability component of approximately HK$68,500,000
was calculated based on the present value contractually determined
stream of future cash flows discounted at the required yield, which was
determined with reference to the market interest rate for an equivalent
non-convertible notes and remaining time to maturity.

The fair value of the equity component of approximately HK$900,000
was calculated based on the option pricing model, which was included
in the equity attributable to owners of the Company in convertible notes
equity reserves.

The convertible notes recognised in the statement of financial position
are calculated as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE-_Z——F+-_F=+—HILFE
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Group and Company

AEERAKRAT
2012 2011
—E-—fF —T——%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FET
Net carrying amount as at 1 January R—A—BrERmFE 69,675 73,672
Interest expense (Note 8) BRI (B1728) 9,188 5,669
Interest paid BEARFLE (4,513) (3,940)
Redemption during the year FEREML - (74,226)
Issue of the 2011 Notes at fair value BARBEREIT S —FER = 68,500
Net carrying amount as at 31 December RtTZA=+—HNEREFE 74,350 69,675
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27.

28.

B TSR AR B RE

CONVERTIBLE NOTES (Contd) 27. JRREE#E)
The effective interest rate of the liability component is 13.38% (2011: BEBIHNEEFFNRABIZBU(ZE——F
13.38%) per annum. Interest expense on the convertible notes is 13.38%) ° AR ZIENFI S TR E R I ERE
calculated using the effective interest method by applying the effective BEPPUNERNRAE HR_B——FK - FT——
interest rate to the liability component. As at 31 December 2012 and F+-_A=1+—H8 ZE—FEZRBWARLBRELRR
2011, the 2011 Notes were not converted into ordinary shares of the AR o
Company.
SHARE CAPITAL 28. R
2012 2011
—E-—fF —T——f
Number of Number of
shares HK$'000 shares HK$'000
BRHEEE FTEx RmHEE FHT
Authorised: SATE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each EREE0.OLE AL &M 30,000,000,000 300,000 30,000,000,000 300,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRER
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each BREE0.OLB AL BR
At 1 January »—A—H 1,284,538,465 12,845 1,278,639,685 12,786
Issue of ordinary shares on exercise of share REITEER M T @R
options (Note) (Hzt) 860,000 9 5,898,780 59
At 31 December R+=A=t+-8 1,285,398,465 12,854 1,284,538,465 12,845

Note:

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the Company issued 860,000 ordinary
shares of HK$0.01 each in relation to the exercise of the share options by certain
employees of the Group at the subscription price of HK$0.2350 per ordinary share
(note 29). The difference between the subscription price and par value amounting
to approximately HK$194,000 was credited to share premium. In addition, the
portion of share option reserves in relation to the exercise of the share options
exercised during the year of 2012 amounted to approximately HK$76,000 was
transferred to the Company’s share premium.

For the year ended 31 December 2011, the Company issued 5,898,780 ordinary
shares of HK$0.01 each in relation to the exercise of the share options by certain
directors and employees of the Group at the subscription price of HK$0.1915 per
ordinary share (note 29). The difference between the subscription price and par
value amounting to approximately HK$1,070,000 was credited to share premium.
In addition, the portion of share option reserves in relation to the exercise of the
share options exercised during the year of 2011 amounted to approximately
HK$257,000 was transferred to the Company’s share premium.
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29.

SHARE-BASED EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION

Pursuant to the written resolutions of all the then shareholders passed on
14 November 2005, the Company has conditionally adopted the Share
Option Scheme (the “Scheme”) for employee compensation.

The purpose of the Scheme is to provide the Company with a flexible
means of giving incentive to, rewarding, remunerating, compensating
and/or providing benefits to the participants for their contributions to the
Group and for such other purposes as the board of directors (the “Board”)
may approve from time to time.

Pursuant to the Scheme, the Board may, at its discretion, invite any
executive or non-executive directors including independent non-
executive directors or any employees (whether full-time or part-
time) of the Company, its subsidiaries and associated companies;
any discretionary objects of a discretionary trust established by any
employees, executive or non-executive directors of each member of the
Group or its associated companies; any consultants, professional and
other advisers to each member of the Group or its associated companies
(or persons, firms or companies proposed to be appointed for providing
such services); any chief executives or substantial shareholders of the
Company; any associates of any director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company; and any employees (whether full-time or
part-time) of substantial shareholders of the Company, provided that the
Board may have absolute discretion to determine whether or not one
falls within the above categories, (together, the “Participants” and each a
“Participant”), to take up options (“Option(s)”) to subscribe for shares at
a price determined in accordance with the paragraph below.

In determining the basis of eligibility of each Participant, the Board
would take into account such factors as the Board may at its discretion
consider appropriate.

The Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of 10 years
commencing on the date on which the Scheme is adopted, after which
period no further Options will be granted but in all other respects the
provisions of the Scheme shall remain in full force and effect, and
Options which are granted during the life of the Scheme may continue to
be exercisable in accordance with their terms of grant.

The subscription price in respect of each share issued pursuant to the
exercise of Options granted hereunder shall be a price solely determined
by the Board and notified to a Participant and shall be at least the
highest of:

(a)  the closing price of the Company’s shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the business day on which
an offer is accepted by the grantee or if such date of acceptance
by the grantee is not a business day, the immediately preceding
business day;

29.

For the year ended 31 December 2012
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29. SHARE-BASED EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION (Contd)

(b) a price being the average of the closing prices of the Company’s
shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets
for the 5 business days immediately preceding the date on which
an offer is accepted by the grantee (provided that the new issue
price shall be used as the closing price for any business day
falling within the period before listing of the shares where the
Company has been listed for less than 5 business days as at the
date on which an offer is accepted by the grantee); and

(c)  the nominal value of a Company’s share.

The total number of shares, which may be issued upon exercise of all
Options to be granted under the Scheme and any other share option
scheme of the Company shall not in aggregate exceed 10% of the total
number of shares in issue on the date of commencement of dealings in
the shares on the Stock Exchange (“Scheme Mandate Limit"), unless
the Company obtains an approval from its shareholders. Options lapsed
in accordance with the terms of the Scheme will not be counted for the
purpose of calculating such 10% limit.

On 15 May 2012, an ordinary resolution regarding the refreshment of
Scheme Mandate Limit was approved by the shareholders of the Company
at the Annual General Meeting (“AGM”). Starting from 15 May 2012,
further options to subscribe up to 128,453,846 ordinary shares of the
Company, being 10% of the total number of shares in issue on the date
of AGM are available to be granted under the Scheme.

Notwithstanding any other provisions of the Scheme, the maximum
number of the shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding Options granted and yet to be exercised under the Scheme
and any other share option schemes of the Company shall not exceed
30% of the total number of shares in issue from time to time.

Unless approved by the shareholders, the total number of shares issued
and to be issued upon exercise of the Options granted to each participant
(including both exercised and outstanding Options) in any 12-month
period shall not exceed 1% of the total number of shares in issue.

Offer of an option (“Offer”) shall be deemed to have been accepted by
any Participant (the “Grantee”) who accepts an Offer in accordance
with the terms of the Scheme and the option to which the Offer relates
shall be deemed to have been granted and to have taken effect when
the duplicate of the offer letter comprising acceptance of the Offer
duly signed by the Grantee together with a remittance in favour of the
Company of HK$1.00 by way of consideration for the granting thereof is
received by the Company within 14 days from the date upon which the
Offer is made.

All share-based employee compensation will be settled in equity.
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29. SHARE-BASED EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION (Contd) 29. URHZfANEESM2Z)
Details of the Options granted by the Company pursuant to the Scheme R-ZE——F+-A=+—H  AARBEZ:TER
and the Options outstanding as at 31 December 2012 were as follows: HimEARITEREBREFBNT ¢
Number of options
BREZA
Balance at Expired/
31 December Granted Exercised Lapsed Balance at Exercise
2011 and during during during 31 December price
Date of grant Exercisable period 1 January 2012 the year the year the year 2012 per share
(dd/mm/yyyy) (dd/mmsyyyy) HK$
R=%——%
+=B=1+-H R=8-=%
R=B-=% RER RER RER +=B=t-H
RitiAH ] —-A—-BiEE & [y iR/ kM weEs  BROREE
B/B/% B/R/% BT
Executive directors
HiTES
Mr. Taochaifu Choofuang 04/09/2012 04/09/2012 - 03/09/2017 - 1,000,000 - - 1,000,000 0.2350
(“Mr.C.F. Tao")
BaEELE
Mr. Tao Richard 04/09/2012 04/09/2012 - 03/09/2017 - 1,000,000 - - 1,000,000 0.2350
(“Mr. Richard Tao")
BRTEE
Mr. Tao Paul 04/09/2012 04/09/2012 - 03/09/2017 - 1,000,000 - - 1,000,000 0.2350
(“Mr. Paul Tao")
I
Mr. Kong Mui Sum Lawrence 04/09/2012 04/09/2012 - 03/09/2017 - 4,000,000 - - 4,000,000 0.2350
IHREE
Mr. Yim Chun Leung 04/09/2012 04/09/2012 - 03/09/2017 - 9,000,000 - - 9,000,000 0.2350
St
Employees of the Group 04/09/2012 04/09/2012 - 03/09/2017 - 16,000,000 (860,000) - 15,140,000 0.2350
FEEES
- 32,000,000 (860,000) - 31,140,000
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29. SHARE-BASED EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION (Contd)

Details of the Options granted by the Company pursuant to the Scheme
and the Options outstanding as at 31 December 2011 were as follows:

29. RGN HEEHM 2

- J——

ATE——F+ZR=+—0H  AAAREZ IR
i AR T R AR BN T

Number of options
BREA
Balance at Expired/
31 December Granted Exercised Lapsed Balance at Exercise
2010 and during during during 31 Decemher price
Date of grant Exercisable period 1 January 2011 the year the year the year 2011 per share
da/mm/yyyy da/mmiyyyy HK$
R-Z-%%
T-A=1-A R=B--F
kR=Z-—-% RER RER BER +tZBE=t-H
Riti A iy —-A-BM4&ER Rl it ER/ X% ik BRTRE
R/B/% B/B/% BT
Executive directors
HiTES
Mr. Kong Mui Sum Lawrence 29/04/2008 29/04/2008 - 28/04/2011 3,200,000 - - (3,200,000) - 0.3750
IHRSEE
21/07/2008 21/07/2008 - 20/07/2011 4,571,000 - = (4,571,000) = 0.3000
19/11/2008 19/11/2008 - 18/11/2011 3,744,000 - (1,999,780) (1,744,220) - 0.1915
11,515,000 - (1,999,780) (9,515,220) =
Mr. Yim Chun Leung 29/04/2008 29/04/2008 - 28/04/2011 3,200,000 - = (3,200,000) = 0.3750
ity
21/07/2008 21/07/2008 - 20/07/2011 4,571,000 - - (4,571,000) - 0.3000
19/11/2008 19/11/2008 - 18/11/2011 3,744,000 = (3,744,000) - - 0.1915
11,515,000 = (3,744,000) (7,771,000) =
Employees of the Group 29/04/2008 29/04/2008 - 28/04/2011 3,300,000 - - (3,300,000) - 0.3750
rE@ES
21/07/2008 21/07/2008 - 20/07/2011 5,211,000 - = (5,211,000) - 0.3000
19/11/2008 19/11/2008 - 18/11/2011 800,000 = (155,000) (645,000) = 0.1915
9,311,000 - (155,000 (9,156,000) =
32,341,000 - (5898,780)  (26,442,220) =
seeraman —z2——s55 105
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29. SHARE-BASED EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION (conta)

Options outstanding and weighted average exercise price for the

For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE-_Z——HF4+_-_A=+—RALFE

29. RGN EEHM 2

RS R RTTE B A R 11T E 25140

reporting periods presented are as follows: T
2012 2011
—B——F %
Weighted Weighted
average average
Number exercise price Number  exercise price
InFEFH hniETH
#E TEE A 1B
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Outstanding as at 1 January R—A—BX176 - - 32,341,000 0.29
Granted B 32,000,000 0.24 - -
Exercised 111 (860,000) 0.24 (5,898,780) 0.19
Expired = - - (26,442,220) 0.32
Outstanding as at 31 December RN+ A=+—Bk17fE 31,140,000 0.24 = =
Exercisable as at 31 December RN+ A=+—Ba7fE 31,140,000 =

For the year ended 31 December 2012, 860,000 options were exercised
resulting in issue of 860,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each and no
Options were expired pursuant to the Scheme. For the year ended 31
December 2011, 5,898,780 options were exercised and 26,442,220
options were expired pursuant to the Scheme. The exercise price
of Options outstanding at the end of the year was HK$0.24 (2011:
Nil) and their weighted average remaining contractual life of the
Options outstanding at 31 December 2012 was approximately 5 years
(2011: Nil).

Of the total number of Options outstanding at the end of the year,
31,140,000 options (2011: Nil) had vested and were exercisable at the
end of the year.

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise of options
exercised during the year was HK$0.42 (2011: HK$0.25).

HE-Z——F+-F=+—H81-4% - 860,000
19 B A% 4 (K] 3% 77860,000% = A E{E0.01 B T M & i
RMESTE - BSIEBRAERIEZATE R E - #E
—E——F+-_A=1+—BUFE  BEZTE
5,898,780170 I BR MR IETT(E + 5526,442,22017 i i 4
EEE o R - REITEBIRIENITEER0.247
T(ZFE——F  E) RZE——F+-A=+—
B MARITEAERENE TS RRE HFHLNAS
F(ZE——F )

MER - RETRNBRELHTD - 31,140,000 8
BE(—E——F : B)ERBERATE -

FARBREITE B BN FIRER0.42E T
(ZF——F : 0.25%7T) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
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B RS ERAR B AL

29. SHARE-BASED EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION (Contd) 29. URHZAHNEESM 2)
The fair value of services received in return for Options granted is PR LB FT W E RIS A A BE IR ER LR
determined by reference to the fair value of share options granted. The A ARBESE  OREERENGALBETY
estimate of the fair value of the share options granted is measured based A—IB BT B E o N ETEHE AR
on the Binomial Option Pricing Model. The following significant inputs ENREE:
were used to derive the fair values:
Date of grant 4 September 2012 A —E——FNAWMA
Expected volatility 62.41% TE R 1R 62.41%
Expected life of the options (in years) 5 PR ETEHA G BR (DA SR ET) 5
Risk-free interest rate (based on 0.264% RBEF = (ABBINEES 0.264%
Hong Kong Exchange Fund Notes) ZRALE)
Expected dividend yield 1.98% TEHARR B % 1.98%
Share price on grant date HK$0.22 RE LB ZRE 0.22% 7T
The expected volatility was determined by using the historical volatility of TEH R R IERA AR A FRENBERIEETE © &
the Company’s share price over the past years. The expected life used TR TEHFHEEIREEIEEREAEEE
in the model has been adjusted, based on management’s best estimate, TERHI RTAEZERENZE/EHNRETERIMmMSA
for the effects of non transferability, exercise restrictions and behavioural - o
considerations.
Based on the fair values derived from the above pricing model, employee BELIFTEELNAFENAALEBAR  H2
share-based payments of approximately HK$2,947,000 (2011: Nil) “E——F+A=F+—HIFE ' £2,947,0007%
(note 9) has been included in the consolidated income statement for the T (=T ——F : | UMD X E 8 8 (M
year ended 31 December 2012 and the corresponding amount has been QEFABE-E——F+-_A=+—HILEEH
credited to share option reserves. AR - HESBEE T ABRERE -
30. RESERVES 30. f#fE
(@)  Group (@ Z&E£ME
2012 2011
—E--F —ZT—%F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
iz FHET FAT
Retained profits IREB T 143,580 141,017
Share premium R g B (i) 488,934 488,664
Share option reserves PR (ii) 2,871 =
Convertible notes equity reserves AR E IR A (iii) 900 900
Merger reserve B E (iv) 89,936 89,936
Hotel property, plant and equipment BEIEYE - BB &
revaluation reserve R EAEE (v) 23,290 19,276
Statutory reserve SETE R (vi) 34,143 31,069
Exchange reserve P& 5 R (vii) 131,888 124,479
915,542 895,341
Proposed final dividend (note 11) Wk R ERRS B (ffa#11) 2,571 3,854
918,113 899,195
seppamRan —s——s8 107
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30. RESERVES (Contd)

(a)

Group (Cont'd)

The movements of the Group’s reserves for the year are presented
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity of the financial
statements. The nature and purpose of the reserves are as follows:

(i)

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

Under the Companies Law (2011 Revision) of the Cayman
Islands, the share premium account is distributable to
shareholders of the Company provided that immediately
following the date on which the dividend is proposed to be
paid, the Company will be in a position to pay off its debts as
they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

The share option reserves represents the value of the
unexercised share option granted under the Company’s-
share option scheme to the eligible participants recognised
in accordance with the accounting policy set out in
note 4(1).

The convertible notes equity reserves represents the value
of the equity component of convertible notes recognised in
accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 4(m).

The merger reserve of the Group represents the excess of
the nominal value of the share capital of the subsidiaries
acquired pursuant to the Group’s reorganisation completed
on 23 June 2005 over the nominal value of the Company’s
shares issued in exchange therefor.

The hotel property, plant and equipment revaluation
reserve represents accumulated gains and losses arising
on the revaluation of the associate’s hotel property,
plant and equipment that has been recognised in other
comprehensive income, net of amounts reclassified to profit
or loss when the hotel property, plant and equipment are
disposed of or are determined to be impaired.

As stipulated by the relevant laws and regulations in the
PRC, certain subsidiaries and associate of the Company in
the PRC are required to maintain a statutory reserve which
is non-distributable other than upon the liquidation of the
entity. Transfer to this reserve is made out of profit after
taxation of the subsidiaries and associate’s PRC statutory
financial statements which are prepared in accordance with
the accounting principles generally accepted in the PRC.

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of financial operations. The reserve is dealt
with in accordance with the accounting policy set out in
note 4(d).

Of the consolidated profit attributable to the owners of
the Company of approximately HK$8,208,000 for the
year (2011: HK$12,163,000), loss of approximately
HK$1,942,000 (2011: HK$19,609,000) has been dealt
with in the financial statements of the Company for the
year.

30. f#E#E)

(a)

For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE-_Z——HF4+_-_A=+—RALFE

KEE(E)

REBRFRENFANED - RUBREOEGA
RBEHRT 2T - FEOEERBOWT

(0

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

BREREHRESRAVE(ZE——FEFT
i) B EERT DK T AR B R
R EZERRMRS AR - ARE
AARENEENAEEBBEHDHN
&7 o

BRRFEERREA A RERE SR
FTARERSEELRITEBRENE
B AERFEREHIINHZAONE
FTIRERAERR ©

MR EES R RRREES
BOMEE - BRFEREEIINHE
Am)WE T BRIER

AEBOEOHER  RASER
TEERFRNAST=HAKHEAT
PUKEE I B R AR B E(E - B i
Rz S RAN M BT TH A A R E{E R
ER e

BIEYE - BELREBEGHERER S
RAREEDE - BE R REEGME

ARG RER - ZFRRERE
tEERAPER - ERFBEDE -

PR s b sx ST th E SURMERY - BREFIR
FERENBRSRTETEN DM

RBAEETEERLERBRE - ART
ETHEBARREERBARFTAD
IRHDETE 6 - R A BERAIRS
WbV TE 7 70 ER BB 8 B S ik 8 R AR
IR B E R RS RGP EDE
TR P BRI B A B

[ERFEERRESREBNBHBERER
PREEAERIPBINEZRR - ZREHTVIRE
IR M AR S BER R -

FRAARABRREEESRNE
#48,208000# jt (=& — — F :
12,163,000 7 7T ) EPERERELD
1,942,000t (=T ——F : BB
19,609,000/ 7T ) E R AR BIH) AR F &
Bris IR PR IE o
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
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30. RESERVES (Contd) 30. B2

(b) Company

Share
Share option
premium reserves

RIEE BRERE
HK$'000 HK$'000
TExT TET
(note) (note)

(Hiz) (H1it)

() I N
Convertible Proposed
notes equity  Contributed Retained final
reserves surplus profits dividend Total
TRRZEE

BEfE HAB% RERYN BRRERE EH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

THT T#x THR TET TR
(note) (note) (note)

(Hi2) () i)

Balance as at 1 January 2011 RZF—%F—F—HH

FeaS 487,337 1,968
Loss for the year FEER = -
Arising from issue of ordinary RITEBRERTLRR

shares on exercise of share options ~ MZE4(f7:228)

(note 28) 1,070 -
Transfer (note 28) B (Hi728) 257 (257)
Release upon expiry ESBRRERREE

of vested share options - (1,711)
Redemption of convertible notes FEE TARER = -
2010 final dividend paid ENZZ-ZFRERE = -

Proposed final dividend (note 11)  $EERAEM S (M/7211) - =

3,011 (22) 42,103 6,393 540,790
= = (19,609) = (19,609)
= = = = 1,070
- - 1,711 - -

(2,111) = 2,111 = -
- = - (6,393) (6,393)
- - (3,854) 3,854 -

Balance as at 31 December 2011 ~ R=Z——F+=f

and 1 January 2012 =t+-HRk=ZE—=%
—A—BH&H 488,664 -

Loss for the year FEER = -
Employee share-based compensation BARZ {7 3 1+ #)1& B EE

(note 29) (H1£29) = 2,947
Arising from issue of ordinary RITfFBRELRTLRR

shares on exercise of share options T (f1328)

(note 28) 194 -
Transfer (note 28) BR(i728) 76 (76)
2011 final dividend paid BNZZ——FREKRE - =

Proposed final dividend (nofe 11)  #VRARERR B (H5E11) - -

900 (22) 22462 3854 51588
- - (1942 - (1942)
- - - - 2,947
- - - - 194

- = - (3,854) (3,854)
- = (2,571) 2,571 =

Balance as at 31 December 2012 R-E——&
+ZA=1+—HMEEH 488,934 2871

900 (22) 17,949 2,571 513,203

Note: These reserve accounts comprise the Company’s reserves of
approximately HK$510,632,000 (2011: HK$512,004,000) in the
statement of financial position of the Company.

The contributed surplus of the Company represents the excess
of the net asset value of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to
the Group’s reorganisation completed on 23 June 2005 over
the nominal value of the Company’s shares issued in exchange
therefor.

Wit - ZERHERBEAARMBEMRIEANER
T f## 4 49510,632,000 8 T ( — T — — 4 -
512,004,000/ 7T) °

ARRNEHES  SAKER-_TTRFN
A= +=B e EATEENERRNE
EFE - BEAMBZEEEFEMEITHAR
NABRDEERZH
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31. RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS 31. ZRHBITER

Group

EE
2012 2011
—E-——%F —T——F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
K FET THAT

Analysis of restricted bank deposits: SERFIERI TR
Deposit pledged against mortgage loans granted 5t B £ E EIRIBE N

to the purchasers of properties MR F R (a) 17,404 22,304
Restricted bank deposits SRR BRI TER (b) 21,472 70,556
38,876 92,860

Notes: Hfat -

(a) The bank deposits were pledged as security in favour of banks and financial (a) HIERURIEEZE A HEEEERNERERME
institutions in the PRC which provided mortgage loan to purchasers of EERERMBEEMES(GEBAZEEB I -
properties for the period from the date of draw-down of mortgage loans BTEREEBF S REBLEIRMIZBEERINERN
to the date when the certificates for housing ownership and certificates of SRITRE R  (EAIKIRG - ZSIKMENEEE
others’ interest for housing ownership (collectively known as “Certificates”) FEIG = AR AR o ZIF AT BERITIEEFIR -
are granted to the property purchasers. Such charges would be released 2B KRE B o
when the Certificates are granted to the property purchasers. This deposit
earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposits rates.

(b) In accordance with terms of banking facilities and regulation issued by (b) BIERITRVE Z 6 R T B RIE G - AEE

local government, certain property development companies of the Group
are required to maintain certain amount of cash at designated bank
accounts for securing the repayment of bank loans and wages payments to
contractors’ workers for construction projects. The deposits earn interest at
floating rates based on daily bank deposits rates.

ETYEERDBAMEERITRES TR E LR
Be  EREERITERRREZEEMELETA
& - FRAFRRITERFIR - LFHFES

32. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 32. RENRESZEY
Analysis of cash and cash equivalents is as follows: HENBSEBEYHAOT :
Group Company
rEHE b N
2012 2011 2012 2011
—g-—=f -T % =-g-=F _—T —F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT FE T FHT
Cash at banks and in hand RITEGFRIES 290,999 265,725 1,003 5,365
Included in cash and cash equivalents in the statement of financial FTAMBSAARRENER S RIBSEEY - BIE T
position are the following amounts denominated in a currency other than AEERARRNNEEE NN ERES|BER SR
the functional currency of the Group and the Company to which they
relate:
Group Company
EE PN
2012 2011 2012 2011
=F-=F T F =B-=F FTF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET FET FHET
Renminbi AR 269,676 237,729 - =
United States dollars e 5,126 12,243 5 5
1 1 0 New Heritage Holdings Ltd. Annual Report 2012
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE-_Z——HF4+_A=+—HILFE

32.

33.

B RS ERAR B AL

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Cont') 32. RERBLEENHE)
Included in cash and cash equivalents of the Group is approximately NEBWNRES LIRS EEYBIEUAARK SN
HK$269,669,000 (2011: HK$232,988,000) of bank balances GFRAPEZRIBITHIRITAE#£%1269,669,000/%8 T
denominated in Renminbi are deposited with banks in the PRC. The ZT——4F : 232,988,000/ 7TC) ° HZENANARE
conversion of these Renminbi denominated balances into foreign BB H B BINEBST R B FEHRBINESE
currencies is subject to the rules and regulations of foreign exchange EIRFR PR &) o
control promulgated by the PRC government.
The effective interest rate of cash at banks is in the range of 0.01% to PRITEENERENRA001%E2.86%(—FE——F -
2.86% (2011: 0.01% to 3.10%) per annum and they have maturity 0.01%%3.10%) * WHMIOB(=—ZFE——4 : 90H)A
within 90 days (2011: 90 days). BIHA -
DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND SENIOR 33. EERaSHEEAEMS
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS
(a) Directors’ emoluments (a EEME
Salaries,
allowance Equity-settled  Contribution
and other Gratuity ~ share-based to retirement
Fees henefit in kind and honus payments benefit scheme Total
Ei UREREE
B R HAM Hme B4R 32 15 BIREF
e BMRE RIEA MFRIE sHEIR @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAERT TERT THERT THET TAERT TERT
2012 —E-CF
Executive directors HITES
Mr. C.F. Tao PREmLE - 1,300 326 95 106 1,827
Mr. Richard Tao PRATILAE - 1,846 461 95 151 2,553
Mr. Paul Tao FihE s - 1,846 461 95 151 2,553
Mr. Kong Mui Sum Lawrence IREREE - 1,950 562 382 157 3,051
Mr. Yim Chun Leung EiREEE - 2,304 752 860 208 4,124
= 9,246 2,562 1,521 773 14,108
Non-executive director FHTES
Mr. Chan Bernard Charnwut REBLE 193 - - - - 193
Independent non-executive directors & FHTEE
Mr. Wong Gary Ka Wai TRERE 257 - - - - 257
Mr. Sun Leland Li Hsun BB E 193 - - = = 193
Mr. Chan Norman Enrique PR S 193 = = = = 193
643 - - - - 643
836 9,246 2,562 1,527 113 14,944

During the year ended 31 December 2012, five directors were
granted share options, in respect of their services to the Group,
under the share option scheme of the Company, further details of
which are set out in note 29 to the financial statements. The fair
value of these options which has been recognised in the income
statement, was determined as at the date of grant, and the
amount included in the financial statements for the current year is
included in the above directors’ remuneration disclosures.

REE-_Z——F+_A=+—HIFE &
ZEERFEEAAEBRENREER TR
AIFEARMERT BITH TR BEARIE - E— T EE BRI
R SRR 29 - :ZEHEREN QA BETD
R B EERT - YEREKRSRAER - mat
ARFEHEHREROSBIIS T A LIRER
EEMEH -
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33. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (conta)

(a)

(b)

Directors’ emoluments (Cont'd)

For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE-_Z——HF4+_-_A=+—RALFE

33. EEREREBAEME#)

(@) ESBME(E)

Salaries,
allowance Contribution
and other Gratuity  to retirement
Fees  benefitin kind and bonus  benefit scheme Total
A
AR HA Hmde RARRER
e EWF= R4 REIGESA e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT TET AT FHT FET
2011 —E——F
Executive directors HTES
Mr. C.F. Tao PREmLE - 1,252 503 88 1,843
Mr. Richard Tao BRTTE - 1,808 727 127 2,662
Mr. Paul Tao MBI E - 1,808 727 127 2,662
Mr. Kong Mui Sum Lawrence TIHREE = 1,808 724 127 2,659
Mr. Yim Chun Leung BRI E = 2,087 1317 170 3,574
- 8,763 3,998 639 13,400
Non-executive director FHTES
Mr. Chan Bernard Charnwut BRE B A 182 - - - 182
Independent non-executive directors BIYXHTES
Mr. Wong Gary Ka Wai ITRERE 242 = = = 242
Mr. Sun Leland Li Hsun BAESE 182 = = = 182
Mr. Chan Norman Enrique BREESTTAE 182 - - - 182
606 = = = 606
788 8,763 3,998 639 14,188

No share options were granted to the directors of the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2011 (note 29).

No directors waived or agreed to waive any emoluments for the
years ended 31 December 2012 and 2011.

Senior management emoluments

The five highest paid individuals in the Group for the years ended
31 December 2012 and 2011 were all directors of the Company
and details of their emoluments are reflected in the analysis
presented above.

No emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the five highest
paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group and as compensation for loss of office for the years ended
31 December 2012 and 2011.

(b)

HE-Z——F+-_A=1+—HILFE  #iE
AR mEEEREMBRE(FE29) -

HE_Z——Fr-_T—F+=-A=+—H
LEFE - BREEHEXFEBETNEE -

BREEASHE

HE_Z——Fr-_T—F+=-A=+—H
IEFE  AEERAARERFMATHARAR
EE c BARSEME 25 B0A EDITATR ©

HE_Z——Fr-_FT——F+=-A=+—H
IEFE  AfEMERAA RS HMA M
ERIEE - ARSI BB ARERE S EAMBER
S B R AR SEE) Sk BE R (E -
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE-_Z——HF4+_A=+—HILFE

34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a)

(b)

B RS ERAR B AL

34. BEALRS

Transactions with related parties (a) EHERFEEALTETHRS
The Group has the following transactions with related parties: AEEEREEATHEITHLZZIUOT ¢
Group
REE
2012 2011
—E-——fF —T——%F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
HisF FH&xT FAET
Rental expenses to Fontwell Holdings ¥ f5f FFontwell Holdings Limited
Limited (“Fontwell”) ([Fontwell 1) 8978 € F 2 (i) (105) =
Rental income from Clark Hatch Fitness MESRNREFRESBRAR
Centers (Shanghai) Ltd. (“Clark Hatch”) ([Fehse 83 1) WEE S A (ii) 620 605

Membership fee to Clark Hatch IR FRNRETNEEE (iii) (169) (81)

Interest paid to Chong Lai it FChong Laify#1 & (iii) (8) -

Notes: it

(i) Mr. C.F. Tao, Mr. Richard Tao and Mr. Paul Tao have beneficial (i) BMEBLEE BRITLEERBHELER
interests in Fontwell. The charge by Fontwell was in accordance FontwellF# A Bz s © Fontwel TR EAE
with the terms of the underlying agreements. B O R EE A -

(i) Mr. Richard Tao and Mr. Paul Tao are directors of Clark Hatch and (ii) BRI EERBBEEERRNRETNE
Mr. Paul Tao has beneficial interests in Clark Hatch. The charge £ mMEASHEERRRN R ST HEER
to Clark Hatch was in accordance with the terms of the underlying s o MRN ST KENE B TYRIEERE
agreements. The membership fee was charged at terms mutually B B REUER - SEE B HIRETANE T KR
agreed by both parties. R TE A R UER

(iii) Mr. C.F. Tao, Mr. Richard Tao and Mr. Paul Tao have beneficial (iii) BEBEE BRI EEREHELEER
interests in Chong Lai. The charge by Chong Lai was in accordance Chong Laif# B E#zEz ° Chong LaiJiiR#E
with the terms of the underlying agreements. BRI E R °

Balances with related parties (h) EERRE A LAV SR

As at 31 December 2012, the loan from Chong Lai of RZZE—=F+=A=+—H ' Chong LaiV &

HK$5,000,000 bears interest at HIBOR plus 3% per annum,
is unsecured and repayable on or before 14 December 2013
(note 26(c)). The effective interest rate of the loan was 3.28% per
annum during the year. As at 31 December 2011, the Group did
not have outstanding balances with related parties.

75,000,000/ TR &8 R 17 [/ £ 47 8 4 A &
M3%ETE - REERLAR T —=F+=
Ht+mAskzAlEE (fisE26(c)) - MERE
RO BRFRER328% c R=_FT——F+=
A=1+—8  NEESEEEA T WEEMRLE
TBHIAEER -

HRERERAE
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B RE AR B EE

34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Contd)

(c)  Key management personnel compensation

The directors are of the opinion that the key management
personnel were solely the directors of the Company. Remuneration
paid to the Company’s directors is as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE-_Z——HF4+_-_A=+—RALFE

34. MEALRS(#)

(c) FEEBASHMH

EEZRA TREBEARERRBARFES -
ENARBESNHHNT

2012 2011

—E-——F —T—F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FHT

Salaries, allowances and other benefit in kind 4 RBL N EMEYAE 14,171 13,549
Contribution to retirement benefit scheme RIREFIE B 773 639
14,944 14,188

35. COMMITMENTS AND OPERATING LEASE
ARRANGEMENTS

(a) Capital commitments

Capital commitments in respect of properties held under
development for the Group are as follows:

35. AFEREEHERH

(a) BEAEE

AEEBHERTMENERFEDT

Group

rEEH
2012 2011
—E5-——F —T—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET FET

Contracted but not provided for EEANBREE

194,744 91,143

As at 31 December 2012 and 2011, the Company did not have
any significant capital commitments.

RZB——FR-FT——F+-A=+—0H"
AR BT BB AHIE o

el
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE-_Z——HF4+_A=+—HILFE

35. COMMITMENTS AND OPERATING LEASE
ARRANGEMENTS (Contd)

(b)

Operating lease arrangements

(i)

(ii)

The Group had future aggregate minimum lease receipts
under non-cancellable operating leases in respect of land
and buildings which are receivable as follows:

35.

B RS ERAR B AL

AEREERERER)

() KEEHERH

() FEBERBTAHEEEHERK LT
KB FHARRRERS WAL T

Group
rER
2012 2011
- —T——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FHET
Within one year —FR 10,634 10,137
In the second to fifth years F_ZRF 7,974 9,605
18,608 19,742

The Group leases out its investment properties (note 15)
under operating lease arrangements which run for initial
periods of less than one year to five years (2011: less than
one year to five years) or expire at dates as mutually agreed
between the Group and the respective tenants, without
an option to renew the lease terms at the expiry date. The
terms of the leases generally also require the tenants to pay
security deposits.

The Group had future aggregate minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases in respect of land
and buildings which are payable as follows:

REBRBEEHELHHEEIREY
X (PHELS) - M RBIN—FERF
(ZF——F : PR—FERAF)IIEA
SEEARAR K RBENHHER -
HEST B P 0 R B AB TR AV R AR -
R RITRERPXNRERE ©

(i)  AEBERBTAHEEEEERN T
FEFHARRRERSERAENT

Group
AEE
2012 2011
—E-——F —ET——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Within one year —FR 110 42
In the second to fifth years FE_FERF 10 -
120 42

The Group leases a number of properties under operating
lease arrangements which run for initial periods of one to
two years (2011: one to two years) or expire at dates as
mutually agreed between the Group and the respective
landlords, without an option to renew the lease terms at the
expiry date.

At 31 December 2012 and 2011, the Group had no

contingent rentals receivable or payable.

At 31 December 2012 and 2011, the Company had no
operating lease commitments as lessor or lessee.

AEERBREEELHHEHEZIRY
X NERB-—EME(CE——F:
—EMF) WA EEEAEETHE
W 5E B0 B BRJEm - HEXE A A 0 fE i B
BHRRIREE o

R-B-——FRh_F——F+_-H
=+—A8  ANEEIWE AR KA
HAME

RZE—ZFR=_FT——F+=A
=+—H ' AR EWEES DA K

FAARKESHERYE -
wEewamsn —z——6% 119
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BTSRRI AL

36.

37.

FINANCIAL GUARANTEE CONTRACTS — COMPANY

The Company provided corporate guarantees to certain banks for all
unsecured term loans granted to subsidiaries (note 26).

The carrying amount of the financial guarantee contracts recognised
in the Company’s statement of financial position was approximately
HK$1,591,000 (2011: HK$1,259,000) during the year ended
31 December 2012. The guarantee issued in prior years in respect of
a term loan is measured at the higher of the amount determined under
HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets (i.e.
the loan amount when it is probable to be called upon to repay) and
the amortised balance of that guarantee. The fair value of new financial
guarantee contracts is estimated by Peak Vision Appraisals Limited by
applying the Binomial Option Pricing Model. Such financial guarantee
contracts have terms of one to seven years (2011: one to seven years).

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT POLICIES AND PROCEDURES

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are to safeguard
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, so that it can continue
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders,
by pricing properties commensurately with the level of risk and by
securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group manages the capital structure and makes adjustments to it in
the light of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristic of
the underlying assets.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the net debt to equity ratio.
For this purpose the net debt is defined as borrowings less cash and
cash equivalents. The Group’s goal in capital management is to maintain
a net debt to equity ratio at a reasonable level. In order to maintain
or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of
dividends paid to shareholders, issue new shares, return capital to
shareholders, raise new debt financing or sell assets to reduce debts.

The Group'’s overall strategy in capital management remains unchanged
during the year.

The net debt to equity ratio at the end of the reporting period was as
follows:

36.

37.

For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE-_Z——HF4+_-_A=+—RALFE

BBEREN -ARDQF

ARAFBETHBEABNAE BEREREN - AE
TIRITRMH D AER(IE26)

BE_Z——F+-A=1+—RBILEE £ARQT
ISR IR NERNT B EREONEEEN S
1,591,000 7c(—Z——4 : 1,259,000/ 7T) ° Fh—
BEHERMNBAEFEERHNERIEESS R
FBITHEE RRBBERKIAREENECSR(AA
AR EREENERSE) ER RO
NEREE - M VBERENHDRAABEIESR
BEARATMER —EAEEEEX G - A
HRERAONBEAE—E+E(—T—F : —&
+&) -

EXEERBRRER

AEEEREANTIZHREREASEAHELS
Be) - ATNETRIRRIRHEER R R A A AR R 5
A& o TDEBRERRERKFEEWEER - KA
BEMNRAETRE -

R EERBCERROE D RN E RN ARSI E
B 3 A R o

AEERFEERRL RNEEERHEER o ghit
5 OFABNEERBRERRERRSEEY - ALK
EEANEEN B RS FAEESL RGN AEN
KF - B ERABEAEE  AEEARABRKNT
BRRH BB R - BITHRD - RERATER - &
SHEBREIHEEERE

FR - AEEENERNEEREERFTE -

WN|REHR - NEBEEFBBERRLRDT

Group

rEE
2012 2011
—E——fF —T——%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET

Borrowings: B :

— Current — R 219,527 187,247
— Non-current —3ERE 19,771 190,654
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (note 32) o IR RIRSEEY(MIEE32) (290,999) (265,725)
Net debt FEE (51,701) 112,176
Total equity e iaEa 1,027,621 1,003,124
Net debt to equity ratio FEERRLER N/A RiE A 11%
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For the year ended 31 December 2012

BE_T——

38.

F+ZA=+—HILFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES AND
OBJECTIVES

The Group is exposed to a variety of financial risks: currency risk,
interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk
management focuses on unpredictability of financial markets and
seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial
performance. The Group currently does not have any written risk
management policies and guidelines. However, the board of directors
meets periodically and cooperates closely with key management to
analyse and formulate strategies to manage and monitor financial risks.

The Group is not engaged in the trading of financial assets for
speculative purposes. The most significant financial risks to which the
Group is exposed are described below. See also note 38.7 for a summary
of financial assets and liabilities by category.

38.1 Currency risk

The Group reports its results in Hong Kong dollars. The Group’s
primary foreign currency exposure arises from its property
development and investment activities in the PRC. The functional
currency of these operations is Renminbi and most of the financial
instruments are denominated in Renminbi. No foreign currency
risk has been identified for the financial assets in the PRC as
they were denominated in a currency same as the functional
currencies of the group entities to which these transactions relate.
38.2 Interest rate risk
The Group’s exposure to interest rate risk for changes in interest
rates relates primarily to the Group’s floating interest rate
borrowings. The Group has not used any derivative contracts to
hedge its exposure to interest rate risk. However, the management
monitors interest rate exposure and will consider hedging
significant interest rate exposure should the need arise.

38.

B RS ERAR B AL

PR REREENEERER

AEERSZZBUBRE - E¥RER - ME@ER - E
SRBERBE SRR - AEENBEBRRERER
ERERMAISH AL - I FRGHREEAH
REMNBEINF ERERE - AEERF I EER
AXHERERERERIES - A EFSEHER
B WHIBREBABZZTAE U RHIERE
HEAE IR R B B S E R

AEETECEURBRASARHNEREEERR - A%
P S ) & = BRI SRR E ST o A RRER
TEREENEERETA 2387

38.1 EMmEk

REENEENETZY] - AEEREEINE
BB ENR B EERRIREES - 7%
SEBEEBARARE  MAHI 2RI
BETAARKESIE - BRNURPEAERIEE
ELA@%EZ%Q%FEJ&E’J%.EL BEEHsHE
%5']@ BB RR BN R EE
wu&h[ﬂ

38.2

AEEAFELB AT OFERRF EHAR
ESE] IEI’J?%L SREEHH - Zli‘illﬂﬁiﬁl&'ﬂm

TASKERERN R - CEEEY
*‘Jfﬂﬁﬁiﬁﬁﬁt £ I@E’ébxﬁq%ﬁiﬁiﬂlﬂi

AR R -
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BTSRRI RE

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES AND
OBJECTIVES (contd)

For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE-_Z——F+-F=+—HILFE

BEEREENHRERBR®)

38.2 Interest rate risk (Cont'd) 38.2 FEE(E)
The following table details the interest rate profile of the Group’s TRFAMEAEB RN RN REAREH
and the Company'’s borrowings at the end of the reporting period. EERRBOER -
Group Company
F58 NG|
2012 2011 2012 2011
—E--f 2 —B-C% 3
Effective Effective Effective Effective
interest rate HK$'000 interest rate HK$'000 interest rate HK$'000  interest rate HK$'000
BRAI= TEL ERFIE TAL BRA% TEx ERFIE FHT
Fived rate borrowings: EEREEE :
Loans from non-controlling FHrRRRER 1.61%-4.55% 111,833 1.60%-4.10% 112,672 - - - -
shareholders
Convertible notes aREE 13.38% 74,350 13.38% 69,675 13.38% 74,350 13.38% 69,675
186,183 182,347 74,350 69,675
Variable rate borrowings: FEHEREE -
Bank loans RITER 1.28%-6.40% 122,465 1.33%-6.90% 265,229 - - - -
Loan from a related company ~ —FIEEARIER 3.28% 5,000 = = S = = -
121,465 265,229 - -
Total borrowings fEEm:t 313,648 447 576 74,350 69,675
The following table indicates the instantaneous change in the T%%i’\ﬁ‘ﬁ’%Iﬁ‘éﬁﬁiﬁiﬂﬁﬂiﬁ%iﬁﬂﬁﬁ
Group’s profit after tax and retained profits that would arise if BRI ERNZ A HRES (BRREEMER
interest rates to which the group entities have significant exposure BPREHEFITE)  AEEBORK Wé%ﬂ&f%
at the end of the reporting period had changes at that date, BFENR HIR ) E ) o
assuming all other risk variables remained constant.
Group Company
AEH P ON|
2012 2011 2012 2011
—E-CF —T——F k-3t -3 %
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
TR T TET THT
Increase in interest rate Fl= EFH 100 basis points 100 basis points 100 basis points 100 basis points
—-BEEY — A AR -BREEY —BEES
Decrease in profit for the year EJ* BRED (1,022) (2,051) = =
Decrease in retained profits REBEFIH D (1,022) (2,051) = =
Decrease in interest rate MR % (100 hasis points) (100 basis points) (100 basis points) (100 basis points)
(—EEEH) (—EEE:) (—EEEY) (—AEER)
Increase in profit for the year EJ‘ BRI 1,022 2,051 -
Increase in retained profits IRER BRI AN 1,022 2,051 - -
1 1 8 New Heritage Holdings Ltd. Annual Report 2012
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE-_Z——F+-F=+—HILFE

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES AND
OBJECTIVES (contd)

38.2

38.3

Interest rate risk (Cont'd)

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined assuming
that the change in interest rates had occurred at the end of
the reporting period and had been applied to the exposure to
interest rate risk for financial instruments in existence for the
whole year. The 100 basis points increase or decrease represents
management’s assessment of reasonably possible change in
interest rates over the period until the next annual reporting
date. The same basis of analysis was also performed as at
31 December 2011.

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to accounts and
other receivables, deposits paid and bank deposits. The Group’s
exposures to these credit risks are monitored on an ongoing basis.

The Group continuously monitors defaults of customers and other
counterparties, identifies either individually or by group, and
incorporates this information into its credit risk controls. Where
available at reasonable cost, external reports on customers and
other counterparties are obtained and used.

None of the Group’s financial assets are secured by collateral or
other credit enhancements.

In respect of accounts and other receivables, the Group is not
exposed to any significant credit risk exposure to any single
counterparty or any group of counterparties having similar
characteristics. The credit risk for liquid funds is considered
minimal, since the counterparties are reputable banks with high
quality of external credit ratings.

The Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk which will cause a
financial loss to the Company due to financial guarantee contracts
provided to its subsidiaries is approximately HK$72,865,000
(2011: HK$72,611,000), being the amount of contingent liabilities
in relation to financial guarantee contracts issued.

B TSR AR B RE

BRREREENEERB&E#)

38.2

38.3

=@ (E)

B RRE DT T RERA T‘“@JEBA#}%'EHE?K
A Bt ARFHFENESR TANEER
BEE - Eamgm 100Iﬁ¥ﬁ7%m£§J"“TT*
FERE DB AR RN S IBA LR B
5t - BESMTERAR -2 ——F+_A
=t+—HHEUE -

FERER

REBENEERR T ERE BUSRR N E b E
YR Eﬁ&é&fﬁﬁﬁm REEFBES
FEHMASNERER

AEE N EBEEE R FRBEE P MEMR 5
FTHIHERIENR - WHNEE RS E BiELL
BF - MRARE - AEESBERNBERH
BEPRAEMRZZITHIIMERE

AEENEREEME AN BER R EAE
BT AERER -

R FE AR A I LAt FE MR IE - AN B0 AT
AEREERREFMERERR S 5 S E R
|$E$EME'JX%75 c ARAKRENR S HHAR
FEERFRIMNBEETRZORT Ilitﬁl?ﬁ
RBESHEERRAIRET DK

ARRFAZNEEHEERRATESETAD
ARXYBER litTJEEE’\W/EéW% AR
WISHEIR & £4972,865,000/8 (=T ——4F -
72,611,000/ 7C) FREL » &AL E LB
BREGHNIABESER

sweepemas —z——65 119
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BTSRRI RE

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES AND
OBJECTIVES (contd)

38.4 Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate
by the management to finance the Group’s operations and
mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. In the opinion
of the directors of the Company, the Group does not have any
significant liquidity risk exposure.

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity requirements
to ensure that the Group maintains sufficient reserves of cash
to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and longer term
financial liabilities.

The following tables show the remaining contractual maturities at
the end of the reporting period of the Group and the Company’s
bank borrowings, based on undiscounted cash flows (including
interest payments computed using contractual rates or, if floating,
based on rates current at the end of the reporting period) and the
earliest date the Company can be required to pay.

Specifically, for term loans which contain a repayment on demand
clause which can be exercised at the bank’s sole discretion, the
analysis shows the cash outflow based on the earliest period in
which the Group and the Company can be required to pay, that is
if the lenders were to invoke their unconditional rights to call the
loans with immediate effect. The maturity analysis for other bank
borrowings is prepared based on the scheduled repayment dates.

For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE-_Z——HF4+_A=+—RALFE

38. UBEREENBREBE)

38.4

REE R

REBRBE SRR @ AEEEERERFR
ERREEBYEINEEERRTEAIRFE -
NERAREEBREES REREREN
PNTE - ARRIEERA - NEE LB
BEARBECRER -

AEBENBRAEHRERERPDESFE - U
ERASEHEF BT SRERMEEEN R
RHESHAGENRPESRE -

TRIEAFTRASRE (BT A OFIE
(A BB E MARAIRITHI R ERF)
BE28) RARFARARRNRTHHET
B SRE R AR B E BR O IRTTHE S AR
TEKHR

BimE  HRBRERTAZEPBITENR
SRERIGFETERES - BESITIZAEE
R AR X )T g 7R B TR B F B (BN B 05 i
TR E G REN Z R AR EEE ) 27)R
SE - EMRITEENIH A D ARG S
BN E R
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES AND

=

ZF+ZA=+—HIEFE

OBJECTIVES (contd)

38.4 Liquidity risk (Cont'd)

Notes to the Financial Statements

B TSR AR B RE

38. BBEREENHRREE#®)

3BARBESRAM(E)

Group Company
158 L%
Total Total
contractual contractual
Canying  undiscounted Less than Bt 12 205 Over5  Camying undiscounted Less than Bt 12 2105
amount ~ cashflows  Ondemand 6 months months years years amount ~ cashflows ~ Ondemand 6 months months years
it ~ERE et ~MERE
HEE BENBAE  RER JWnER toER CEERE EENE GEE BEMEEE  RER OWAEA TR CEEEE
HKS000  HKSOOO  HKSOO0  HKSOOD  HKS000  HKSO00  HKS000  HKS000  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSOOO  HKS000  HK$00
TR TR TEn  TEn  TEn  TEn  TEn  TEr TR TR TER  TEn TR
2012 —§-CF
Accounts payable EfER 0191 1 219 = = = = = = = = = =
Accruals, depostt received ETER  Bhis
and other payables REMERFE 8073 28013 28073 - - - - 489 48% 4898 -
Amount due toa subsidiary Ef—RHBA730E - - - - - - - 181 181 181 - - -
Term loans subject torepayment ~ HERERER S HER
on demand clause 72,865 72,865 72,865 - - - - - - - - - -
Other bank loans EBTER 49,600 497123 - 497123 - - - - - - - - -
Loan from a elated company —TERLASH 5,000 5,006 = 5,006 = = = = = = = = =
Loan from non-controling HERRRER
shareholders M8 113,103 - 960 - 2050 - - - - - - -
Convertble notes THEEE 74350 90366 - 2250 2250 85,866 - TA%0 90366 - 2250 2250 85,866
433918 451333 193135 149,582 2250 106,366 - 1949 95445 5079 2,250 2250 85,866
Financial guarantees ssued: BHARKER:
Maxirmum amount guaranteed BEERSE - - - - - - - 1,591 72,865 72,865 - - -
Group Company
£5E KR
Total Total
contractual contractual
Carrying undiscounted Less than 6i012 2105 Over5  Carrying undiscounted Lessthan 6i012 2105
amount ~ cashfows  Ondemand 6 months months years years amount  cashflows  Ondemand 6 months months Jears
AHANE . ~ERZ AIRAR AAAZ
FAE REREEE  REX JWER fZEA ZEFRE REL HAE Re2LE REX JiER  TZER —£ERE
HKS000  HKSOO0  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSOOD  HKSO00  HKSOO0  HKS000  HKSOO0  HKS000  HKS00D  HKS000  HK$O000
Thn TR AL TEr  TEr TR TEr TR TR TR AL TEr TEr
2011 5k
Accounts payable ERER 89865 89865 89865 = = = = = = = = = =
Accruals, deposit received EiTER  Bhig
and other payables RAfERE s B B = = = = 8205 8205 8205 = = =
Term loans subject torepayment ~ HERERERETHEHER
on demand clause 72611 72611 72611 - - - - - - - - - -
Other bank loans EfSAER 192618 207793 - BT N6 8 3218 - - - - - -
Loan from non-cortroling FERRRER
shareholders 112672 116013 - - - 116083 - - - - - - -
Convertible notes THREE 69,675 94,866 - 2250 2250 90,366 - 69,675 94,866 - 2,50 2250 90,366
5058 624292 660 BIT7T 0 R6% 28681 328 TR0 103071 8205 2250 220 90366
Financial guarantees ssue: BIHESTHER :
Maximum amount guaranteed SEERSE - - - - - - - 1259 72611 72611 - - -
seepaman —z——ssg 121
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES AND
OBJECTIVES (contd)

38.4 Liquidity risk (Cont'd)

38.5

The table that follows summarises the maturity analysis of term
loans with a repayment on demand clause based on agreed
scheduled repayments set out in the loan agreements. The
amounts include interest payments computed using contractual
rates. As a result, these amounts were greater than the amounts
disclosed in the “on demand” time band in the maturity analysis
contained in page 121. Taking into account the Group’s and the
Company’s financial position, the directors do not consider that it
is probable that the banks will exercise their discretion to demand
immediate repayment. The directors believe that such term loans
will be repaid in accordance with the scheduled repayment dates
set out in the loan agreements.

Maturity analysis of term loans subject to a repayment on demand

For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE-_Z——HF4+_A=+—RALFE

38. UBEREENBREBE)

BARBES A (E)

TRBA A REREEGEROERETIRE
AIpZERSIMFE T E R AN HB DT - Z
ELRERBREOFEFAENNEFA -
It ZELEREI21AMREG A DT
ER|FRBEARBENSER/R - ENAE
B RARBNHBRR - EERRRVIT KA
BEATRE A B ZRENRER - EERERS
FE MR BUSIRE S P O BEE A& SR A #A(E
iz o

Mt 1R SR AB IR R A E HI B R B E

clause based on scheduled repayments is as follows: HAMEIHIE AT ¢
Group
rEE
Total
undiscounted Less than 6 to 2to Over
cash flows On demand 6 months 12 months 5 years 5 years
RIFHR AMERE
BeREBHE RER  DRAEAR +—@R Z—£ZEF RFEUL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THERT FTiEr TEr T THET
31 December 2012 —E-—#+-A=+-—H 76,629 - 18,212 11,705 44,665 2,047
31 December 2011 —E——F4+-A=1+—H 77,353 - 11,297 11,210 50,677 4,169
The Company did not have any term loans subject to repayment RZE——FR-_FT——F+=-_A=+—8"

on demand clause as at 31 December 2012 and 2011.

Fair value

The directors of the Company consider the fair values of the
Group’s financial assets and liabilities are not materially different
from their carrying amounts because of the immediate or short-
term maturity of these financial instruments. The fair values of
non-current financial assets and liabilities were not disclosed
because these are not materially different from their carrying
amounts.

38.5

-%F
AR BLEEFM A RZRERGROENE

N
DREE

ARBEZERAS  ANZF SR T AEMNHNK
EHEE  #ARESREENABENARE
ERAEFMEZERIKN - ARFERDSREE
RAEENAABEEEKREEERIA - 8
ERENAEE-
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE-_Z——F+-F=+—HILFE

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES AND
OBJECTIVES (contd)

38.6

38.7

Fair value measurement recognised in the statement of financial
position

The hierarchy groups financial assets and liabilities into three
levels based on the relative reliability of significant inputs used in
measuring the fair value of these financial assets and liabilities.
The fair value hierarchy has the following levels:

. Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets and liabilities;

o Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within
Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from
prices); and

o Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (unobservable inputs).

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which the financial asset
or liability is categorised in its entirety is based on the lowest level
of input that is significant to the fair value measurement.

As at 31 December 2012 and 2011, no financial assets and
liabilities were measured at fair value. Accordingly, the hierarchy
for fair value measurement disclosures have not been presented.

Summary of financial assets and liabilities by category

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets and
liabilities as recognised at the end of the reporting period may be

B TSR AR B RE

HHEREENERRBEE®)

38.6 REHMRRME*R

38.7 #&E

NAABENE

ZERRERANAESTHEELBBENRAE
Tﬁﬁﬁéxﬁmkﬁﬂfﬁ’ﬁﬁﬁ—bs&fﬂ ZESH
BELBERMAS=EEMR - AREERBED
RAT A :

o EF—E: NABEENAREBENZKRER
M5 MRE CRERE)

e FBE:BRE—ENRESN REENX
BEmE A EE(AMER) Sk (A
ERITE)BENBAZE - &

o F=E: WIFRBAUEBERETSEEEMH
gﬁsﬁﬁ%ﬁ@ﬁ@)\%%(Kﬂ@%@i@)\
%) e

TREEHEBENAABERRNBELRAT
REBEHRAABEFENS AEARENRERE
AR N\ BT

RZE——FR-_FT——F+-_A=+—8"
MESRHEERBBERAABENE - AL -
WEZH AR EEBETERE -
A REMEEREEHNE

REERRERNAEEEREENAERR
EREDT - FRASBT AN BNMTER

categorised as follows. See notes 4(j) and 4(m) for explanations BEtE - B2EM A RAm)RIERR o
about how the classification of financial instruments affects their
subsequent measurement.
Group Company
v UN|
2012 2011 2012 2011
—g-=F 5 f —8--% —T—f
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
TR THT TExT THT
Financial assets SHEE
Loans and receivables: EF RN |
Accounts receivable FEURER R 139 84 - -
Deposits paid and other receivables BfReREMEKGE 20,748 30,073 = =
Amounts due from subsidiaries L EyNGe - - 471,811 469,616
Restricted bank deposits XRFIRITER 38,876 92,860 = =
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBEEEN 290,999 265,725 1,003 5,353
350,762 388,742 472,814 474,969
Financial liabilities SHEE
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost:  IR# R At BN SREAR
Accounts payable JETEER 92,197 89,865 = =
Accruals and other payables [EErER R
HitnET50E 28,073 43144 4,898 8205
Amount due to a subsidiary B —RM B A RFE - - 181 =
Borrowings BE 239,298 377901 - =
Convertible notes EpiES 74,350 69,675 74,350 69,675
Financial guarantee contracts BIBERELD - = 1,591 1,259
433,918 580,585 81,020 79,139
seereman —2-—f6g 123



Group Financial Summary

SEMBHE

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

For the year ended 31 December
BE+-A=+—HLEE

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
—E--f —T——4% Z-TF ZTNF ZT)N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT FHT FHT FHT
Revenue U zs 272,102 375,182 375,526 258,865 91,715
Profit/(Loss) from operations KEREF,/(518) 12,748 18,713 49,364 38,297 (43,980)
Finance costs BE AR (1,937) (6,205) (18,616) (26,252) (25,955)
Share of results of associates JE(LEEE NS 20,417 18,500 13,424 6,090 23,831
Profit/(Loss) before income tax BETSRRI &R (1) 31,228 31,008 44,172 18,135 (46,104)
Income tax (expense)/credit FTis®i (%), #El (15,730 (20,131) (17,379) (6,133) 83
Profit/(Loss) for the year FEEF,(FE) 15,498 10,877 26,793 12,002 (46,021)
Attributable to the owners of the Company 72 &IAR B fE(L 8,208 12,163 18,061 15,854 (33,225)
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION HREBBEARRBRE
As at 31 December
W+=B=+—8H
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
== "T——4% "ZT-TF _"ZThF _"TT/\HF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHT FHT FHET FHT
(restated) (restated)
(=5) (&gE51)
Non-current assets FERBEE 528,570 531,609 515,020 473,660 547,357
Current assets TEEE 1,088,053 1,139,131 1,144,055 1,069,138 888,561
Current liabilities mENEE (447,534) (366,596)  (451,499)  (317,436)  (208,079)
Non-current liabilities EREEaE (141,468) (301,020) (258,281) (353,737) (372,484)
Net assets BEFE 1,027,621 1,003,124 949,295 871,625 855,355
Capital and reserves attributable to b /NG N
the owners of the company R EE 930,967 912,040 866,536 788,569 765,703

1 24 New Heritage Holdings Ltd.
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Investment Properties

REWE

Properties

L/ES

The Shopping arcade of Phase 1
and all shops on Level 1 at Zone A
of Phase 5, Suzhou Garden Villa,
98 Shi Shan Road,

New District, Suzhou,

Jiangsu Province, the PRC
BT &k & kN T 387 (R 240 LU BR O8SE
SREEILE —HE YIS &
ERA—IEARE D

Shops on Levels 1, 2 and 3 of Block 11
and the basement, Suzhou Garden Court,
1333 Bin He Road,

New District, Suzhou,

Jiangsu Province, the PRC

Fp BT AR &R T T IR B R S 133355%
IR EIIE—IE i =8

% EIR R E

Villa J101, Suzhou Garden Villa
Phase 1, 98 Shi Shan Road,

New District, Suzhou,

Jiangsu Province, the PRC
BT 8K & &k )N T 7[R 280 LU BR OS5k
iRZEILE —HIJ101 5IEE

Flat 1A of Jin Guo Tower, Flats 1A, 2D,
6C, 6D, 7C, 8C, 9C, 10B to 10D,

11C, 11D, 12A to 12D, 15B, 16C, 16D,
17Ato 17D, 18A to 18D, 19A, 19C, 19D,
20C and 20D of Jin Sing Tower,

Suzhou Garden Villa Phase 2,

98 Shi Shan Road,

New District, Suzhou,

Jiangsu Province, the PRC

rh BT 8K & k)N T 37 [ 80 LU BR OS5k

IERE _HIREIRIAE - REEIAE

2D= - 6CZ=E - 6D= * 7C= ~ 8CE »
9C=E - 10BE10DE - 11CE * 11DE *
12AZ12D=E - 15B% - 16CZE - 16DE -
17AZ17D=E - 18AZE18DE - 19AZE -
19CZE - 19DZE - 20C=E K& 20DZ%E

Approximate
interest

attributable
to the Group

KE RS
AR

86%

86%

86%

86%

Approximate
Total Gross
Floor Area
(sq.m.)

BREERY
CEAK)

11,023

4,481

270

5,240

List of Principal Properties

Type

5l

Commercial

[EES

Commercial

[EES

Residential
F=

Residential
F=E

EEYE

Lease Term
THE

70 years from

19 October 1992 to

18 October 2062
B—ANZFTAT+IBEZE
ZERZF+ATNR
REETE

70 years from

16 January 1995 to

15 January 2065
B—hAhAF—A+BZE
—ERNAF—A+RA
AEETF

70 years from

19 October 1992 to

18 October 2062
H—ANZFTA+ABZE
ZERZF+TA+TNAR
REETE

70 years from

19 October 1992 to

18 October 2062
H—ANZETAT+ABZE
ZERZFTATNAR
REETE

RERARLAT —T——FFR
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List of Principal Properties

EEWF

1. Investment Properties (Contd)
REW= &)
Approximate
interest Approximate
attributable Total Gross
Properties to the Group Floor Area Type Lease Term
(sg.m.)
LR
LY/E BOER REEEEN Wl HH
(FFHK)
Flats 1B, 1D and 1F of Jin Bon Tower, 86% 484 Residential 70 years from
Suzhou Garden Villa Phase 3, *= 19 October 1991 to
98 Shi Shan Road, 18 October 2061
New District, Suzhou, H—hAh—F+A+NBEE
Jiangsu Province, the PRC —EA—Ft+A+NR
AR BT &R & T 37 @ 2R LU B985 REETE
SREILE=HAIRFELB - IDRIFE
Beijing Landmark Towers, 30.05%* 15,504 Hotel The land use rights of the
8 East Third Ring North Road, IS property have been vested in
Chaoyang District, Beijing Landmark Towers
Beijing, 50,768 Office Co., Ltd. by allocation for a
the PRC WAE term from 30 January 1986 to
f B L R T EARG I BR = BR AL BR8ER 7 October 2020
EREETRE 22,663 Shop ZYER T E AEE R
[k BHARTIEREEAARE
ABRAT - FHBE—NRE
15,504 Service —A=tHEBE-_ZT-Z=F
partment + A+t HEwR
REBXAE
25,705 Basements
&
2 Group under “Interests in associates” in note 17 to the financial * A TS IRRMIEEL7[ PR & R Bl | — 8 o
statements.
1 26 New Heritage Holdings Ltd. Annual Report 2012



Properties Held Under Development

By ES

Approximate

List of Principal Properties

EEYE

interest Approximate Approximate
attributable Total Total Gross Actual/Estimated
Properties to the Group Site Area Floor Area Type Date of Completion Progress
(sgq.m.) (sgq.m.)
SEE AT B e
L/ES AR BBEEN LAEFEEELHN Ei BT A ERMR
(SFFK) (SFFK)
Wuzhong Garden Court 54% 41,579 61,484 Residential Phase | Completed
situated at south side of November 2007
Nanxijiang Road
and east side of Residential Phase Il Completed
Mingxi Road, November 2008
Wuzhong District, Suzhou,
Jiangsu Province, the PRC Residential/  Phase Il Completed
R4 5e Commercial  June 2010
MR BT ERE &N
R EERIEREAR
BAE B R A F= F—H B®T
T +F+—A
F= FEH B®RT
—EENF+—A
TE /¥ F=H [
—Z-FTFA
Taihu Garden Court 55% 131,445 92,037 Residential Phase | Completed
situated at June 2009
Ling Tang Road North,
West of Mu Guang Canal, Residential Phase I Completed
Guangfu Town, December 2011
Wuzhong District, Suzhou,
Jiangsu Province, the PRC Residential Phase IlI Under
Fi)= 0] 2013 construction
R BT 85 E &N
R @IEE *= E—H [
YRR IL A ZETNFRA
ANFE R A fEl
*= F—H B®T
—E——F+=H
F= FE=H e
—E—=F
seppaRAs —T——sg8 127



List of Principal Properties

EEWF

2. Properties Held Under Development (Conta)
BRDYESE)
Approximate
interest Approximate Approximate
attributable Total Total Gross Actual/Estimated
Properties to the Group Site Area Floor Area Type Date of Completion Progress
(sgq.m.) (sgq.m.)
S AT B fhEt
L/ES BAER BMEEEN LEEEEL EA BT HHE ERAMRR
(F7K) (SFFK)
Lakeside Garden Court 94% 86,236 155,225 Residential/  Phase | Completed
situated at East shore of Commercial  December 2010
Long Zhong Lake in
Shengze Town, Residential Phase Il Completed
Wujiang City, Suzhou, December 2011
Jiangsu Province, the PRC
$BER50 Residential ~ Phase IlI Completed
AR BT ERE November 2012
BRI B R IA
BRA SR Al Residential ~ Phase IV Under
2014 construction
FE/HE F—H B%T
—E-ZF+=A
F=E £ BT
—E—%+=A
F=E F=H BRI
—ZE——F+—A
F= Epuh el
—E—E
Office, SOHO and retail arcade 100% 14,592 58,368 Commercial/  2014/2015 Piling
to be situated at Office commenced
Ta Yun Road West,
Yue Lai Xi East, [SEV4 —T—mFE/ BEMTIRE
Economic Development Zone, WRE —T—hF B A
Wuzhong District, Suzhou,
Jiangsu Province, the PRC
WRE - NERAE
RERAERTEDS
1AL PA P BT Bk & BN T
RpELERER
FE AR PR R SRR SR ()
1 28 New Heritage Holdings Ltd. Annual Report 2012
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(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)
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Wanchai, Hong Kong
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